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CORPORATE STATEMENT

SIG's strategy is to develop and grow the Group
as a leading supplier of specialist products to
the construction and related markets, in order
to achieve sustainable fong term growth

in shareholder value.

COUNTRIES IN WHICH WE OPERATE:

United Kingdom
lreland
Germany

France

Poland

The Netherlands
Belgium

Austria

Czech Republic
Slovakia

Number |

SIG 1s the leading suppher of
insulation, roofing, commercial
interiors and specalist construction
and safety products in Europe




AT A GLANCE: HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE!

£2 ’ 455m
O §
I 3 2 O /CD * From continumg operations only (i ¢ excluding
» the USA business seid on 20 November 2006)

§ Represents the percentage growth n 2007 when
compared to 2006

* Underiyng figures are stated before the amortsaion
of acqurred intangibles the profit on sale of the USA
business and hedge Ineffectiveness

UNDERLYING* PROFIT BEFORE TAX! TRADING SITES s A7 31 DECEMBER 2007

£140.Im 779
+29.5%

BASIC EPSt EMPLOYEES s AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

66.3p 12,100
+14,19%

' UNDERLYING* BASIC EPS? MARKET CAPITALISATION As AT 12 MARCH 2008

74.8p £1,032m
+22.0%

DIVIDEND PER SHARE ACQUISITION SPEND in 2007

26.7p £323m
+30.2%
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AT A GLANCE: PERFORMANCE

* From continuing operations only (¢ exduding the USA business sold on 20 Novernber 2006).

* Underiying figures are stated before the amortsavon of acqurred iangbles, the profit on sale of the USA business

and hedge ineflectvencss
¥ Represents the percentage growth m 2007 when compared 1o 2006

¢ Like for like s defined as the business exduding the impact of acquistiens and disposals made in the current and prior year
The 2005 like for hke sales growth figure has not been restated to reflect the chrunation of the contribution from the USA

business seld m November 2006

REVENUE*

£2,455m
+32.0% .

£1,571m
2005 2006
LIKE FOR LIKE* REVENUE GROWTH
10.9%
7 1%
9 3%
2005 2004
UNDERLYING®* OPERATING PROFIT!
£159.4m
O §
I 3 I N 3 /O £1214m
£99 Im
2005 2006
OPERATING PROFIT!
£142.2m
O §
| 24 1 2 é £1145m
£89 Bm
2005 2006
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UNDERLYING* PROFIT BEFORE TAX!

£140.Im
+29.5%

PROFIT BEFORE TAX!

£124.3m
+21.0%

UNDERLYING?* BASIC EPS!

74.8p
+22.0%

§

BASIC EPS!

66.3p
+14.1%

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

26.7p
+30.2%

£108 2m

£913m

£102 7m

£83 8m

61 3p

509p

58 1p

45 2p

20 Sp

16 8p

2005

2005

2005

2005

005

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2007

2007

2007

007
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AT A GLANCE: ACTIVITIES

“SIG 15 a supplier of specialist products to the bullding and construction industry
It focuses its activities into four business sectors Insulation, Roofing and External
Elements, Commercial Interiors and Specialist Construction and Safety Products.”

Focus, Specialsation and Service are

the core principles of SIG enabling the
Group's businesses to offer expert advice
and know-how, wide product choice and
a fast and efficient delivery service

INSULATION

SIG 1s the largest supplier of insulation and related
products in Evrope it holds leading market posttions
in the UK, Ireland, Germany and Poland and s the
leader in Industrial nsulation in France SIG also
operates n The Netherlands, Belgium, Austria,
Czech Republic and Stovakia

COUNTRIES OF OPERATION

United Kingdom The Netherlands
Irefand Betgum
Germaryy Austna

Frarce Czech Repubkc
Poland Stovakia
REVENUE

£916m
37.3%

04 SIG plc Annua Repon, and Acgounts 2007

SIG 1s committed to providing fast, efficient,
no nonsense service to customers, locally
and nationally, as required

Local staff with local knowledge are the
drving force of the business and empower it
to effectively compete in local market conditions

ROOFING AND EXTERNAL ELEMENTS

SIG 1s the largest supplier of roofing products

in the UK, Ireland and France and a key regional
operator in Germany and Poland SIG supplies
products and systems to every sector of the
roofing iIndustry for both new projects and
repair and maintenance

COUNTRIES OF OPERATION
Unted Kingdom
trekand

Germany
France
Foland

REVENUE

£64Im
26.1% |




This mixture of skilled and focused people,
efficient business processes and specialist
infrastructure differentiates SIG and has
enabled the Group to become the leading
supplier of specialist bullding materials

in Europe.

COMMERCIAL INTERIORS

SIG 1s a leading suppher in the UK and Irefand of
purpose made partrtons and performance doorsets
for all types of commercial and other non-residential
buldings It 1s also the leading distributor of branded
complementary products for the interor fit out of
non-residential bulldings with trading sites in the UK,
Ireland, Germany, France, Poland, The Netherlands,
Belgium, Austria, Czech Republic and Slovakia

COUNTRIES OF OPERATION

Unted Kingdom The Netherlands
Irefand Belgum
Germany Austna

France Czech Republic
Poland Slovakia
REVENUE

£62Im
25.39%

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

SIG 15 Europe’s leading supplier of insulation,
roofing and external elements, commercal
interiors and specialist construction and
safety products.

SPECIALIST CONSTRUCTION AND SAFETY PRODUCTS

SIG 1s a leading supplier of specialist construction
and safety products in the UK and Ireland and offers
a wide portfolio of products including concrete
accessories, waterproofing systems and chemicals,
brickwork support systems, specialist fixings and
safety products SIG s also a leading suppher of
specialist construction products in Poland and

a suppher of safety products in France

COUNTRIES OF OPERATION
United Kingdom

Irefand

Poland

France (Safety)

REVENUE

£277m
|'1.3%
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

LES TENCH
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
. Record Sales grOWth * Like for like 15 defined as the business
duding the imy of
e Record profits and earnings per share s et 2008

o Strong like for like growth in both operating regions e ot acuwed angies

and hedge ineffecuveness
e Record increase in the number of trading srtes
e Record value and volume of acquisitions

¢ Significant broadening of products and services
sold to customers

2007 was an excellent year for the
Company, marked by strong organic
growth and an unprecedented level
of acquisition activity.
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2007 was an excellent year for the Company, marked by strong organic growth
and an unprecedented level of acquisiton actnty The Company increased the
breadth of ts trading actvities both geographically and by extending the range
of products and services to customers throughout the UK and Ireland and n
Mantand Europe

Highlights of the year are

e record sales growth,

& record profits and earnings per share,

» strong hike for ke growth in both operating regions,
e record increase In the number of trading sdes,

« record value and volume of acquusitions, and

» signidficant broadenng of products and services sold to customers

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007, compared with the corresponding
penod i 2006 exduding the figures for the USA business which was sold
in November 2006

SALES

Total sales Increased by £595 4m (32 09} to £2,455 2m (2006 £1,859 8m)
Like for like® sales growth was 10 9% in Sterling Foreign exchange rate
movements on a year-on-year basis had minimal impact, together adding

£1 4m to sales (and £0 5m to operating profits)

PROFITS

Total undertying*® operating profit increased by £38 Om (31 3%) to £159 4m
(2006 £121 4m) Underlying net finance costs increased by £6 Im to £19 3m
(2006 £13 2m) Underlying profit before tax increased by £31 9m (25 5%)
1© £140 Im (2006 £108 2m) Amortsaion of acqurred intangibles ncreased by
£i03mto £17 2m (2006 £6 9m) A credit of £1 4m has ansen m relavon 1©
hedge neflectveness (2006 £1 4m} Profit before tax increased by £21 6m

(21 0%) to £124 3m (2006 £102 7m)

MARGINS

The underlying operating profit margin was held at 8 0% in the UK and Ireland
and increased to 4 9% from 4 6% in 2006 in Manland Europe After increased
costs assocated with acquistions and business developrent, the Group underlying
operating profit margin was mantained at 6 5% (2006 6 5%}

EARNINGS AND DiVIDENDS

The underkng basic earnings per share increased by 13 Sp (22 0%) to 74 8p
(2006 61 3p) Basic earmungs per share increased by B 2p (14 1%) to 66 3p
{2006 58 Ip) Afinal dwdend of 18 7p 1s proposed, subject to shareholder
approval which would make a to1al dvdend for the year of 26 7p, an increase
of 30 2% demonstrating the Board s confidence in the prospects of the business

FINANCES

Cash flow from trading strengthened further in 2007 Continued investment
in customer service through investment in stock, trading sites and delivery
capability, together with record acquisiton spend, resufted n increased
borrowangs at the year end, with geanng at 75% (2006 65%)

Dunng the year the Company placed I | 4m new ordinary shares at 1,320p
each, rasing £147m after commmssions and expenses In addron a further
£100m of commutted faciiues were obtaned dunng the year with commutted
faciities totaling £600m at the end of the year

The Group has a sound finanaal position with prudent interest cover
of B 2x (2006 9 2x)

ACQUISITIONS

The strategy of targeting acquisitions as a means of supplementing the ongoing
organic expansion of the Group continued to be successfully executed dunng
2007 Atotal of 27 companies were acquired, for a total consideravon of
£323m, including assumed debt The combined sales of those acquistions

on an annuaksed basis s £440m, splt £300m i Manland Europe and £140m
in the UK and Ireland  Dunng the calendar year 2007, £217m of sales from
these 27 acquisiions impacted on the Group results

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

So far in 2008 (to 13 March) 8 acquistions have been completed, for a total
consderation net of cash acqurred of 332m Combined annualised sales 15
¢ £50m, splt as follows

* UK and Ireland — 7 deals, £46m annualised sales 21 trading stes added
n Insutation, Commeraal ntenors, Roofing and Speaalist Construction
and Safety Products, and

& Manland furope — | deal, | trading ste added, £4m annuafised sales
n Commercial Interors

Work 15 ongoing on the healthy pipeline of further opportunties

BOARD

It was announced on 10 January 2008 that Dawnd Willarns intends to retire

as Chief Executive on 30 June 2008 and will leave the Company on that date
Foliowing a comprehensive search cenducted by external consuhants for a
replacement, Chns Davies who has been Managng Director of SIG Manland
Europe since 2001, was appointed Deputy Chief Executive with effect from
10 January 2008 and will take over as Chief Executve on | July 2008 Dunng
the hand-over penod in the first sex months of 2008, Dawd 18 working dosely
with Chris to ensure continutty and a smooth transition The search for a
reptacement for Chins as Managing Drrector of SIG Mainland Europe

well underway

| would like to take this opportunity to thank Dawd for the valuable contribution
he has made to the Group over the past twenty four years, particularly during
his tme as Chief Executive from January 2002 The excellent postion and
strength of the Group today owes much to his leadership

EMPLOYEES

On behalf of the Board | wish to thank all our employees throughout the Group
for their efforts in enabling the Company to outperform market condiions and
in drving the continued successful expansion of the business

PROSPECTS

The Group’s sales are more heavily weighted towards non-residential
construction, both in the UK and Ireland and in Maintand Europe, and it
s believed that the substantial pipeline of work in progress of both public
and privately funded construction programmes will continue to prowide
the Group with attractrve opportunities In its four main product sectors

Insulation and related products 5 the Group's targest product sector and
demand 5 expecied to contnue to increase at a faster rate than overall
construction actnty in the UK and Ireland and Mainfand Europe, both across
the new construction and refurbishment markets This will continue to be
driven by a range of factors including concern for the emvarosrment, nsing
energy costs, new legislaion seekung to kmit energy consumption, new
buikding reguations, and grant schemes to improve energy efficiency in
existing residenial properties The Group 15 continuing 1o invest to ensure
that 1t benefits from this expected growth in demand gong forward, and
capitalises on fis market leading postion

On a broader basis across the Group, a signficant range of expansion
opporturities, both organic and acqussiion, are being actively pursued
The number of mdmdual trading stes has increased substamtally over
recent years throughout the operating regions, and this programme
of expanding market coverage 15 planned to contnue

In 2007, the Group expanded fts operatons and trading activities signdficantly
and these dynamics provide a strong platform coming into 2008 Trading in
2008 has begun well and the Board beleves that the Group will continue rs
track record of outperforming across s markets The Board 15 confident of
further progress i 2008 and beyond

LES TENCH
CHAIRMAN
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BUSINESS REVIEW

DAVID WILLIAMS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

e SIG 1s the construction industry’s first choice
for specialist products

e SIG has continually expanded the range
of products it sells to specialist contracting
companies and professional trades

GARETH DAVIES
FINANCE DIRECTOR

CONTENTS
09 INTRODUCTICN TO SIG

13 SIG'S STRATEGY

15 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
16 TRADING PERFORMANCE

£8 FINANCIAL REVIEW

23 QUTLOOK

23 RESOURCES

25 OPERATIONAL RISK MAMAGEMENT
26 TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT

27 OTHER MATTERS

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Like for hke s defined as the business
exduding the impact of acquistions
made since | January 2006

Undertyng s before the

amortsation of aoqued ntangibies
and hedge ineflectiveness

The continued pursuit and application
of the Group’s clear Growth Strategy has
once again driven excellent increases in sales,

profits and earnings per share.
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This Business Review has been prepared by the Board solely for the

members of $IG plk it 15 intended to provide Shareholders with a surmary
of the development, performance and financial postion of the Group for 2007

It also prowdes detals of the main trends and factors underlying the year's
results and which are Iikely to affect future performance and describes the
Group's business and fts key objectives strateges values and resources

iogether with the main nsks and uncertanties it faces A cautionary commenit

relating to forward looking statements s prowided on page 27

INTRODUCTION TO SIG

SIG plc 1s a leading supplier of specralist products to professionals in the burlding,
construction and related industnies, with 779 trading sites throughout the UK,

Irefand and Manland Europe and employs over 12 100 people

Founded i 1957 1 Shefiield, UK, S!G has grown from a single site insulation
distnbution business into a mutti-national specialist distribution busness operating
in four diferent market sectors The Company was lsted on the London Stock
Exchange n May 1989 and 1s a constuent member of the FTSE 250 index
Iisted within the Support Services sector

On |2 March 2008, the share price dosed at £7 645 At this date there

were |35 002,485 shares in issue, gvng a market captalisation at that date

of £1 032m

SIG'S ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

SIG's operations are managed on a country-by-country basis Within each
country there 1s dedicated dvisional management focusing on each market
sector This 15 critical to the success of the business, ensuning that focus 1

provided to both the customer requirements and the supply chain required
to service the customer Back office functions such as HR, 1T finance, property
and fleet management are provided on a country basis and are shared across

business units I a country where 1t 1s appropriate and economic to do 5o

SIG’S PRODUCTS

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

The Parent Company of the Group, SIG plc oversees and supports the
strategic development of each business via the actvities of the Group Board,
and the Corporate Development and Group Finance teams

SIG'S MARKET SECTORS

Ower the last two decades, SIG has cominually expanded the range of products
it sells to specialist cantracting cornpanies and professtonal trades SIG now sells
products into four distnct market sectors across a number of diferent countries

as set out below

Speaalist

Roafing Construction

and External Commeraal and Safety

Insulabon Elements Interors Products

Untted Kingdom . L] . .

Ireland . - L) .
Germany and Austria . . .

France . . . .

Poland . - . .
Benelux 3 .
Czech Republic and Slovakia . -

+ Safety products onty

insulation

Reofing and
Extarnal Elamants

Commercdial Interiors

Spuecialist Construction
and Safety Products

Thermal msulation

Fire protection

Acoustic insulation

Dry lning

Refrigeration and cold storage
Flooring

Heating and ventilation products
Industrial hning

Pipe insulation

Roofing insuiation
Waterproofing

Aur handling and ar treatment

Flat roofing

- Roofing felts — glass, polyester
and torch-ons

- Btumen

- Roof lights and domes
- Sofar refiective paints
Slating and tiling

- Concrete tiles

- Clay tiles

— Promenade tiles

— Slates — natural and man-made
- Shingles

Sheeting and cladding
— Fire cement sheeting
— Mastic asphalt

- Profiled metal sheeting
Rammwater goods
Roofline products

— Soffits

- Facias

- Barge boards

Wentilation

Suspended cellings

Partiioning

Cleanroom technology products
Doorsets

Category lighting

Dry ming

Fwe protection

Insulation

Rarsed access floors

Column encasements
Office/acoustic screens

Noise control

Office furnrture and storage products
Foang products

Mechanical fixings and accessories
Fixings and fasterungs

Groundwork products

- Shonng equipment

- Geotextles

— Reinforcement products

— Ground stabilisation products

Temporary fencing and scaffolding
Masonry components
Construction chemicals

Safety helmets

Protective clothing

Safety glasses

Safety boots

Ear plugs

Gloves

Dust respirators
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

THE CORE §IG BUSINESS OFFERING

SUPPLY SPECIALIST CONTRACTORS
WITH SPECIALIST PRODUCTS
IN FOUR KEY MARKETS

INSULATION

ROOFING AND EXTERNAL ELEMENTS

COMMERCIAL INTERIORS

SPECIALIST CONSTRUCTION AND SAFETY PRODUCTS

The non-residential market is SIG’s largest
market segment. This includes both private
and public expenditure on schools, hospitals,
prisons, warehouses, leisure complexes,
retail developments, sports stadia, airports
and offices.

10 S1G plc Anmual Report and Accourtts 2007




INTRODUCTION TO SIG CONTINUED

SIG'S ACTIVITIES

$IG 1 pamanly a distnbutor handiing and supphing specialist products
manufactured by other comparies Where products are bespoke 10 the end
user, SIG's only route to market is by manufactuning products for the speciahst
contractors to fit SIG currently manufactures partiton systems and doorsets

in its UK Commeraial Intenors division SIG fabrnicates some custom products
in s Insulation and Roofing and External Elements drsions Fabncation involves
adding value by aurtting, reshaping o attaching two or moie core predudts together
The largest fabrication actwity rs the cuting and shaping of industrial insulation

SIG 5 contracting activty s focused on the UK, where i installs loft and cawty
wall insulaton in residential propertes

SIG operates under a wide vanety of trading names i the respectve markets
and countnies In which it has trading stes Mary of these brands are widely
recogrised throughout their respective market sectors or countries as the
leading suppher of focused products and services 1o customers

51G'S ROLE {N THE SUPPLY CHAIN

The products that SIG supplies are specialist in nature and are prowded

to specilist contracting comparies and professional trades, both for new
constructon and for reparrs, maintenance and improvement ("RMI") Whilst
general obbing bulders may purchase sore remns from StG, they are more
broadly served through the general bullders merchant supply chain

S1G provides a crucal role in the specialist bullding products supply chain by

¢ BREAKING BULK FOR MANUFACTURERS
SIG's supphers delver products in farge lorry loads to each of 5IG's trading
sites Far fast moving tems the product can often be taken from the end
of the production kne straight to the SIG trading ste. Ths enables the
manufacturers to focus on manufaciunng the product as efficently as possible,
and allowing the distnbutor ("SIG") to fotus on breaking and distributing the
bulk to the many contractors fiung the product

» PROVIDING “IMMEDIATE" AVAILABILITY OF PRODUCT CLOSE
TO SITE LOCATION
Through its 779 trading stes, contractors are able to obtan product 1n very
quick tmeframes 1o meet the gemands of a fast maving comstruction sue
The majorty of construction sites do not have a large area to store product
safely and securely and so the abilty to source product quickly overcomes
the problems caused by such a space constrant

HAVING THE MOST EXTENSIVE DELIVERY FLEET

IN THE INDUSTRY

SIG delvers over 70% of ts goods sold to the construcvon see SIG has a
wide range of commercial vehicles including a number of mechanical offfoad
and crane faciites to deliver the product to exactly where f15 needed

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

WVIA IHL 40 M3IATY

« PROVIDING TECHNICAL ADVICE AND PRODUCT EXPERTISE
SIG's customer base values the comprehensive technical knowledge that
SIG's sales staff have of each product s spectfic applcation to ensure that legal
and safety standards are met i bulidngs and industry Where partcularty
complex queries anse SIG 1 able 1o call upon adwice from s supplier base
This 15 an smportant value-added element of the service offered by SIG
No other European company has the depth of expenence and expertse
that SIG has in its preduct fields

ENABLING CONTRACTORS TQ MAXIMISE EFFICIENT USE

OF LABOUR :
SIG's ability to deliver product at short notice enables contractors 1o flex

their work schedule depending upon the daily needs of the construction site

This part of the service offening 1s highty valued by SIG s customer base and

ensures SIG maintains its critical role in the supply chain

PROVIDING CRED!T TERMS TQ THE CONTRACTORS

SIG s typical customer 15 relatively small to medium szed SIG prowides
credit to enable a contractor generaly to fit goods before they zre paid for
to ensure contnurty of the supply chan SIG has very well established and
ngorous credit control procedures that hmits s nsk exposure whilst having
regard to the needs of the customer base

These drvers have enabled SIG to buld businesses that are able to diferentiate
themselves from mainstream competiors

MARKETS SUPPLIED BY SIG

SIG 15 well dversified, serving a wide range of industries and markets

The following table provides an indicaive estrmate, based upon SIG's analysis
of sector informatton of the breakdown of the 2007 Group sales into the
different end markets

New
Total T) RMI
% ol % of % of
Group sub-group sub-group
Non-residential 54% 57% 43%
Res:dental 36% 46% 54%
Industry {non-construcuon) 10% 56% 4%

Source SIG estmates

The non-residential market is SIG’s largest market segment This includes both
private and public expendnure on schools, hospdals, pnsons, warehouses,
lessure complexes, retal developments, sports stacia arports and offices
Residental 5 SIG's second largest market segment In this market SIG s '
more heavily weighted to the essential repairs and mantenance market which

s less sensiive 10 the economic fluctuations which can impact the rew build

sector and prowides a strong underbyng market in penods of economik dowrntum

The smallest market for SIG 15 industry SIG predominantly supplies industrial
nsulation to this market and includes for example, power statons and process
industries where heat s a major part of the producucn process
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

DEMAND FOR SIG’S PRODUCTS

Demand for the products sold by SIG s influenced by a wide range of factors Overall bulding actvty 1 a main driver, both
for residential and non-residential properties, and also the expenditure on repairs, maintenance and smprovement (“RMI7)
of alt types of existing buldings Demands for parts of the SIG product range are mfluenced by other specriic factors as follows

Business

Sector specific market drivers

Insutation

® Regulation in both the UK and Europe, emvronrmental awareness and high energy costs are all key drivers
for insulation demand

o Higher standards of comfort — both acoustic and temperature

Insulation usage in new construction 15 affected by the Building Regulations in operation n each country
Over time, 1t 1s expected that governments, busmesses and the public will mcreasingly focus on reducing energy
consumption more vigorously than in the past and that as a result insulaton demand will continue to nse

Changing cimatic conditions make t more a necessiy 10 insulate in order 1o moderate temperature changes
within a bulding

Roofing and
External Elements

e Aregular and essential RMl requirement for roofs subject to increasingly vanable and severe
weather conditions

» Demand for new products to reduce bulding exterior maintenance costs
& Growth of specialist distribution as the main supply route

The age profile of roofs across the UK and Europe 15 on average, increasing and this gives rise to an ongong
RM| requirement This provides a core product demand

Certain products are used extensively for upgrading existing properties and demand over time 15 expected
1o mcrease as peaple look for low-maintenance preducts to replace tradmionat high-maintenance painted
timber on the extencr of bulldings

Commercial Interiors

» Rising standards of iternal fi-out and the growing mportance of acoustic and safety standards
# Increased demand for integrated sohttons
» Increased need for high secunty

SIG has expenenced a trend towards higher qualtty internal working environments, for example,
hugher value glass partitions In non-residential buildings and higher quality doors to meet fire and
acoustic regulations

MNew mntenors are often required following a change of use or a change of occupancy within existing
non-residential buldings requinng refiting and removal of partions wall storage and ceiling systermns

Specialist Construction
and Safety Products

» Tightenung of regulations
® “Just-in-time” approach to project management
» Out-sourcing of techmical know-how

Ower recent years, methods of construction have changed leading to a requirement for new inncvative
speciafist products which SIG 15 ideally placed to supply

Regulation in both the UK and Europe,
environmental awareness and high energy
costs are all key drivers for insulation demand.
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SIG'S STRATEGY

The Group's core strategy 15 to continue the growth and development of
SIG as a leading European specalist supplier to the bulding and construction
ndustnes, in order 1o ncrease long term shareholder value

The diagram below explans the five key growth strategies SIG s pursuing

SIG growth

® New countries in Europe

e Market demand growth

® Acquisition pipeline

e Wider product range

o More trading sites in existing regions

| NEW COUNTRIES IN EUROPE

SIG 15 continually reviewing new couritries in Europe to assess whether
there 15 an opportunity for SIG to enter as specialist supplier in s chosen
four market sectors The most effective way to enter these markets 1s
normally by acquisition

Euroconstruct construction forecasts indicate that construchion activity growth
rates will be higher in new EU accession countries than the more mature
European countries over the next few years In view of this, during 2007 SIG
acquired new businesses in the Czech Republic and Slovakia SIG 1s currently
butding 2 central services team in this region to support its anticipated growth
n the "Central Europe” region

2 MARKET DEMAND GROWTH

The wider European market into which SIG already supplies s huge Taking all
the Mainland European countries together (except Russia), there 15 a populat:on
of ¢ 600m The market size for the supply of buiding and construction products
15 estmated to be ¢ €300bn per annum SIG 15 well placed to expiort s product
and market knowledge to take a larger share of this market place

SIG bekeves that the market demand growth for insulation products in particutar
will outstnp the demand for other building products as the world attempts to
address the 1ssues caused by cimate change and ncreasing energy costs SIG

15 ideally placed to serve this additonal dernand

3 ACQUISITION PIPELINE

SIG employs a carefully targeted acquistion strategy The rationale 1s to
improve $YG's geographic coverage, widen its product range and consolidate
and strengthen its market postion SIG has two main categones of acquisiion

a) ‘Bok-on - these are exising country and exising product acquistions where
SIG bnings direct synergies post acquistion to enhance is investment retums

b) Platform’ — this describes an acquisiion which creates a new substantve
posttion in esther

i) an entrely new country,
uy an entirely new product or market sector, or

) which introduces an existing SIG product group into a country
in which SIG already has trading operations, but not i the product
group of the newly acquired business

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE
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Unlke a 'bolt-on’ acquisitton, there may be few immediate synergies with
a platform’ acquistion However, SIG would expect to expand tts positon
out from the 'platform’ acquisiien, to grow sales and prcfits going forward
Examples of ‘platform’ acquisitons in 2007 are the first move nto roofing
in France with the acquisttion of Larmére, and the entrance mto
Czech Republic and Slovakia with the acquistion of BEK

In 2007 SIG completed 27 acquisttions for a total enterprise value of £323m
(2006 £109m on 23 acquisitions) The acquisiions in 2007 can be spitt nta
the two different types as follows

27 ACQUISITIONS

£323 m Enterprise Value

‘BOLT-ON .
20 acquisitions
£65m Enterpnse Value

PLATFORM’

7 acquisiions
£258m Enterprise Value

The 2007 acquistions were widely spread nght across Eurcpe and in each
of $1G 5 four market sectors, bringing annualised sales to the Group of £440m
{2006 £240m) This s further analysed on page |8

The acquisttiors include SIG's largest acquisitton to date — Larnviére — the number
one French speaahst roafing suppher

Further details of SIG's 2007 acquistion programme are provided on
pages 1B and |9

4 WIDER PRODUCT RANGE

Extending the range of specialist products and services which SIG offers

improves customer service and market penetration Once SIG has identrfied

a new product offering, consideration is then grven to widenung the supply of

this product through the existing trading ste network An example of this s the

recent product launches within the UK Commercial Intenors divsson which

mclude new securtty doorsets, a system of wall panel products for use

specrfically n hospitaks and other hezlth faalties and access panels for '
services 1n commercial and public buildings
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

REVENUE BY MARKET

£2,455m

SPECIALIST CONSTRUCTION {INSULATION
AND SAFETY PRODUCTS £9 | 6m
£277m 37 3%
i13%

ROOFING AND COMMERCIAL INTERICRS
EXTERNAL ELEMENTS £62 I m
£64|Im 253%
26 1%

Maintaining positive like for like growth in
every business is a key target by which every
business is measured and is 2 key component
of being able to drive profit growth.
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SIG’S STRATEGY CONTINUED

5 MORE TRADING SITES IN EXISTING REGIONS

A key feature of the essential service 1o customers 15 the ability to delver
product to ste or the custoner s premises at very short nouce Lead tmes
from order placing to actual defivery are usually between one and two days
In most cases custorners are unable to hold any inventory and delivery times
are crtical to ensure the efficent use of manpower on ste

SIG has a programme of Investing in new trading sttes and relocating to larger
trading sites in order to increase nventory holding capabilty and reduce delivery
journey umes The delivery fleet, which 15 controlled and directed by local
management In each trading area, i being expanded to ensure rapid avalability
and flexibity 1o meet customer demands

The increase in the Group's trading sites over the last two years 15 shown below

UK and Maniand

Iretand Eurcpe USA Total
2005 337 139 20 496
Net new openings 4 5 | 10
Acquired{disposed) 8l 52 @20 112
2006 422 196 ~ 618
Net new openings 9 4 - i3
Acquired 30 Ie - 148
2007 461 318 - 779

KEY LONG TERM OBJECTIVES
SIG 1s committed to the follewang key long term objectives 1n support
of its overall strategy

» develop and grow by appiying the Group's three core principles of Focus
Speciaiisation and Service,

expand the Company and its actvities as a leading specialist suppher
to professional trades in the construction and related industries

» supplement organic growth with carefully targeted acquistions,

& provide annual dvdend growth not necessanfy in ine with earmings growth
but mantaining dradend cover of between two to three umes and

» create long term growth in Shareholder value

DEVELOPMENT OF QUR FEOPLE
$IG 1s committed to ensunng that 2!l employees and management are properly
inducted into SIG and gven the necessary tranung to fulfil thewr roles

The Corpany has a wide range of programmes running, aimed at improving
the skill and competency of employees and also to provide opportunrues

for personal development This ties in with SIG's policy of offenng opportunities
for internal promotion and advancement whenever possible

SIG has recently mtroduced two new traning and development programmes
The first 15 a Personal Development Award providing hugh potential employees
with an intensive training and development programme The second 1 an
Executrve Developrment Programme run in conjunction with Sheffield Haltam
Unsversity aimed at developing the general management skills of SIG's

senior employees

There 15 an active and extensive programme of trarng in place Full tme
dedicated professional traners are employed and their work s supplemented
as required by external courses and external agencies In order to meet ever
ncreasing customer demand particular emphasis s placed on customer service

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE
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and interpersonal skills in the traning programeme: SIG has an objective of
ncreasing the number of man-hours of staff and management traring each year

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The Group uses the following key periormance indicators to evaluate the
success of its business

| LIKE FOR LEKE SALES GROWTH

Like for ke sales growth is defined as the percentage growth in the sales

of the Group excduding the impact of current year and prior year acquistions
and disposals

The measure reflects the underlying sales growth in the business which
typically arises from increased sales volumes to both new and existing
customers, product price inflaton and selling new products through our
existing infrastructure The growth s supported by investment in new
brownfield trading site apenings and trading site relocabions into larger
premises with addtional stockholding capabiity Maintaining pestive ke
for ke growth in every business 15 a key target by which every business
1s measured and 15 2 key component of being able to drve profit growth

2005
93%"*

2006
71%

2007
10 9%

Like for Iike sales growth

* The 2005 like for ke sales growth figure has not been restated to reflect the
eliminztion ¢f the contnbution from the USA business sold in November 2006

2 UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

The underlying operating profit margin 1s defined as the ratio of undertying
operating profit to sales Underlying operating profit 1s defined as operating
profit before the amortisation of acquired Intangibles

SIG works to improve tts underlying operating profit margin by managing

#ts selling prices in the local markets in which t operates and by controliing the
cost base through operational efficencies $IG experiences lower underlying
operating profit margns n Manland Eurape than it does in the UK and Ireland
and the mux of sales between these two regions has an infiuence en the overall
Group undertying operating profit margin

2005 2006 2007
UK and Irefand 77% 80% 80%
Mainland Europe 4 1% 46% 49%
Group* (after Parent costs) 63% 65% 65%

* Contnuing operations anty for 2006 and 2007

3 WORKING CAPITAL TO SALES

Working caprtal o sales 15 defined as the ratio of working capital (including
provisions) to annualsed sales (i e after adjusung for acquisions and disposals
in the current and prior year)

The ability of the Group to manage its working capital it relation to the value
of sales made by each business 1s essential to ensure that the Group generates
cash from ts operations Cash generauon s important to fund and underpin
caprtal and acquisiion investment expendriure, to enable the business 1o pay
tts taxes as they fall due and to support SIG's progressive dmdend pohiey

2005
10 4%

2006
10 5%

2007
10 4%

Working caprtal to sales
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

TRADING PERFORMANCE

The Group had a very successful year in 2007, both in respect of the growth
in sales and profits from tts core operations in its geographic regions, and in
terms of the expansion actvties and rew operations which were added
during the year

The clear strategy of seeking expansion opportunities withn the UK and Irefand
and Mainland Europe, In specialist products and markets refated to the building
construction and key industnal sectors, was aggressively pursued and continues
to fuet both geographic and product group development of the Group's actvities

Examples of this continued strategic expansion dunng 2007 are as follows
© Acquired a total of 27 businesses, together adding annualised sales of £440m,

representing addtional sales of over 209% on a full-year basis over the 2006
sales revenue

Inereased the total number of trading sites within the Group by 161 during
the year, 1o 779 at 3) December 2007 (618 at 31 December 2006)

e Acquired a frading ste m Duban and one in Spain, both as part of a UK
insufation acquisthion

® Began trading in two addiional countnes — Czech Republic and Slovakia
(insulation and commeraal interiors)

& Expanded the specialist door-set product range into all-metal
performance doors

Acquired the leading speaahst supplier of roofing matenals in France

« Launched a successful range of iInnovative wall systemns for the
heatthcare market

TRADING HIGHLIGHTS

All figures are excluding the USA business, wiich was sold in November 2006
The term "underfying” m relation to the operating proftt and operating profit
margn 15 defined as being before the amortisation of acquired intangibles

UK AND IRELAND (62% OF TOTAL SALES)
® Sales increased by £269 5m (21 5%) to £1 523 Bm (2006 £},254 3m)

o Like for bke sales increased by £120 Om (9 8%)

« Underlying operating profit increased by £21 4m (21 4%) 10 £121 3m
(2006 £99 9m)

» The underlying operating profit margin was mantaned at 8 0%
(2006 8 0%}

» 39 trading sites were added i the year, taking the total at 3| December 2007
to 461 (3| December 2006 422)
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Overall corstruction and building acivity grew in 2007 over 2006 in the UK,
but declined in Ireland, especially in new residential building Whilst residentsal
rew construction and RM! weakened i the UK in the latter part of the year,
work on non-residentral bulding projects was strong throughout the year

Sales of insulation and related products in the UK and Ireland increased by
129% in total 8 3% like for like, as overall demand increased, partly driven

by the new higher thermal performance standards required for new butfdings in
the UK In lreland, reduced construction activity caused a reduction in demand
for all products, incdfuding nsulation Increased manufactuning capacrty and
output of certain products created some oversupply, which reduced market
prices of a number of insulation products

In the specific market for nsulation upgrading of residential properties, where
the Group 5 both an msulaticn suppler and in some stuations an installer of
insulation inte the roof and walls of exsting properties, which have Iittle or

no insulation from when they were onginally built, there was a reduction in
demand compared with previous years As previously reported thes was due to
a timing gap in the flow of grant funds under the Government Energy Efficiency
Commitment A new scherme, now called CERT (Carbon Emissions Reduction
Target} begins in April 2008 and 15 expected to generate higher leve!s of
nsulation upgrading work over the next three years

Demand for speaalist high temperature nsulation matenals, which are used
in a wide range of industrial applications outside the building and construciion
industry induding power plant, petrochemical and gas installations, meta)
processing and other industries, increased duning the year and the Company
performed strongly sn this sector, where i 15 the clear market leader

The number of trading stes increased by 4 to 75 at the end of December 2007

The Commercial Interiors division had an excellent year, benefiting from strong
market demand, increases to the product range and several acquisiions Sales
grew by 21 4% in total, 12 3% ike for like including some modest pnce
inflation Products were supphed to a wide range of new and refurbishment
projects in both the public and private non-residential building sectors These
included hospitals, health centres, schools, universiies airports and other
transport related faciities, offices, retal developments anernas, hotels

and prisons

In addition to marketing a wider selecion of ceiting and washroom products,
all-metal high performarke doorsets and floorcovenings were added to the
range to complernent our offering to the non-residential sector This ensures
that SIG maintains Its postion as a leading supplier by offering the most
comprehensive range avalable

The number of trading stes ncreased by [0 to 55 at the end of December 2007
Against the background of improved market demand and sales price inflation

of ¢ 4% overall in the sector the Roofing division traded strongly, with sales
up over 18 1% n total B 2% ke for like, compared with 2006




TRADING PERFORMANCE CONTINVED

The Decent Homes programme, which had been qurite slow in 2006,

did pick up and generated ncreased demand for product for the on-going
work of re-roofing older residential properties Storm damage in vanious pars
of the UK mid year also increased the votume of repair and renovation work
in the second half of 2007

Significant sates growth was achieved in new products, particularly in relaton
to the growmg trend towards low maintenance roofine, ranwater and cther
external bulding products, which are increasingly used in new construction as
well a5 in repair and maintenance

The number of trading sttes increased by |5 to 278 at the end of December 2007

The Specialist Construction and Safety Products dwvision had an excellent
year with total sales up by 66 1% mtotal, 14 8% lke for ke on 2006, drven
by strong undertying performance, continued expansion of the product range
and the impact of acquisiions Continued robust market conditions in majar
construction and infrastructure projects created good levelks of demand There
was some volatiity in some product priing, for example steel and chernicals,
but pricing overalt increased year on year by ¢ 3 5%

The aumber of trading stes increased by 10 to 53 at the end of December 2007

MAINLAND EUROPE (38% OF TOTAL SALES)
 Sales increased by £325 9m (53 8%) 1o £931 4m (2006 £605 Sm)

a Like for like sales on a constant currency basss increased by 12 3%

Underlying operating profit increased by £18 3m (66 3%) to £45%m
(2006 £27 6m)

s Underiying operating profit margin increased to 4 % (2006 4 6%)

& Sales and operating profits increased on an underiying like for hke basts
in each country, as well as on a total basis

& Signiicant expansion of geographic coverage, with a totat of 122 trading
sites added during the year, including 21 in two new countries for SIG,
Czech Republic and Slovakia, takng the total to 318 at 31 December 2007
(31 December 2006 196)

In Germany and Austria (50% of sales in Manland Europe} sales were
increased substantially, up 21 29 n local currency and 8 0% like for like in local
currency Overall construction actvty grew on a year on year basis The rate of
growth compared with 2006 was skewed towards the first hatf year, due to the
exceptionally weak market actvity In H1 2006 as a result of extreme adverse
weather conditions

The core insulation and commercial Intenors business made good progress,
and the roofing operations in Germany, which commenced with the acquisition
of a regional business with |2 trading stes in july 2006, was expanded during
the year to a totat of 18 trading sites as a 31 December 2007

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

The growth in demand for speciaiist high temperature insulation materials |
wicreased, partly as a result of investment 1n Germany in power generaton
facilities, and this part of our operations traded strongly Price inflation overall
in Germany and Austria i estmated 10 have been ¢ 3% in the year

The number of trading sites increased by 6 to 82 at the end of December 2007
(31 Decernber 2006 76)

In France (29% of sales in Mainland Europe) the core insulation and
commercial ntenors operations traded very strongly, contributing to total sales
growth in 2007 of 104 4% in local currency iIncluding the contnibution {rom the
large specialist roofing supplies busmess {called Larmére) which was acquired
on 29 June 2007 Thus 15 the largest acquistion made by SIG and the retention
of customers and staff has been extremely high The business has performed
well since joining the SIG Group and 15 continuing the strategy of geographic
expansion throughout France Since the date of acqusition, 6 trading sites

have been added, taking the total to 89 as at 13 March 2008

Overall market demand was reasonably good in Frarce and price inflation
averaged 3% across the product range Like for like sales were ncreased
by 1S 4% in local currency

The number of trading stes increased by 91 to 142 at the end of December 2007
(31 December 2006 51)

in Poland and Central Europe {15% of sales in Mainland Europe), total
sales mncreased by 163%, including the substantial business acqured in Poland
in October 2006, and subsequent acquisitions 1n Poland, Slovakia and
Czech Repubbc dunng 2007

Market demand for bullding products grew dunng the year, as reconstruction
and economic resurgence continues

The core business in Poland, which chiefty sefis insulation and commercial
ntenors products, traded very strongly with sales up 35 6% like for ke over
2006 1n local currency Pnces were volatile throughott the year in some
products, with sales price inflation averaging c 5% overall

The number of trading sites mncreased by 24 to 83 at the end of Decernber 2007
(31 December 2006 59)

Sales in Benehux (6% of total sales in Mainland Europe) grew strongly,

up 38 3% i total, 15 8% hke for Iike, both i local currency Consistent with
SIG s other Manland European businesses, the core insulation and commercal
Interiors operatons performed strongly against the background of good market
condtions Demand from bath building and industry (insulation) increased and
price mflation 1s estmated 1o have been ¢ 3 5% averaged across the produdt
range overall

The number of trading stes increased by | to 1| at the end of December 2007
(31 December 2006 10)
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

TRADING PERFORMANCE CONTINUVED

ACQUISITIONS

A record 27 companies were acqured duning 2007, for a total consideration
including assumed debt of £323m Combined annualised sales of these acquired
businesses 15 £440m of which £2t7m impacted on 2007

The geographic spit of the £440m annualised sales 15 £300m Manland Euwrope,
£140m UK and Ireland By market sector, the spread of businesses acquired
was very wide and added weight to each of our existing business streams,

as shown by the table below

Looking at the acquisitions from a dferent perspective, they can be categornised
as ether 'bolt-on' se adding 1o an existing position n a product range n any one
country, or platform , where we are creating a new posion i a product group
in a country for the first e, from which we would then plan to expand our
position and grow sales and profits gong forward

The ‘platform acquisiions 1n 2007 are as follows

* Number one specalist distnbutor in France of roofing matenials

® Leading UK suppler of nan-residential floonng materials

« insulation and commercial Itenors supplier in Slovakia

» Insulaton and commercal inteniors supplier In Czech Republic

Owr strategy 1s to add to each of these intial acquired positions both by organic
expansion of their product range and geographic coverage, and by makang
further bolt-on’ acquisitions to accelerate the rate and pace of expansion
During the year we expanded the team of In-house professionals who work
on the acquisiuon search, selection and execution programme At the

end of December 2007 we have dedicated specialists located throughout
Mainland Europe and in the UK and Ireland

The post-acquisition action plans are tador-made for each acquisiion and involve
Finance, HR, IT and Commercal Management The integration process with

each of the 2007 acquistions 15 progressing well

2007 ACQUISITICNS - PRODUCT IMPACT

UK and Marnland

Ireland Eurcpe

Insulation . .

Commercial Intenors . .

Roofing and External Elernents . .
Specialst Construction and Safety Products .

SUMMARY OF TRADING PERFORMANCE

In 2007 the Group has expanded signdicantly, geographic coverage has
mcreased in both existng and new countries The speaaist product range has
contnued to widen, and we have invested in inventones and customer service
facilties to mantain and develop our reputation for high quality products and

a high quality service

The continued pursutt and apphication of the Group's ciear Growth Strategy

has once again driven excellent mcreases in sales profits and earmings per share
We believe that 2007 marks another year of sold growth in Shareholder value
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

Sales rose by 32 0% or £595m to £2,455m (2006 £1,860m) Al figures in
the financial review exclude the USA business that SIG sold in November 2006
Like for like sales increased i all geographical locations with growth of 10 9%
in Sterfing and 10 5% on a constant currency bass The Group has an impressve
record of like for like sales growth, averagng over & 3% over the last five years

MARGINS

Gross profit margin decreased from 27 3% to 26 8% reflecting pniaing ‘
pressures as a result of temporary over supply in cestain product sectors,

a mix change m certain products and countries, and the impact of the 2007

acquistions that have hustorically achieved lower gross margins than that of the

Group Pricing management action plans have already been put in place as part

of our integration plans to Improve the future profitabity of these businesses

As a result of tight cost control and operating efficiencies, operating costs as a
percentage of sales fell from 20 8% to 20 3% The improvement in operating
costs offset the reduchon in the gross margin leaving the undertying operating
profit margin unchanged at 6 5%

OPERATING PROFIT

Underlying operating profit mcreased by 31 3% or £38 Om to £159 4m,

with £14 2m {12 2%) of the growth being Ike for ke Operaung profit

increased by 24 2% or £27 7mto £142 2m '

FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs before hedge ineflectveness and financing tems refating to
our defined benefit pension schermnes (1e net borrowing costs) increased by
£6 3m to £18 9m in 2007 The net borrowang cost as a percentage of average
debt in 1ssue during the year reduced from 6 2% 10 5 7% This 1s pnmarily due
to the Group borrowing a larger proporton of its overall debt in non-Sterling
currencies that bear a kower interest rate than Sterfing, in ine with the Group s

Treasury palicy

Net berrowing costs benefited frem our continued efforts to manage our
warking capttal, which reduced the daly amount of debt outstanding with our
banks Further detals are provided i the cash flow and financeal posiion section
on pages 21 and 22

Further detalls of SIG's interest rate policies are prowided in the interest rate
nisk secuion on page 26

Finance incorne and charges relating to our defined benefit pension schemes
amounted to £0 4m in 2007 (2006 £0 ém) Further detals are provided in
Note 29¢ to the Accounts on pages i05to 110

Hedge ineffectiveness on certan finanong derivatives gave rise to finance
income of £1 4m (2006 £1 4m) Thisis recorded an the “Other tems® column
of the Conschdated Income Statement and 15 explaned further in the sectons
that follow

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Undertying profit before tax mncreased by 29 5% or £31 9m to £140 Im
(2006 £108 2m) representing another year of solid profitable growth Profit
before tax, 1 e after all “Other tems”, mcreased by 21 0% or £21 6m to
£1243m (2006 £102 7m)




NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS
An explanation of the non-undertying "Other tems” included within profit
before tax of £15 Bm (2006 £5 5m) s set out below

& amortssation of acquired wtangibles — £17 2m (2006 £6 9m)
The accounting pohicies section on page 69 and Note 12 1o the Accounts
on page 88 provide detals of what 1s included within intangible assets
and over what periods the assets are amortised The increase in the
amortisation expense Is a result of our signficant acquisiion actraty
during 2006 and 2007, and

» hedge ineflectiveness — income of £1 4m (2006 £1 4m) There s a
small element of ineffectiveness in our Sterling/Euro net mnvestment hedge
denvatves that we have held since 2001 1n relation to our prwvate placement
notes Under IAS 32 and IAS 39 the movement in the fair value of this
ineffective portion 1s recorded in the Consolidated Income Staternent
This hedge ineffectiveness 1s explained further within the Treasury risk
management section on page 27

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Overseas earnings streams are translated at the average rate of exchange
for the year with balance sheets at closing rates The table below sets out
the relevant exchange rates used

Average rate Closing rate

2007 2004 2007 2006
Euro 1.458 | 468 1362 | 490
US Dallar* N/A | 847 N/A | 898
Polish Zloty 5 500 3717 4 880 S 683
Czech Koruna 39.732 N/A 36 185 N/A
Slovak Koruna 48 482 N/A 45 751 MN/A

* As aresult of SIG seling its USA business on 20 November 2006 the US Dollar
rates shown are for the peniod up to 20 November 2006 (average rate) and as
at 20 Neovember 2006 (dosing rate)

Fluctuations In exchange rates have and will continue to gve nse to translation
difierences of overseas earmings streams when translated nto Sterhng

The movement in average exchange rates compared to 2006 had a very
semall effect on total overseas earmings streams Total sales were increased by
£11 4m and profit before tax was increased by £0 5m Further detals of SIG's
foreign exchange policies are detaled in the foreign currency risk section on
pages 26 and 27

TAXATION

The incame tax charge on underlying profits amounts to £41 9m

(2006 £32 5m) which represents an eflectve rate of 29 9% (2006 30 0%)
In 2008, the Group will benefit from lower tax rates i the UK and Germany,
and as a consequence we currently antscipate the effective tax rate to be up
to one percentage point lower n 2008

In 2007 cash tax payments were broadly in ine with the underiying tax charge

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EP5")

Undertying basic EPS amounted to 74 8p (2006 61 3p), which represents

an increase of 22 09% Basic EPS amounted to 66 3p (2006 58 ¥p), which
represents an increase of 14 196 The weighted average number of shares in
1ssue in the peniod rose by 7 Sm to 130 Im (2006 122 6m) This increase was
primanly due to the ssue of | 1,363,637 ordinary shares under a share placing
that completed on 30 May 2007 Further detals of the share placing are
provded on page 22

DIVIDENDS

The proposed final dvdend of 18 7p per share delvers a full year ddend
of 26 7p representing an ncrease of 30 2% This sets another new record
for dvidend growth and is a reflection of the Board s confidence in the
business going forward Dmidend cover, when measured aganst basic EPS

of 66 3p, amounts to 2 5 tmes {2006 2 8 times) Going forward SIG intends
to maintan a policy of dvdend progression, whilst maintaining dvidend cover
of between two and three tmes  The chart on page 20 tracks the dwidend
growth over the last ten years

ACQUISITIONS

Acquistions are a key component of SIG's growth strategy, supplernenting
organic growth A totl of 27 acquistions were completed in the year for
a consideration of £323m (including assumed net debt and contingent
consideration) all of which complement existing businesses within SIG

The Group continues to strengthen is management structures and corporate
development resources io enable it to successfully continue ds acquistion
strategy The table below prowvides a detaled breakdown of the acquisition
spend over the last two years

1007 2006
Number of transactions 27 23
Annualised sales £440m £240m
Additional trading sites 148 133
Acquisttion consideration
(including assumed net debt
and contingent consideration) £323m £109m
Transactions by geographic segment
UK and Ireland 18 19
Maintand Europe 9 4

27 23

Al of the acqusiions meet the strategc requirernent of being supplers
of specalist products chiefly to the bulding and construction ndustry and
the integration process of each acquisiion is progressing well

The 148 addtonal stes added through the 2007 acquisthon programme
have enabled SIG to reach new customers, extend our produa offening
1o existing and new customers and to further improve our standards of
service to all customers thereby contnuing the process of strengthering
the Company gomng forward

In order to support SIG's continued acquisiuon strategy during 2007
the Company ncreased its borrowings from its relationship banks and
undertook an equity placing exercise Detalls of the equity plaang are
set out on page 22
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

TEN YEAR HISTORY - DIVIDEND

2 6 o7p 2007 full year dividend

205p

16 Bp

124 14 0p
P

93 102p 1 0p Hep

84p P

1958 1999 2000 2004 2002 1003 2004 2005 2006 2007

The proposed final dividend of 18.7p per
share delivers a full year dividend of 26.7p,
representing an increase of 30.2%. This sets
another new record for dividend growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Shareholders’ funds increased by £222 Im to £573 6m (2006 £351 5m)
The increase compnsed the following elements

£m
Profit after tax attnbutable to equity holders of the Comparry 862
Drdends pad (28 4)
Exchange differences on assets and labrities after tax 128
Movements attnbutable to share options 08
Actuanat gain on pension schemes {net of deferred tax) 42
Equity placing (net of 1ssue expenses) 147 2
New share capital ssued under employee share schemes 09
Increase in Shareholders' funds 2221

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the pension schemes operated by SIG are set out in Note 29¢
to the Accounts starung on page 105

SIG contnbuted £5 5m (2006 £2 9m) Mo its eght (2006 six) defined
benefit pension schemes dunng the year, which included £2 5m as a special
contribution iInto the man defined benefit scheme in December 2007 The total
charge in respect of defined benefit pension schemes to the Consolidated
tncome Statement was £2 3m (2006 £2 9m), of this total £1 9m (2006 £2 3m)
was charged 10 operating expenses and £0 4m (2006 £0 6m) was charged
1o net finance costs

The overafl gross defined benefit pension schemes labilty reduced duning
the year by £8 2m to £15 7m This can be broken down as follows

Inerease/
{decrease)

N pensson
scheme hability
£m
Increase in mortality assumption from 24 0 to 27 5 years
in the mamn scheme 50

Experence gains and [osses in all schemes 44
Change in financial assurnptions in all schemes® {159)
Cash contributions to the schemes above the P&L charge ™ (32
The inclusion of two book reserve penston schemes

in two Mainland European acquisibons 10
Exchange difference 05
Decrease in persion scheme lability 82)

* There have been a number of changes in financial assumpuions, the key tems being
an ncrease in the discount rate used 16 value the pension scheme abiles from
519 to 5 7% ard changes in the assumptions relating to the sexlement of ablites

~ Ths 1s pnnapally due to a specal contnbution to the man scheme of £2 5m made
in December 2007 on the athce of the actuary followng on from the trienmial pension
scheme valuztion undertaken as at 31 December 2006

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

On adwice of the pension scheme actuary, a further speaa! contribution
has been made into the main scheme in [anuary 2008 of £7 2m

The Group continues to monstor the ife expectancy assumptions used

to value ts pension scheme labities For the main pension scheme,

the life expectancy for a male employee beyond the normal retirement
age of 6015 27 5 years (2006 24 0 years}), which 1s considered appropriate
for a scheme of this nature

The cost of the Group's defined contnbution schemes increased by 7 7%
(£0 3m) to £4 2m

CASH FLOW AND FINANCIAL POSITION

SIG has benefited from another good year of generating cash from operating
actvities to help support its strategy of investment in both orgamc and
acquistion-based growth The following table explans the movernent in
SIG's net debt

2007 2006
im im
Cash flow from operating actnities 1603 1324
Interest and tax 540 (48 4)
Maintenance capital expenditure® (303) 24 1)
Free cash flow avalable for investment 759 599
Acquistion investment {including loan notes issued
to vendorsy** @c1Irn {104 6)
Net proceeds (after expenses) from sale of LSA business - 253
Investment capital expendrture® (303) (197
Dnadends (including minorty dnadends) (292) (224)
Proceeds from equity issue 148 | |19
Other tems ncluding foreign exchange
and fair value movements (47 5) 55
Movement i net debt (200 1) (54 1}
Opening net debt (228 B) (1747
Closing net debt (428 9) (228 8)

*  Mantenance capial expendiure 15 considered as equralent 10 depreciation with the
balance being considered investment capital expenditure Caprtal expendrture shown
above includes finance jeases drawn down in each year

*+ The acquisrion imvestment figure exdudes contingent consideraton of £5 7m
(2006 £4 6m), which has been recognised as a kability in the Accounts but 15 yet
1o gve nse to a cash flow
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED
CASH FLOW AND FINANCIAL POSITION CONTINUED
Key points to note are

» included within “Cash flow from operating actvities” 1s a working caprial
increase of £29 0m which represents | 5 0% of our like for like sales
increase of £193 Om This s above SIG's year end working capital to sales
ratio of 10 4% and represents an addwional investment in working caprtal
at the year end of £8 9m, which 1 principally related to invesiment in
working capral in newly acquired businesses,

o the total level of nvestment in our business being acquistion Investment
(including contingert consideration) and investment capital expenditure
amounts 1o £353 Im {2006 £128 9m) Capral expendture ndudes new
delwvery vehicles, new brownfield sites and a number of site relocations
to larger trading sttes  These trading sie relocations increase our operating
capactty and will ensure we fully benefit from any upturn n market demand
Also included in captal expenditure 15 £7 Om (2006 £nil) in relation to
scaffolding equipment, hired out to customers by a newly acquired business
in the UK Specialist Construction Products division The net capital
expendture to deprecation ratio amounted to | 77 excluding the £7 Om
hire equipment (2006 1 82), and

¢ a result of the €/£ exchange rate mowng to | 362 at 31 December 2007,
the Group's Euro debt has increased in value by £43 3m in Sterling terms
This 15 the pnncipal component of "Other tems” in the table on page 21

It s ymportant to note that the Group's Euro assets have increased by

more than ths in value, and f the exchange rate continues at ths level,

then the reported 2008 Euro denominated profits will also benefit from

this strengthering of the Euro

Overall, despite our sigrdicant rate of like for like sales growth {10 9%), wheh
has the natural effect of increasing our working capial requirements to the
detnment of our cash balances, we have converted 78% (2006 77%) of the
underiying profit after tax attnbutable to equity holders into free cash as follows

Interest cover and leverage are the two key debt ratios forming the basis of the
Group's borrowing covenants The levels at the end of 2007 stll provide the
Group with significant headroom against the levels set out in the covenants

Detalls of the Group's Treasury nsk management poliies are set out on
pages 26 and 27 of this review

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group manages its captal 1o ensure that entities in the Group will be

able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity bafance The capital structure
of the Group consssts of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed n
Note 18, cash and cash equwvalents and equity attnbutable to equity holders

of the Parent Company, comprsing issued capital, reserves and retaned
earmungs as disclosed in Note 25

EQUITY PLACING

On 30 May 2007 SIG placed 11,363 637 new ordinary shares with
wstitutional and other investors to rase gross proceeds of £150m

(the “Placing™ The shares were placed at 1,320p each, raising £147 2m
after commussions and expenses The Placing proceeds have been used to
fund the acquisibon of Larmére and the increased acquision spend They
also prowde SIG with financial flexabiity to take advantage of acqursiion
opportunities as they anse and ersure that SIG continues to drve s
organic growth through ongoing investment In its businesses

WORKING CAPITAL STATISTICS

The ratio of year end working capital to annualised sales for continuing
businesses at 3| December 2007 amounted to 10 4% The comparable
working capral to annualised sales ratio for 2006 15 10 5%, demonstrating
a small overzll mprevement in the rate

The statistics relating to specfic components of working capital after adusting
for both acquistions ard disposals 1n both years are as follows

2007 2006

"‘z;'l 2‘32: Inventory days 42 38

Free cash low avalable for mvestment 75.9 599 Iraderecenable days 48 48

Underying profit after tax attnbutable to equity helders 973 777 Trade payable days 38 38

Free cash flow avallable for investment as a percentage Bad debt charge 35 2 % of sales 05% 07%
of undertying profit after tax attnbutable 10 equity holders  78% T7%

78% represents a measure of SIG's cash conversion ability and s in line with
prior year Working capital managermnent continues to be a key area of focus
across all of SIG's businesses Our ability 1o generate free cash flow s 3 vital
foundation to support ongoing business investment

A summary of the key debt rauos s as follows

2007 2006
Geanng® 75% 65%
Interest cover**® 8 x 9 2x
Leverage — net debt to urklerlying EBITDA®** 226x 1 58x

* Net debt deaded by net assets

** Underlyng operating proft dinded by tmderlymg net finance charges

se+Net debt dnaded by continuing underlyng operating profit before depreaaion
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Inventory days have increased by 4 to 42 This 1s prinapally a result of nclhuding
the acquision of the French roofing dstnbution business in the year Grven the
essental repars and maintenance focus of this business in line wath our exssting
rocfing businesses, nventory days are much higher than the Group average
Excluding the effect of the French roofing distnbution business, inventory days
were held at 38 days The Groups trade recewable days were held at an
histonical kow of 48 days reflecuing our eflorts in credst control nght across the
Group The number of days we take to pay cur payables was also held aganst
the prior year

The bad debt charge as a percentage of sales has shown a marked improvernent
agamst pnor year Ths reduction reflecs our proficency in aredt management and a
stable buiding and construction market n 2007 Our policy i respect of recogntion
of provisions for doubtiul debts has contnued to be consstently applied




QUTLOOK

The Group's sales are more heavly weighted towards non-resdental
construction, both in the UK and Ireland and i Maniand Europe, and 1t 1s
believed that the substantial pipeline of work in progress of both public and
prvately funded construction programmes wall continue to prowde the Group
with attractrve opportunities In fis four main product sectors

Insulation and related products ts the Group's largest product sector and
demand 1s expected to continue to increase at a faster rate than overall
construction actvity in the UK 2nd treland and Mainland Europe, both across
the new construction and refurbishment markets This will continue to be
drven by a range of factors including concern for the emaronment, nsing
energy costs, new legislation seeking to hmi energy consumption, new
bullding regulations, and grant schemes to improve energy efficiency in
exsting residential properties The Group s conuinuing to nvest to ensure

that 1t benefits from this expected growth in demand going forward,

and captalses on s market leading postion

On a broader basis across the Group, a signfficart range of expansion
opportunities, both organic and acquisstion, are being actvely pursued
The number of indmdual trading sites has increased substantially over
recent years throughout the operating regions, and this programme
of expanding market coverage 1s planned to continue

In 2007, the Group expanded s operations and trading actmties significantly
and these dynamics prowide 2 strong platform corning into 2008 Trading in
2008 has begun well and the Board believes that the Group will contnue

ts track record of outperforming across its markets The Board s confident
of {urther progress in 2008 and beyond

RESOURCES

EMPLOYEES

The commtment drve and enthusiasm of all SIG's employees are ts greatest
asset and SIG 5 abilty to meet the demands of s customers suppliers and
Shareholders 15 dependent upon therr efiorts Throughout SIG, regardiess
of country or sector, we believe our people are recognised as the bestin
their particular field SIG's policy and strategy towards its employees 15
detalled further n the Corporate Social Respensibility Report on page 41
Traning, coaching and the opportunty for personal career advancement
within the Company are important features of how SIG seeks to recrut,
retain and develop skilled staff

BRAND STRENGTH
SIG operates under a wide range of trading names in the respective markets
and countries n which it has trading sres

Many of these brans, inchiding the onginal company name, Sheflield Insutabons
are widely recognised throughout therr respective market sectors or countnes
as the leading suppher offenng very focused products and services to customers

SIG believes that the strength and market awareness of its brands are
important assets

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

COMPETITIVE POSITION

SIG aims to occupy leading posiuons as a specialist supplier in each of its main
rarkets of insulation, roofing and extemal elements commeraal intenors and
specialist construction and safety produdts A positon of market leadership
has been achieved in a number of specfic markets Operations in the other
countnes and business streams are continuing to develop thewr postion

INVENTORY
immediate avadability of a wide range of specialist matenals 15 wtal to the
customers served by SIG

Matenaks are often required within houss on an emergency bass For example,
when a roof leak occurs and irmediate repairs are necessary to prevent
damage to the bulding and s contents, or in a chemical processing plant
where a pipeline becomes dangerously overheated due 10 2 breakdown

of the insulation

In both of these examples, customers have an unplanned emergency need for
speciiic and specialist products in order to prevent substantial damage and costs

A fundarnental feature of SIG s position in the supply chain s havng these
products, in depth i strategically located trading sttes to ensure customer
requirements can be met

TRADING SITES

SIG has an extersive and expanding network of trading sites as demonstrated

in the chart on page 24 These are an important resource and an imporiart
feature of the SIG business model in each country of operation as they enable
the local market surrounding each trading site to be serviced on an mmediate
avalability basss For customers conducting work on a repona or nabonal bass in
each country, SIG can provde a full natonal service using locally hekd inverttory,
thus avoxding the time and cost penaltes of shipping products over large ditances

FLEET DELIVERY CAPABILITY

SIG uses a mix of wholly owned delvery vehicles and external hire to delver
goods o customers This enables avallability and service to customers to be
maxrsed whist ensuning that the cost base 15 flexible to cope with penods
of higher or lower daly dermand

The direct ownership of a large proportion of the fleet and the management

of this resource on 2 local basis 15 an important feature of the speed, flexibility
and responsiveness that SIG offers to customers
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

FIVE YEAR HISTORY — TRADING SITES

779 trading sites as at 31 December 2007

412

618
496

kXl

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

SIG has an extensive and expanding network
of trading sites.
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OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

There are a number of potential nsks and uncertainties which could have a
materal impact on SIG's long term performance SIG has a comprehensive
system of nsk management installed in all parts of ts business and quickly
introduces this o new acquisiions The processes are descrbed in detal
on page S| of the Corporate Govemance Report

LEVELS OF MARKET DEMAND IN THE BUILDING AND
CONSTRUCTION MARKETS IN WHICH S1G OPERATES
Approxmately 909% of SiG's sales are made to the buikiing, construction
and cml engineening industries

These industnes are driven by private and government expenditure and include
major new construction projects (e g airports, hosprtals, schools and sports
complexes), new residential housing developmerits and a wide range of
renovation, upgracing and repair work on existing bulldings

SIG 15 exposed to changes in the level of actvity, and therefore demand, from
these industnes Government pohcy and expenditure plans, private investor
deasions, the general econormic cimate and both business and (to a lesser
extent) consumer confidence are all factors which can influence the level

of bullding actmty and therefore the demand for many of SIG's products

Approxmately |0% of SIG's sales are made wto speciic industrial apphcations,
especally where there are temperature critrcal processes and the use of highty
specialist Insulaton 15 an important part of the process plant itselfl These industnes
include power generation oil and gas processing chemical pharrmaceutical and
cold storage facimes

SIG 15 exposed 1o actmty levels and therefore demand for sorme of its products
wathm these dverse industnes  These industnes would, in turn, be affected by
the general economic cimate, energy demand and energy costs and business

investment decsions n majer ndustnes such as power generaton and petrochercals

COMPETITOR RISK

SIG has a mix of both direct speciahst competion and some overiap with
more general suppliers (such as general builders merchants) in all ts marke1ts
and countnes

As a distrbutor handling and supplying producis manufactured by other
comparues SIG 15 ttself dependent upon other comparies for in excess of
909% of the products that 4 sefls The majorty of products that are sold by SIG
are relatively bulky and inexpensive in relation to thew mass and the cost of
transport This means that the nsk faced by SIG of prce disruption and possible
cross border or international trading having a detnmental impact on paces in
any particular country s low

Similarty, the nsk posed by internet-based trading dependent upon parcel-camer
serice 15 very low because of the buky nature of most of the products sold by
SIG and the fact that speciahst handling and delvery serwces are an important
feature of the service prowded by SIG to many customers

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ("IT™)

SIG uses a range of computer systems to prowvide order processing, nventory
control and financial management within each country Any lengthy fallure or
disruption to the [T system in any business untt or country would resuft in loss
of sales and delays to cash flow These systems are not mterdependent, and
there are dedicated support staff directly employed, together with external
support service providers, monitonng the [T systems

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

COMMERCIAL RELATIONSHIPS

SIG 15 exposed to changes in relationships with both customers and suppliers
It s a key task for the operational management in each country and business
unit to maintain and develop relationships with customers and supphers

CREDIT RISK

SIG by the nature of ts posruon in the supply chamn, buys products from
gty reputable suppliers in bulk and sells the producis to a wide vanety
of professional contractors on credit terms SIG sels to the majorty of

its customers on credit terms  There 1s a sk that customers do not pay
as the typical customer does not have many assets SIG has therefore
developed well proven credt control guidelines and procedures that are
designed to minimise its credit risk whikt trying to maxmise sales potental
For the year ended 3| Decemnber 2007 bad debt expense amounted 10
0 5% of sales {2006 0 7% of sales)

GOVERNMENT LEGISLATION

$IG operates in a number of countries nght across Europe each with their
own laws and regulations, encompassing environmenta! legat, health and safety,
employment and tax matters SIG 1s conmitted to complying with each local
requirement and the clear devolvement of responsibility to local operating
management together with the employment of competent adwisers supports this
requirement Changes to legslaton are monttored ocally and appropnate actions
taken to ensure they are ncorporated ito our business polices and procedures

TRANSPORT

In excess of 70% of SIG's sales are delvered to customers Prolonged
disruption to road transport systems of the availability of vehicle fuel would
result in reduced sales in any country n which this may ocour

PRODYUCT AYAILABILITY AND PRODUCT PRICES

The avadabiity and the market prices of products that the Group supplies

can change These changes can affect the Group s sales and operating profits
The Group has very regular dialogue with s suppliers 1o ensure that it protects
its posiion regarding product avalabilty and product priong

If product demand outstnps supply be it due to demand rising or supply falling,
then this could have an mpact on the Group s ability to service s customers'
needs The factories that produce msulabon products take a number of years
to build and so f demand exceeds the production capaaty product shortages
will ensue and this could damage the Group s ability to fulil is customers’
requirements The Group does however source its products from a number
of manufacturers in order to reduce its reliance upon any one manufacturer

The Group negotiates purchase pnces with its suppliers The abifity of SIG
1o secure sausfactory terms of trade s key to its ability to supply the products
1o #s customers at competitive pnces

Rssing product prices are good for SIG as our standard gross margin 1s achieved
on a higher selling price resufting in improved overhead recovery thus provding
a hugher net margin Reing prces may ako prowde SIG with the opportunity to
benefi from inventory gans whereby nventory s bought at the lower prce and
sold on at the hugher pnce Conversely, falling product prices are not good for
$IG Over the last {few years, product pnce inflation across the basket of SIG
products has been posave rather than negatve
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
IDENTIFICATION AND INTEGRATION OF ACQUISITIONS
The Group's growth strategy 1s partly dependent upon the wentfication

of appropriate acquistuion opportuniies at an appropriate pnce and the
successful integration of an acquistion into the SIG Group SIG 1s comimiting
more dedicated resources to the research of new markets, the ongination
of appropriate acquisiion targets and the approprate due diligence and
contract negotiation process Once acquired, SIG 1s constantly evaluating
the management structures of s businesses to ensure that appropriate
management time can be dedicated to new businesses

PEOPLE

SIG 1 dedicated to providing high quality service 10 its customers and therefore
needs to have the best skiled and experienced staff available within the industry
SIG 1s commutted to prowiding employees with a professional working
enviranment where hard work and commitment 1s encouraged and rewarded
accordingly SIG is increasingly INvesting more resources in developing and
training s employees, dentfying high potential Indmduals who will become
tomarrow’s managers and senior Managers and attracting and recruting the
best people into tts businesses in the future

PRODUCT DEFECT CLAIMS

Product quality 15 2 key reason why customers would buy from SIG The Group
15 careful to source products very selectvely to ensure any possible nsk associated
with products of inferior qualty s minimised

TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT

SiG's Finance and Treasury policies set out the approach to managng treasury
nsk These policies are approved by the Board of Directors on a regular basis
The treasury risks that SIG faces are interest rate, hquidity and foreign currency
nisk ansing from its nternational operations

SIG faces a translation risk In respect of its Euro, Polish Zloty, Czech Koruna
and Slovak Koruna profits SIG also faces a transtation risk from the US Dollar in
respect of its private placement borrowings SIG s financial instruments other than
derwvatives, comprise borrowings, cash and hquid resources and various tems
such as trade recenvables and trade payables that anse directly from fts operations
SIG ertters into dervative financal instruments (principally foresgn currency and
interest rate swaps) to hedge certan currency msks arsing frorm SIG's operations
and to hedge interest expenses ansing from SIG s sources of finance

Details of demvative finanaal instruments are shown in Note |8 to the
Accounts on pages 94 to 96

It 15, and has been throughout the penod under review, SIG's policy that
no trading n financial Instrumertts or specufative transactions be undertaken
To mimmsse the credit nsk assoaated with dervatve financal instruments,
SIG only enters denvative financial instruments with s principal bankers,
which are both AA rated by Standard & Poor s

SIG manages fts financial iabilties using denvatve finanaial instruments where
appropriate to ensure that it has appropriate maturity profiles in refation to
its borrowings and appropreate levels of protection against interest rate and
exchange rate fluctuations
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The Group’s financial labifties at 31 December 2007 of £518 6m (2006 £292 Fmj)
can be analysed as follows

e £226 3m (2006 £137 2m) has a maturty profile of greater than five years,

« £382 7m (2006 £}47 6m) s dencmmnated n foreign currencies held to
partally hedge the assets of our overseas busnesses

* £379 Im (2006 £223 4m) carnes a fixed rate of interest, and
e £504 Om (2006 £287 3m) 15 borrowed on an unsecured basis

As at 3] December 2007, SIG had undrawn committed borrowing faaities
from dis debt providers of £96 2m (2006 £113 9m)

Geanng increased dunng the year from 65% to 75% as a result of increased
Investment i property, plant and equpment, working caprtal and acquisitions

INTEREST RATE RISK

SIG finances s operations through a miture of retaned profits, Sharehalders’
equity, bank prvate placement and other borrowings SiG uses derwvative
financal instrurnents to create the desred currency and interest rate profile,
so managing SiG's exposure 10 interest rate fluctuabons

A small proparton of SIG's assets are funded using fixed rate finance lease
contracts At 31 December 2007 outstanding habilities i respect of such
contracts amounted to £9 7m (2006 £2 8m}

At 31 December 2007, 73% or £379 Im (2006 76% or £223 3m) of the
Group's gross debt, being £518 6m (2006 £292 9m), was m the form of fixed
rate debt with an average remaining fixed Iife of 5 0 years (2006 5 3 years)

LIQUIDITY RISK

SIG seeks a balance between certainty of funding and a flexible, cost-effectve
borrowang structure The Group uses a mixture of sources of funding in order
to reduce the nsk of being over reliant upon any one provider The key sources
of finance are private placement note providers, bemg manly USA pension
funds, and prinaipal bankers, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc and Bardlays Bank
plc The last private placement transaction completed on | November 2006
mcreased the certainty of the Group's debt funding, being provided

on a committed 7, 10 and |2 year basis

SIG has a policy to have a portfolio of borrowing facilmes with differerit
maturiues to minimise the possible pressures of a large refinancing exerase

The year end maturity profile and value of undrawn committed borrowing
facilires are set out in Note 19 to the Accounts on page 96

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

SIG has a number of overseas businesses whose revenues and costs
are denominated n the currencies in which the operations are located
Approximately 38% of SIG's 2007 revenues were in foreign currencies,
being Euros, Pohsh Zloty, Czech Koruna and Slovak Koruna

The vast majonty of 5IG's seles and purchases are not cross border When
cross border transactions occur it 15 SIG s polcy to elirminate currency exposure
at that time through forward currency contracis, £ exposure is considered t©
be matenal



TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK CONTINUED

The Consolidated Balance Sheet 15 inherently at nsk from movements in the
Sterling value of ts net investments in foreign businesses This rsk s migated
by SIG combwnung financial Eabrties and derwatves in currences that partially
hedge the net investment values A1 31 December 2007 SIG had borrowings
amounting to €384m, PLN94m and CZK313m that are designated as net
nvestment hedges

The net after tax effect on the Consol:dated Balance Sheet of currency
transaction and translation differences relating to our overseas subsidiaries
in 2007 was a gan of £11 Bm (2006 loss of £2 4m) This signicant gain arose
principally as a result of the 8 6% year on year apprecabion of the Euro versus
Sterfing (£ 362 at 3| December 2007 versus ££1 490 at 3| December 2006),
thus increasing the carrying value of SIG's net investments in its Euro
denorminated businesses

HEDGE INEFFECTIVENESS

Hedge inefflectiveness income of £1 4m (2006 £1 4m) has been dassiied
n the “Other tems" column of the 2007 Consclidated Income Statement
The income relates to the release of the neffectve porbion of the Sterling
to Euro dernvatve financial instruments held as a lability in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet The ineflective portion now remaining as a ability amounts
to £1 4m (2006 £2 Bm) These denvatives are held to form a net investment
hedge of our European assets and were entered into as part of the private
placement transaction i 2001

OTHER MATTERS

SHAREHOLDER RETURN

SIG has delvered a 15 2% return on caprtal employed (2006 17 6%), which
compares favourably to SIG's esumated werghted average cost of capral of

7 1% (2006 7 79%), prowding another year of continued growth in Shareholder
value The reduction on prior year reflects the difutve eflect of acquisiions
made in 2007 SIG's strategy 1s to continually enhance the returns from
acquired and core businesses to increase this return, before taking inio
account the effect of future acquisiuons

As at 12 March 2008, SIG's share pnice ckosed a £7 645 per share, representing
a market captalisation of £1,032m at that date The total dnvidend for the year

of 26 7p (2006 20 5p) provides Shareholders with a yiekd on this date of 3 5%

D) tliod ¢ 4

SIG monttors relatve Total Shareholder Return ("TSR) for assessing relatrve
financial performance As at 31 December 2007 the Company's share price
was £7 475 per share When dvidends are included this geves a TSR of 402%
over a five year performance period A performance graph has been included
on page 57 where the Group's TSR 15 compared with the FTSE Support
Senvices Index which produced a TSR of 64% over the same five year period

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are confident on the basis of current finanaizl projections and
facries avallable that SIG has adequate resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the Accounts

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

¥YIA IHL 4O M3IIATY

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This Business Review has been prepared to provide the Company’s
Shareholders with a fair review of the business of the Company and a
descnption of the prinaipal nsks and uncertainties faang t It may not be reked
upon by anyone, induding the Comparny's Shareholders for any other purpose

Thus Business Review and ather sections of this report contain forward looking
statemnents that are subject 10 nsk factors including the econormuc and business
arrcumnstances occurnng from ime te ime N countries and markets in which
the Group operates and nsk factors assogated wath the building and construction
sectors By ther nature, forward looking statements involve a numnber of risks
uncertainties and future assumptions because they relate to events and/or
depend on arcurnstances that may or may net eccur n the future and could
cause actual results and outcomes to differ matenally from those expressed

n or implied by the forward looking statlements No assurance can be gven
that the forward looking statements in this Business Review will be reahsed
Staternents about the Directors’ expectations bekefs, hopes plans, intentions
and strategies are inherertly subject to change and they are based on expeatations
and assumptions as to future events, arcumstances and other factors which
are in some cases outside the Company's control Actual results could differ
matenally from the Company s current expectations

It 1s believed that the expectations set out in these forward looking statements
are reasonable but they may be affected by a wide range of variables which
could cause actual results or trends 1o difer materally, including but not hmited
to, changes in nsks associzled with the Company's growth strategy, fluctuations
in product pniang and changes in exchange and interest rates

The forward looking statements should be read i parucular in the context
of the specific nsk factors for the Company sdentified on pages 25 and 26

of this Business Review The Company's Shareholders are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on the forward looking statements This Business Review
has not been audited or otherwse independernily verfied The infermation
contained in this Business Review has been prepared on the basis of the
knowledge and nformation avalable to Directors at the date of is preparaton
and the Company does not undertake any obligation to update or rewise thrs
Business Review duning the financal year ahead

DAVID WILLIAMS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

GARETH DAVIES
FINANCE DIRECTOR
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INSULATION

tnsulation matenals are used across all areas of construction and industry
Tradmonally they have been used to resist the transfer of heat and fire

but are also becoming impertant in the managerment of sound transmission
within buldings In addtion the goal of reducing carbon emissions is placing
Increasing Importance on the use of approprate nsufation materials and systems

High energy costs and environmental concerns dnve the use of nsulation
produdts across a wide range of construction and industnial applications

In general, these applications fall mto three categones of heat, fire and
sound management all of which are subject o the spearfic Bulding
Regulations in each country

The most widespread application 1s that of heat management where
insutation 15 most commonly used to retain heat within a building or industrial
process However there are also applications such as cold stores, where the
requirement is to keep heat out Fire protection 15 another important apphcation
for insutation. Good design, matenal specfication and stallation are vital in
protecting buildings from the ravages of fire and ultirately helps save Iives
The third applicaton of insutation s that of sound control Ceties and towns
are becorming increasingly dense and the abiity to munimise the transmssion
of noise between dwellings 15 now an integral part of building design

The technical capabihties for shis application are developing apace and

the Group has positioned rself as a leader within this area as well as the
wider insulation market

In all these areas of apphcation, SIG works closety with leading manufacturers
to bring a wide range of products 1o rmarket and provide the technical experise

which only a specialist business is able to offer
GROWTH DRIVERS

The Group has over 190 trading sttes in Europe that are focused on the
requirements of the insufaton rmarket and arep:ble to provde expert adwice, e RegU1atlon
wide stock holding and rapid service and delivery In the UK, the Group s also
engaged n domestic insufation contracting improving the efficiency of existing
residential properties through a number of Government supported schemes
and the prcF:wsF:u of built-in insulation 1N new dwelhngs TherSroup has also . ngh ene I"gy costs
developad sts own fabncation faciities which have the capabilty to prowde

bespoke solutions and thereby offer a service that differentiates tseff from

mainstrearm competmion

e Environmental awareness

The Group has over 190 trading sites
in Europe that are focused on the
requirements of the insulation market.
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FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE
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CASE STUDY
FURTHER DEVELOPMENT OF A SPECIALIST NICHE PRODUCT LINE

Structural insulation 1s the primary insulation market sector
which provides products that typically insulate temperatures
up to 50°° Industrial insulation s another important nsulation
rmarket sector and prowvides products that typically insulate from
180" to +1,100° In addition, there 1s a tugh temperature
insulation market sector that insulates temperatures from
500°to 2,000°C Dunng 2007, SIG strengthened 1ts presence
in the high temperature insulation market, by acquiring a
leading speciahist in this highly techrical sector This business
development inttiative prowides SIG with a platform from
which to build its European market share and expertise

High temperature products are used in industrial applications
that use a signficant amount of energy and typically include
power plant, petrochermical and gas installations and metal
processing Industries
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ROOFING AND EXTERNAL ELEMENTS

The roof 1s the most crtical part of any bullding It protects the mtegrty of the
bulding's structure and the building’s contents from the elements Repar and
maintenance 15 often an urgent requirementt and this requires suitable products
to be readily available on demand

Each trading site offers matenals from the leading manufacturess of rocfing
matenals and supphes products for priched, flat ndustnal and agriculturat
applications As the largest speciahist suppler of reofing matenals in Europe,
the Group 15 able to keep at the forefront of innovations and provide its
custorners with a level of technical know-how unrivalled in the market As well
as speciaist roofing matenals, each location offers a range of accessones such
as tools and faangs, ventlabon access equipment, safety products and insulation
matenals Many of these accessories are core produdt areas for other Group
businesses and the Roofing business Is able to draw on the expenence and
techrucal knowledge of its sister businesses as well as taking advantage of
Group procurement

SIG 15 also a keading suppher of reclamed and pre-used roof tiles and slates
which have two key advantages over newly manufactured products Firstly they
remove the need for energy consuming manufacture and secondly, their aged
and worn character prowides an aesthetically pleasing appearance that matches
that of the local ervironment, something that is increasingly mportant to locat
communities and planning agencies

The on-going need for repar or replacement of existing roofs, whether as the
result of natural wear and tear or of storm damage, creates a resibent market for
roofing materals The ernergency nature of some repairs requres matenals 1o
be readiy avalable from local stock and these demands dictate the nature ofthe
market which 1s, for a large number of depots, holding a broad range of stock

For new buid applications, where consumers or designers require certain styles @ Esse nt|a| RM | requn-ement
or finshes SIG also provides "Roof Libranes” which offer a very wide selection

GROWTH DRIVERS

of enatenals and facilitate the specrfication process Dunng the last few years o Growth of Speqahs‘t

§1G has also broadened its product offering to indude rocfline products such

as ranwater guttening saffit, fascia and bargeboards and the Group has now d |Str|bUtlon ds the main
establshed a network of over |20 trading sites focused on this particular niche SUPP‘Y route

area in the UK roofing market.

e New products

The acquisition of Lariviére in June 2007
makes SIG the largest specialist supplier
of roofing products in Europe.
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CASE STUDY
FURTHER ROLL OUT OF EXISTING GROUP ACTMTY INTO
MAINLAND EUROPE

In June 2007, SIG acquired Lanwere, the largest specialist
suppher of roofing materials in France with a national network
amounting to 83 trading stes The acquistion of Lanwiere
makes SIG the largest speaalist suppher of roofing products

in Europe, provides exciting growth opportuntties for the
expansion of Larvigre’s product range and the expansion

of the French trading site network to increase market share
and expand the customer base

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE
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COMMERICAL INTERIORS

The commercal intenors marketplace 15 demanding, sophisticated and

fast moving Emphasis s on achieving a balance between efficient utilisatron

of space and the qualty and comfort of the working emaronment There s also
an added requirerent of flextbility to meet the changing business requirements
of today's world

The core product areas for the Group are celing, parttionung dry hrung

and specialist door systems used 1 non-residential buldings tagether with
awide range of ancllary products supplied 1o support ndmdual contracts

Al types of non-residential buldings such as schocls hospaals, hoteks, offices
and shops are supphed with products for exther new build or refurbrshment
projects The Group supphes ceiling and dry hning products from leading
supphiers and manufactures its own door and parttioning systems

The Group has over 150 trading sites which blend the requirements of small,
maintenance onentated projects which require ready access 1o matenals with
those of Jarger, specificabon-based contracts where specalist advice service and
support are required 10 secure orders Custorner and chent support may include
technical design and development of visual appearance, together with logistics
and delvery scheduling in order to meet the fit-out requirements Delvery
service 15 an impertant element of the project planning as aty locations can

often have difficult access and minimal space for holding stock If matenals are
not available "on tme” then contractors face Jost “downtime” and potential

tume penalties

GROWTH DRIVERS

o Acoustic and safety standards

e |ncreased demand for
Integrated solutions

e Increased need for
high security

During 2007, SIG increased its product
offering with the acquisition of a
commercial floorcoverings supplier
and a metal doorset manufacturer.




CASE sTUDY
PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT IN THE UX

During 2007, SIG further developed its commercial

interiors product offenings with the acquisition of two
companies The first was the UK's second largest specialist
commercal floorcoverngs suppher SIG regard this as a
‘platform’ acquistion, bringing experienced rmanagement Into
the Group who can help SIG expand i this fragmented
market The second acquisition was an all metal doorset
manufacturer This business 1s focused on doorset products
used typically in high securtty or high footfall environments
and strengthens the Group's overall doorset product offering

FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE
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SPECIALIST CONSTRUCTION AND SAFETY PRODUCTS

Specialist Construction and Safety Products prowides a range of materials
and consumable rtems that are essental to the construction process Detaled
product knowledge and a keen understanding of particular applications are
wital elements of customer support

The Specalist Construction division covers a wide portfolio of products such
as concrete accessones, waterproofing systems, construction chemscals and
addmves brickwork support systems speciahist foangs and tools Typicalty,
products are supplied to large commercial or el engineenng projects Bamples
include tunnels and bridges schools and hospitals, retal developments, hotels
and office bulldings

The products supplied by SIG are often of erucal mportance to the whole
building programime and must perform to speafication and be availzble for use
at the nght bme and nght locabon Relationships with contractors  the capability
to resolve problems with expert technical adwice and the abifity to offer rapid
delvery umes 5o as to maintain workilows on large projects is critical to the
service of customers

The dmision also includes SIG's Safety Products distnbution business, which
unitke other Group companies manages s resources from a single stte, offering
next day delivery throughout the UK mainland  Speciaist safety equipment, such
as eye hand and foot protection s supplied to a wade range of industnes with
particular emphasis on the construction sector The Safety business reaches a
wade and growing range of customers by direct marketing and has a strong web
preserce (www protecdirect com) The growing requrement for customers to
have their work and safety wear branded with their own logo s met by in-house

nt and embroidery capabilities
P v GROWTH DRIVERS

e Regulation

¢ “Just-in-time” approach
to project management

o Outsourcing of technical
know-how

The four acquisitions made in this division in
2007 each bring additional specialist product
knowledge to the Group.
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FOCUS, SPECIALISATION AND SERVICE

CASE STUDY
CONTINUED DEVELOPMENT OF NEW BUSINESS ACTMTY

The Group has established this division through the acquisition

of a seres of businesses, many of which were relatively small n
scale but provided excellent technical knowledge or enhanced

the Group's geographic postion

By combining the businesses the Group has been able to
achieve back office savings and improve procurement by global
sourcing The product/service offering has also been rased

as the best ideas and practices are shared across the dwision
National supply agreements with major contractors have also
been possible as the development of the trading site network
has been extended nationwade

Dunng 2007, the Group acquired four new UK businesses
into this dwision, banging with thern addrtional expertise in
fixing products, construction ¢herrucals and groundwork products
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

SIG recognises its corporate social
responsibilities to its Shareholders,
employees, customers and suppliers
and is committed to good practice

in all its activities.
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SIG cortinues to develop its approach to Corporate Soaal Responsiilty ("CSR')
and 1s pleased 1o be able to inform its stakeholders of the measures which
it 1s taking to continue to monrtor and improve its CSR perforrnance

The Company 15 a constituent member of the FTSE4Good index of
socially responsible companies This year, in addtion to other relevant
formation, the Group 15 reporting for the first ime on ts CO; emissions
and management of waste

$1G 15 able to confirm that the Board takes regufar account of the significance

of socia!, emvironmental and ethical matters to the business of the Group and
that ¢t has In place a comprehensve nsk management and nternal control
process which identifies and assesses the signficant nsks to the Company s short
and long term value ansing from such matters The Board recerves 2 report on
CSR 1ssues at each of s Board Meetings CSR ssues form part of the overalt
internal control process and are covered in the training of Directors

SIG recognises its corporate soaak responsibiliies to its Shareholders,
employees, customers and suppliers and & committed to good practice

in all its actvities The Board believes that the progressive integration of CSR
across the Group and the inclusion of broader social and emaronmental issues
Into tts decision making will help us to achieve our business goals and act as an
essental building block for growth in Shareholder value Our recently publkshed
Group-wide Ethics Policy sets out a number of fundamental principles, which
all Group companies are required to follow The code underpins our CSR
programme and supposts our business mtegrity

SIG has certfication under 1SO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 This certficabion
currently covers 92% of the Group's UK sites with newly acquired sites being
added to the cerufication as part of therr integration process

BUSINESS PRINCIPLES AND CODE OF ETHICS

The Group will be ssuing its Ethics Policy to all employees in April 2008,
which sets out a number of fundamentat principles, which ah Group
companies zre required to follow The Pohicy can be viewed on the
Company's website at www sigplc co uk The Ethics Policy includes the
Company's prohibition on the gving or recenang of bribes or other payments
The key business principles contaned in the Ethics Policy are set out below

» $iG's policy 15 to operate within applicable laws,
e dischmination or harassment of any kind will not be tolerated
® SIG aims to be a responsible partner within its local communities,

e the legal and moral nghts of others will be taken into account in all SIGs
business transactions

o we will mantan a safe and healthy environment for people ta work in,

o we will be proactive in managing our responsibiities to the envirenment,
e we will not knowingly make musrepresentations,

» as a matter of policy, we do not make poltical donations,

* no bnbes can be given or receved,

o conflicts of interest must be avoided and in all cases must be reported, and

& employees are encouraged to report any suspected wrongdoings

ENVIRONMENT

As a leading international suppher of msulation and related matenals our core
business s focused on the reduction of energy consumption and the subsequent
reduction n harmful environmental impacts

The Chief Executive, Mr D Wilhams, is the Board Director responsible

for the environmental performance of the Group Each indwidual subsidiary
Managing Directar 1s responsible for the environmental performance of ther
own business SIG 1s commitied to minmising the environmenital impact of ds
actvities through good environmental management practices The Group's
Enwironmental Policy was revewed in 2007 The policy s displayed in al trading
sites and offices throughout the Group and on the SIG website Environmental
objectives and targets have been establshed at relevant functions and levels
within the organisation

SIG believes that it s in the Group’s best interests to be aware of, and seeks
to mimimise the risks ansing from, the social and environmental impact of s
actnsties and 1s committed to conducting ts actvties and operations in line
with current legislation and best emvronmental practice, seeking continual
improvement and nnovation within al Group businesses and activibes

All SIG ple UK companies actvely seek 1o

« minimise the use of af matenals, supphes and energy — and wherever
possible use renewable or recyclable matenals

JONYNHIAOD IIVIOHOD

e minimise the quantsty of waste produced in all aspedts of our business,

& adopt an ervironmentally sound transport policy,

communicate our environmental policy to all staff and encourage them
to participate in the achwevemenit of our goals,

supply and promate wherever possible, those products which contripute
to energy consenvation and do not damage the environment, and

e ensure that the Company continues to meet present and future
environmental standards and legslaton

To ths end the Company has in place an environmental management system
in accordance with BS €N 1SO 14001 2004

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group has in place in the UK an integrated Management System combining
BS EN ISO 14001 (Environment) and CHSAS 18001 (Heakh and Safety) in the
UK, Moody International are the appornted Assessors and the assessment process,
leading to certification under these accreditation schemes, was completed i
Apnil 2006, resutting in all the Group's Mantand UK sites recemng certrfication
SIG had no prosecutrons relating to Environmental matiers duning the year

As part of the rmanagement systems audit process each locaton will be
annually benchmarked any corrective actions idemtfied and a plan put i
place to address defictencies raised Dunng 2007 this process was completed
at over 400 of the Group's UK trading sres

Considerable importance 1s placed on environmental matters as part of the
due dilgence process for acquistions External advisers review and assess any
environmental nisks to which the Group could potenually become exposed
and these are considered as part of the acquistion process Health and safety
compliance and processes are also considered as part of the acquisition process

The Group has identsfied the significant emarenmental impact of s operations,
which are summansed on pages 38 and 39
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY CONTINUED

ENYVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

ENERGY AND TRANSPORT

As a founder member of the Association for the Conservation of Energy, SIG
s actve in promoting and encouraging the rasing of mandatory standards for
thermal nsulation

Reducing energy consumption 1s a priority for all of our operations

This s targeted both through reducing the amount of fuel used in delvery,

by increasing the eficiency of heating and highting and maximising the use

of natural light n the Group's propertes and by ervironmental awareness
traning at UK stes A programme 15 being putin place to record and monitor
eledinictty and gas consumption at each location, with sophisticated reporiing
technotogy being istalled at larger locations In the UK, Energy Brokers have
been nstructed to, where pracicable, purchase erergy from renewable sources

» duning the year SIG has worked with the Energy Savings Trust (Transport
Advice Teamn) as part of the process of achieving a green fleet operation
$IG continues to actvely investigate better methods of operation in order
to achieve greater efiiciencies from ts vehicles and there fuel consumption

& SIG has a policy of introducing the most energy efficent vehicles commercally
avattable (currently considered to be Euro V category engines) which the
Company purchases, whenever possible,

SIG employs staff to tran drivers in drving techniques amed at reducing
acaidents and damage (safe driving) and to drive vehicles using methods and
practices which will reduce fuel consumptien Equipment is being fitted to
commercial vehicles to measure ongoing drver efficency (in particular fuel
and braking) Al vehicles are regularly serviced to ensure that vehicle
emissions are kept 1o a minimurn

CO, EMISSIONS - DIRECT IMPACT

e the Transport Co-ordinators in each trading ste throughout the Group are
required to make the most efficient use of vehidles, consistent with meeting
customer requirements Techmiques used include maxarmasing vehicle loading
{within lega! himits) so reduaing vehicle numbers, and route planning,

16 mintmise distances travelled and thereby fuel usage,

» $IG has fitted vehicles with logistics tracking systemns and nawgation planning
equipment Thss i aimed at using the most fue! efficent route for each journey,

in 2006 Komfort Workspace installed a wood burning incnerator at its
Crawley site which used the off-cuts from s manufacturing processes to
provide heat for four manufactuning units Komfort 1 now planning to install
a further untt for its operations at the Andover ste Similar operations are
in place at Leaderflush & Shapland manufactunng sres at Nottirngham

and Barnstaple,

® SIG has recently instalied video conferencing equipment in nine key locatons
across the Group in order to reduce n particular, overseas travel with
the consequent reduction in the Company's carbon footprint

CARBON (CO.) EMISSIONS

This 15 the first year that SIG has presented detalls of ts CO; emissions and
plans are i place to Improve both the qualtty and comprehensiveness of the
information disclosed in future years SIG have reported emissions of CO;
according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol which was jointly developed

by the World Business Counal for Sustanable Development and the Werld
Resources Insttute The protocol diferentiates between emissions caused

w the generation of supplied efecnaty and all other indirect emissions both
upstream and downstream As 1t 15 impossible to know or control the neghgible
downstream emissions generated when products sold by the Group are used,
they have been excluded from this report Similarly, reporting on the upstream
emissions of our business would currently rely heawily on estimates and, as a
result, they have also been excluded from this analyss However given the
nature of our operations, the Group does believe that it 15 appropriate to
report on the emissions from third-party prowded transportation

Source Definuon Data source and alcutation methods Metnc tonnes 2007
Business operatons Wood burning incineration Errussions per hour x hours in use 7,690
{Generation of heat)
Vehicle fuel Emission from vehude use Fuel Cards and direct purchase 45,503
records n Iitres converted according
to DEFRA guidelines
Total 53,193

* The table above comprises CO, emission data captured from the Business operations of Komfort Workspace at Crawley and the vehicle fuel data comprises

the Group s UK fleet operations

CO, EMISSIONS ~ INDIRECT IMPACT

Source Defnrion Data source and cloulation methods Metrc tonnes 2007
Electncrty Drrectly purchased, which generates Yearly consumption from ubiity bills 15,202
greenhouse gases including CO, emissions in KWh converted according to OEFRA guidelines
Natural gas Directly purchased which generates Yearty consurnption from utility bills 2741
greenhouse gases including CO, emissions in KWh converted according to DEFRA guidelines
Gas ol Dwrectly purchased wiuch generates Yearly purchase from invoices in Itres
greenhouse gases inclkeding CO, emissions converted according to DEFRA guidelines 1227
Kerosene Drectly purchased, which generates Yearly purchase from invoices in fitres
greenhouse gases including CO, emissions converted according to DEFRA gudelines i6
Business travel Third-party provided transport (ar and rail} Recorded miles converted according 213
to DEFRA guidelines
Total 19,399

* The table above comprises CO, emission data captured from 64% (Electricity and Gas} of the Group's UK operations representing 75% of UK Group turnover
for the year ending 31 Decernber 2007 The data relating to Gas oil 2nd Kerosene has been collected from the Group's UK Operations The data relating to
business travel has been collected from the Group's UK and overseas operations and covers travel booked through third party booking agents only
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

PACKAGING AND WASTE REDUCTION

SIG works with its suppliers to minimse pnmary and secondary packaging
while maintaining necessary levels of packaging to ensure that the product
arrives with the customer n perfect condion Afl of the Group's businesses
comply with their apphcable waste management regufauons As a break butk
supplier, SIG has recogmsed that the major impact of the organisation on
environmental waste 1s through packaging and has taken a pro-active
approach to mimmise the amount of new packagng entenng the market
and the amount of waste generated at trading ste level

This 15 achieved by

¢ environmental awareness training at 2l sttes including the distnbution
of energy reduction awareness information and reminder aids to
all employees

purchasing recyded and recyclable packaging where pracucable,
including pallets and cartons,

 returning reusable pallets to suppliers and similarly recovening used
pallets from customers,

reusing packaging for internal transfers and delvenes,

& actvely taking part in recyching and reclamation schemes through the
Company's membership of Valpak and working closely with supphers
10 improve the accuracy of data SIG meets its responsrbilities under the
packaging waste regulatons in the UK through Valpak s compliance scheme
As part of the Company's ongoing development m $his area 1t has entered
into a national agreement with Veolia for waste removal Veoha operates
fts own waste recycling and reclamation compliance scheme

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE

$IG embraces electronic communication within #s businesses, which has
resutted i a significant reduction n nternal and externzl paperwork
throughout the Group,

SIG continues to mplement infiatves to reduce, reuse and recycle s waste
through the continued location waste audiing programme performed by
Veolia Ervirenmental Senaces in the UK,

» the expansion of the Group's waste paper and ink cartndge recyching actmvtes
at principal admunistrative centres and where practucable at ste level, and

Komfort Workspace has this year launched a range of demountable
partioning with sustainzbilty in mind Each component being reusable
or recyclable

SIG actvely seeks to reduce the number of printed copies of its Annual Report
and Accounts and will be actvely encouraging Sharehoklers to elect to recenve
ther communications from the Company n electronic form

WASTE MANAGEMENT
SIG recogrises its resporsibilives 1o measure and minimise the waste generated
by its business operations Waste 15 dwided into hazardous and non-hazardous

Debngion Data source and clodabon methods Absohrte tonnes 2007
Landfift Non-hazardous waste sent to landfil Vohume per annum converied to tonnes 10,630
Recycied** Non-hazardous dverted from langfill Volume per annum converted to tonnes B25
Inanerated Non-hazardous waste incinerated Volume per annurm converted 10 tonnes 816
Total 12,271

HAZARDOUS WASTE

Dekreon Data source and claudaton metheds Absohite lonnes 1007
Landfil Hazardous waste sent 1o landfill Volume per annum converted to tonnes 35
Recyded Hazardous dverted from landfil Volume per annum converted to tonnes 153
Inanerated Hazardous waste incinerated Volume per annum converted 1o tonnes 3
Total 191
OTHER WASTE

Defintion

Data source and iculabon methods

Absohste tonnes 2007

WEEE (Waste, Electncal

and Electrical Equipment}) Dwverted from landfil Volume per annurn converted to tonnes 21
Glass Dwerted from landfil Volume per annumn comverted to tonnes 280
Wood Drverted from landfil Volume per annum corverted {o tonnes 985
Metal Dwerted from landfill Volurne per annumn converted to tonnes 538
Plasterboard Diwverted from landfill Volume per annum converted to tonnes 182
Total 2076

* The table above comprses detals of waste data captured from 65% of the Group's UK trading stes representing 76 7% of Group tumover for the year ended

31 Cecember 2007

*+ The recycled non-hazardous waste data stated above does mot include baled polythene and cardboard generated at 2 number of the Group's UK Insulation

trading sites
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY CONTINUED

SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group has in place a supplier audit programme The programme

15 conducted by way of questionnarre and includes a request for details of the
environmental aspects of the supplier's operations Environmental management
will be one of the criteria considered when examining a supplhier s qualfications
for Group orders The Group has a policy, that when specified, tmber
purchased for use in its manufacturing activines must be from renewable
resources This 1s a relatively small part of the UK operations but where
accreditation and forest stewardship schemes are applicable and avalable,
SIG wses these in its sourcing procedures

The Group has in place polices to ensure that its customers recerve the level
of service and the quality of product that they have come 1o expect from SIG

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has i place in the UK an Integrated Management Systemn combining
BS EN 150 14001 (Environment) and OHSAS 1800t (Health and Safety)

in the UK Moody International are the appointed Assessors and the assessment
process, leading to certfication under these accreditation schemes for all of the
Group's UK sttes, was completed in Aprd 2006, resutung in all the Group's UK
sites receming certification SIG had no prosecutions relating to health and safety
matters dunng the year

The Group 1s committed 1o high standards of health and safety for all of its
employees and the Group's Health and Safety Policy was reviewed in 2007
The Policy 15 displayed throughout the Group's workplaces and s available

an the Company's website Whilst Mr D Williarns, the Chief Executive, 18
the Board Director responsible for the health and safety performance of the
Group the SIG systems ensure that responsibility exsts throughout all of the
SIG businesses Health and safety objectives and targets have been established
within relevant functions and levels within the organisation SIG had ne
prosecutions relating to health and safety matters dunng the year

Within the Group the continuing improvement of health and safety performance
15 a key priority A Health and Safety Training Manager was appointed to lead

a training programme to ensure that all UK subsidiary company Directors and
managers receive appropnate traning in health and safety in order to meet
thew responsibiliities

Heaith and Safety Adwisors who are etther Cornpany or regonally based
support the increased focus on health and safety education and awareness at
workplace level As part of the management systems audit process each location
15 annually benchmarked any correctve actions are identrfied and a plan put in
place to address deficiencres rased During 2007 this process was completed

at over 400 of the Group's UK trading snes Forklift and commercia! driver
training form an importar part of SIG s Workplace Safety Policy, which impacts
on reduced insurance costs, enhanced pedestnan and site safety and improved
working environment Dally inspections complement penodic training to keep
the vehicie and driver at peak performance

The Group’s accdent performance s monitored by the Board on a monthly
basis The overall rate of workplace acadents within the Group continues to
fall The number of Inury acadents reportable to the HSE under the Reporting
of Injunes, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrence Regulations ("RIDDOR”) was
155 per 1,000 employees n 2007, compared with 16 2 per 1,000 employees
in 2006, a reduction of 4 4%
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ACCIDENT AND INCIDENTS

Rate per | 000 employees 2007 2006
Major injury 18 32
Injury resutting n over 3 absence days from work 132 124
All RIDDORS I55 162
Average UK headcount 7,341 6,281

DONATIONS

Durning the year the Group made chartable donations of £162k {2006 £100k)
It 15 the Group’s palicy not to make poltcal donations and no political donations
were made In the year (2006 £nil)

The Group has a Charsiable Donatiors Policy The Policy in addition to
suppartng loca) causes where SIG ermployees are involved is to provide
support for three main charties for 2 penod of three years For the three years
16 3| December 2007, the three chanties selected were in the fields of
disadvantaged children, humanities and the envircnment and were

# Henshaws College, which 1s a urique and proneering education facity
offering high qualty independent Iving skills training to around 65 young
people aged between 16 and 23, al of whom are wisually impared with
addtional disabilities SIG supports five students from ddfferent parts of
the UK,

Yorkshire Wildldfe Trust where SIG sponsors a number of Wildlife projects
and have encouraged volunteenng days for interested staff and

Hope and Homes for Children which s an internatonal charity, engaged
in providing hormes and support for children on a long term basis i third
world and war tomn countnes

For the three years commencing January 2008 the three main charities that
the Group will be supporting are Hershaws College, Action For Kids (a natienal
charity working with disabled chedldren and young people, their parents and
carers) and 5t Lazarus Hospice (a charty providing assistance for terminally
ill ndmduals and help and support for farmilies in Krakow, Poland)

Staff are kept informed of charable activities and are encouraged to attend
events as appropriate, as a means of encouraging them 1o be personally
associated with charttable work and in particular with the causes supported

by the Group This has included spensorshup for Indmiduals entening specific
events and support in kind for bullding projects By way of example SIG Roofing
Supplies managers and suppliers recently competed in the Michelob Ultra
Spnnt Tnathlon rasing over £18,000 for the NSPCC

The Group has in place a Payrall Gmng Scheme, which s avalable to all UK
employees Employees are free to choose one of the current SIG sponsored
charitees listed above or any other chanty of their chaice During the year
denations of £9,5 10 were made through the scheme




COMMUNITY

The Group endeavours to contnbute to the communiuies i which 1t operates
particularly those neighbouring ts sites SIG 15 a member of Business in the
Communtty in the UX and has worked with that organisation to help to develop
its approach and practices This 15 mainty achveved through chantable donations
and other imitiatives that help the community

The HR Director has responsibility for community ssues within the Group
and reports to the Chief Executive who 15 responsible for community ssues
at Board level

EMPLOYEES

The Group operates a culture of openness and has in place a confidential
hotline service so that our employees can rase, on a confidential basis, any
concams about how we conduct our business The service 1s provided by
an mdependent third party and a full investigation is carned out on &l matters
rased and a report 15 prepared for feedback to the complanant The hotine
was introduced in the UK in November 2007 and 15 currently in the process
of being extended to the rest of the Group's employees

The Group s policy 1s to provide equal opportunities to all existing and
prospective employees $G recognises that its reputanon is dependent on
the quality, effectiveness and skill base of its employees and 15 committed to
the far and equitable treatment of all its employees and specrlically to prohibit
discnmination on the grounds of race, religion, sex, sexual onentation age,
nationalty or ethnc orgin

Employment opportunites are avaifable to disabled persons in accordance
with therr abilites and apttudes on equal terms with other employees if an
employee becomes disabled dunng employment the Group makes every effort
to enable them to continue employment with re-training for atternative work
where necessary

The Group has a commitment to ensure that all employees and management
are properly inducted into the Company and gven the necessary traning to
fuffil their roles

In 2007 considerable effort has been put into the further rdentfication of talent,
traning and career management With a whole senes of development centres
and targeted intervention being used to fast track dentfied talent

In the UK and Ireland a Personal Development Award was introduced with
36 high potential employees attending an intensive ten day personal awareness
and management skifls development programme

The Executive Development programme was launched in conjunction
with Sheffield Hallam University asmed at operating company directors
the programme provides opportunity for delegates to develop thewr
capability across the broad range of general management acuvities

82 employees in the UK have enrolled on NVQ programmes in warehousing
and distribution or adminstrabon which are being prowded through third
party prowders

2007 also saw the launch of the SIG Sales Academy, providing structured
tramng, coaching and support for sales managernent and sales professionals
The Sales Academy will be made avalable nght across the Group in 2008

There 1s an active and extensive programme of addiional traning in place
Full-tme dedicated professional trainers are employed and their work 15
supplemented as required by external courses and external agencies In order
to meet ever increasing customer demand, particular emphasis s placed
on techrical, customer service and interpersonal skills The Group has an
objective of increasing the number of man-hours of staff and management
training each year

SIG recognises the importance of good communications with employees

and acknowledges that there should be clear ehannels of communication and
opportunities for consultaton and dislogue on issues, which affect both business
performance and employee's work Ives This s achieved through a vanety of
media indluding the Group s intranet, noticeboards, newsletters and meetings

All employees are regufarly offered the opportunity to address any questions,
particularty relating to the financial performance of SIG n relation to the Results
Announcements, directly to the Chief Executive, esther by emai, by telephone,
or In wriing

The Group operates a childcare voucher system whereby UK employees can
elect to receve childcare vouchers in lieu of part of therr satary in a tax efficent
manner In January 2008 the Group introduced a Cycle to Work scheme
whereby UK employees can obtain a voucher for the purchase of a bicycle
free of tax and national insurance to a maamum value of £500

IDNVYNYIAOD IIVHOJICD

Employees are encouraged to become Shareholders in the Company
The Group ntroduced a new Share Incentive Plan (*SIP™) n November 2005
in place of the Save As You Earn Scheme The Company gives one matching
share for each share purchased by the employee up to a maximum of four
matching shares per month At 3| December 2007 there were

1,482 employees savng under the Company's SIP

The Group operates a number of employee pension schemes across ds
businesses In the UK 1t operates a Defined Contribution Scheme, which is
open to all employees The Group s UK Defined Benefit Schemes have been
closed to new members since 1997

The HR Director has responsibility for hurman resource ssues within the Group

and reports to the Chief Executrve who 15 responsible for human resource
wsues at Board leve!
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LEFT TO RIGHT GARETH DAMVIES, LES TENCH CHAIS DAVIES DAVID WILLIAMS, {OHN CHIVERS, PETER BLACKBURN DAVID HAXBY AND MICHARL BORLENGHI

LES TENCH BSC

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Les Tench {age 62) became a Non-Executve director in March 2003 and
was appointed Deputy Charman in November 2003 He was apponted
Charman on | May 2004 He was appointed a Non-Executve Director
of Norcros plc on & July 2007 He joined CRH ple in 1992 and from
1998 unti hs retrement n December 2002 was Managing Director

of CRH Europe — Buildng Producs

DAVID WILLIAMS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

David Williams (2ge 57) joned the Group in (983 having ganed UK and
overseas sales and marketng expenencs in several diverse industnes He
was apponted Managing Director of Shefield Insudabons 2nd to the man
Board i June 1993 He became Chief Executve in january 2002 He s
a Non-Excautive Director of Shefiekd Chddren s NHS Foundation Trust
and a Member of the Advisory Board of Sheffield Uiniversity Management
School both of which are voluntary unpaid pastions

CHRIS DAVIES BA (OXON)}

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Chrs Daves {2ge 54) poned Shefield Insutzbons n 1994 havng previously
ganed UK and overseas management expenence of manufactunng
contracting and speaiabist distnbution in the metals and construction
nohustnes He moved to a Group rele n 1996 and in 2001 took up

the post of Manaping Drector Europe He was appanted to the man
Board on 12 February 2007 and was appomted Deputy Chuef Exeative
on 10} january 2008, & s ntended that he will be zpporited Chef Executve
on | july 2008 on the retrement of Dawd Williarns

GARETH DAVIES BA, ACA

FINANCE DIRECTOR

Gareth Daves (zge 44) omned the Group n November 1993 s Group
Finanaal Controlier, hawng previously been a serwor manager with
Arther Andersen. He was apported to the man Board in August 2002
as Fnance Direaor

JOHN CHIVERS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

John Chreers {2ge 55) pxned the Group m July 1975 and was appanted
a Director of Sheffekd tnsudations i Aprl 1989 He became Managing
Durecter of SIG Roofing Supplies in July 1997 and was gppomnted to

the man Board n September 2001 He 1s currertly responzible for

the Group s Roofing Specialist Construcuon Products and Roofline

8 Building Plastics businesses i the UK,
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PETER BLACKBURN CBE, BA, D LITT, FCA

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Peter Blackburn (2ge 67) beame a Non-Executve Director in July 2001
He 15 Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Senior Independent
Director From November 1957 10 June 2001 he was Charman and
Chuef Executve of Nestle UK He was Charman of Northern Foods
from February 2002 to july 2005 He 15 a past president of the Food

2nd Dnnk Federaion

MICHAEL BORLENGHI 85C

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Muchael Borlenghi (age 64) became a Non-Executive Dredtor in April 2004
He has held a number of NMon Executive board postions since retinng n
1991 from the GKIN plc Board. Whilst at GKN he was involved m senor
management roles both m the UK and overseas in a career spanning

25 years

DAVID HAXBY LL B, FCA

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dawd Haxby (age 66) became a Non Exeaustive Director in March 2003
and 15 Charman of the Audt Commuttee He 1s currently a Non-Exearve
Dwrecior of Cattles phe a postion he has held snce 1999 From 1991

until bus retrement n 1935 he was the London ofiice Managng Partner

of Arthur Andersen and snce then has served on the board of a number
of public and private compares

BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr D A Haxby — Charman
Mr P H Blackburm

Mr M ) C Borlengh

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr P H Blackbum — Chairman
Mr M | C Borlengh

Mr D A Haxby

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
Mr L O Tench — Charman
Me P H Blackburm

Mr M | C Bodenghs

Mr D A Haxby

Mr D Willams
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Drrectors present their Annual Report and the audrted Accounis for the year ended 31 December 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The pnngpal actvity of the Group s the supply of speaalist products to construction and related markets The main products supplied are insulation, roofing
and external elements, commercial intenors and speciafist construction and safety products

The Charmans Statement and Busmess Review on pages 6 to 27 contain a review of these actvbes and comments on the future outlook. The financial nsk
management objectives and poboes of the Company are set out i the Business Rewvew on pages 25 1o 27

As at the date of this Report, there have been no mmporiant events affecting the business of the Company, or any of ts subsidianes, which have occurred since
the end of the financial year

Detais of the Group's pokces in relaton to employees (indluding disabled employees) and information on chantable and political donations are disclosed
on pages 40 to 41

Detalks of the Group's policies in relabion to corporate governance are disdosed on pages 48 to 31

GROUP RESULTS
The Consohdated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 1s shown on page &4 The movement in the Group reserves dunng the year
s shown in Note 25 on page 103 Segmental information Is set out n Note | on pages 741076

DIVIDENDS

The Board s recommending a final dvdend of 18 7p per share (2006 14 3p) winch, tegether with the intenm drdend of 8 Op (2006 6 2p) per share, makes
a total for the year ended 31 December 2007 of 26 7p (2006 20 5p) per share Payment of the final dradend, # approved at the Annual Generzl Meeting,

will be made on 27 May 2008 to Shareholders regstered at the close of business on 25 April 2008

DIRECTCRS
The names of the Directors as at the date of this report together with biographical notes are set out on page 42 They compnsed the Board for the whole of the
year except that Mr C | Davies was appointed a Director on 2 February 2007

It was announced on 10 January 2008 that Mr C ) Davies had been appointed Deputy Chief Executive with the intention that he should succeed Mr D Williams
a5 Chief Executive of the Company on 1 July 2008 Mr Willams has informed the Board of his Intention ta step down as a Directar of the Company on 30 june 2008
to take early retrement

There 15 no maxmum number of Directors but there shall at no time be less than two Directors may be appointed by the Company by ordinary resclution

or by the Baard A Director appornted by the Board shall hold office only unti the next folowang Annual General Meeting and shall then be eligible for re-appomtment
by the Shareholders The Board may from time to ume appoint one or more Directors as Managing Director or to fulfil any other Executve function withun the
Comgpany for such term, remuneration and other conditions of appointment as they may determme and may revoke such appointment (subject to the provisions
of the Companies Acts)

Al Directors are subject to electron at the Annual General Meeung immediately following therr appeintment and to re-election every three years

The Company may, by ordinary resolution of which special notice has been grven in accordarke with the Companies Ads, remove any director before the
expiration of his penod of ofice: The ofiice of 2 Director shalt be vacated f () he ceases to be a Director by witue of any provsien of law or & removed pursuant
to the Company s articles of assocation or he becomes prohibied by taw from being a Director, (i)} he becomes bankrupt o compounds with his credaors generally;
(i} he becormes of unsound mund or a patent for any purpese of any statute refating to mental health and the Board resolves sthat hs office 5 vacated, () he resigns,
(v} he falls to attend Board meetings for s consecutve months without leave of absence from the Board and the Board resolves that his office 15 vacated

(vi) fus appomntment terminates in accordance with the provisions of the Company's articles, {wi) he s dismissed from Executve office. (vii) he & comacied

of an ndictable offence and the Directors resolve that t 15 undesirable in the mierests of the Company that he remans a Director, or (ix) the conduct of

the Director 1s the subject of an investgation and the Directors resolve that n s undesirable n the mterests of the Company that he remans a Director

The Directors standing for re-election at the Annual General Meeting are Mr P H Blackburn and Mr L © Tench Each Drrector, being eligible, offers himself
for re-electon It 1s the view of the Board that each of the Non-Executive Directors brings considerable management experience and indeperdent perspective
to the Board s discussions and they are conssdered to be independent of management and free fromn any relatonship or arcumstance that could affect, or appear
to affect, the exercse of thewr independent pudgement

Full detals of Owectors' remuneration, interests in the share caprtal of the Company and of thewr share options are set out on pages 52 to 60 in the Dwectors’
Remuneration Report

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITIES

The Company purchases labilty insurarce cover for Directors and Officers of the Company and 1ts subsidianes which gves appropriate cover for any legal acton
brought against them The Company has also prowided an indemnity for tts Directors 1o the extent perminted by the kaw in respect of habites incurred as a resuft
of ther office The indemnity would not prowde any coverage 10 the extent that a Director 15 proved to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Detas of acqurstions dunng the year are covered in Note 13 on page 89 There were no disposals of businesses dunng the year
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SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has a single class of share caprtal which s dwvided into ordinary shares of 10p each

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2007 options were exercsed pursuant to the Cornpany's share option schemes, resuting in the allotment of 533,536
new ordinary shares Afurther 1,287 new ordinary shares have been allotted under these schermes since the end of the financial year 10 the date of this Report
In addtion a total of 11,363,637 new ordinary shares were ssued and allotted on 30 May 2007 by a placement, further detals of which can be found on page 2
Detalls of outstanding aptions under the Group s Employee and Executve Schemes are set out in Note 24 an page 102 wiuch aso contains details of options
granted over unissued share capital

RIGHTS ATTACHING TO SHARES \
The nghts attaching to the ordinary shares are defined 1n the Company's Artidles of Association The Articles of Assocation may be changed with the agreement

of Shareholders A Shareholder whose name appears on the Company s Register of members can choose whether his shares are evidenced by share certrficates

{le n certficated form) or held n electronic (e uncertiicated) form in CREST (the electroruc settlement system in the LK)

Subject to any restricions below, Shareholders may attend any general meeting of the Company and, on a show of hards, every Shareholder (or his representative)
who 15 present at a general meeting has one vote on each resolution and, on a poll, every Shareholder (or his representative) who 1s present has one vote on
each resotution for every ordinary share of which they are the registered Sharehalder A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting 1s decided on a show
of hands uniess before or on the declaraton of the result of, a vote on a show of hands, 2 poll s demanded by the charman of the meeting or by at least five
Shareholders (or thew representatives) presert i person and having the right to vote, or by any Sharehotders (or their representatives) present in person havng
at least 10% of the total voting nghts of all Shareholders or by any Shareholders (or their representatives) present i persan holding ordinary shares in which

an aggregate sum has been pad up of at least one-tenth of the total sum pad up on al ordinary shares

Shareholders can declare final dvidends by passing an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dvidends cannot exceed the amount recommended by the
Board The Board can pay interm diidends on any class of shares of the amounts and on the dates and for the penods they deaide prowded the distributable
profits of the Company justify such payment The Board may, f authorised by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders offer any Shareholder the nght to elect
to receve new ordnary shares wiich will be credted as fully pad, instead of therr cash dmdend

Any dwdend which has not been clamed for twelve years after it became due for payment will be forfeted and will then belong to the Company, unless the
Directors decide otherwise

If the Comparty 5 wound up, the Iiquidator ean with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed by the Sharehokders, dmvde among the Shareholders
all or any part of the assets of the Company and he can value any assets and determine how the dvsion shall be carried out as between the members or
different classes of members The liquidator can ako transfer the whole or any part of the assets to trustees upon any trusts for the benefit of the members
No Shareholders can be compelled to accept any asset which would give them a habilty

VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Any Form of Proxy sent by the Company to Shareholders in relation to any general meeting must be delvered to the Company, whether in written form or in
slectronic form not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote

No Shareholder 15, unless the Board decades otherwise entitled to attend or vote erther personally or by proxy at a general meeting or to exercise any other
nght conferred by being a Shareholder If he or any person with an interest in shares has been sent a notice under sectien 793 of the Companies Act 2006
{which confers upon public companies the power ta require information with respect to interests in their voting shares) and he or any interested person faled
1o supply the Company with the information requested within |4 days after delivery of that notice The Board may also deade that no dvdend 15 payable i
respect of those default shares and that no transfer of ary defautt shares shall be registered

These restnctions end seven days after receipt by the Company of a notice of an approved transfer of the shares or alt the inforrnation reguired by the relevart
section 793 notice, whichever i the earlier

TRANSFER OF SHARES

The Board may refuse to register a transfer of a certficated share which s not fully pad prowided that the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares i the
Company from taking place on an open and proper basis The Board may also refuse to register a transfer of a certdicated share unless (1) the mstrument of
transfer 15 lodged, duly stamped (f stampable), at the registered ofiice of the Company or any other place decided by the Board, accompanied by a certficate
for the share which it relates and such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor to make the transfer (1} 1s in
respect of only one dass of shares, and (i)} s in favour of not more than four transferees

Trarsfer of uncertficated shares must be carred out using CREST and the Board <an refuse to register a transfer of an uncertficated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

The Board may decde to suspend the registration of transfers, for up 1o 30 days a year, by closing the Register of Shareholders The Board cannot suspend
the registraton of transfers of any uncertricated shares without gaining consent from CREST There are no other imitations on the holding of ordinary shares
n the Company
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS CONTINUED

VARIATION OF RIGHTS
If at any tme the capital of the Company 1s dmded into different classes of shares, the special nghts attaching (o any class may be varied or revoked either:

(i) with the written consent of the holders of at least 75% in norminal value of the ssues shares of the class, or
() with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at 2 separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of the class

The Company can issue new shares and attach any nghts to them If there 1s no restniction by special nights attaching to exsting shares, nghts attachung to new
shares can take priorty over the rights of existing shares, or the new shares and the existing shares are deemed to be vaned (unless the nghts expressly allow 1)
by a reduction of paid up captal or if another share of that same class 15 1ssued and ranks in prionity for payment of didend or in respect of capital or more
favourable voting rights

CREST
The Company's ordinary shares are in CREST, the settlement system for stocks and shares

AGREEMENTS WITH EMPLOYEES AND SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS
There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment (whether through
res;gnabion purported redundancy or otherwise} that occurs because of a takeover bid

The Company's banking arrangements are terminable upon a change of control of the Company Certain other iIndebtedness becomes repayable if a change
of control leads to a downgrade in the credit ratng of the Compary

2008 INTERIM REPORT

in 2007 the Company changed its Articles of Assocation to permit the use of electroric communications for all Notices documents and information to be sent
1o Shareholders, in accordance with Shareholder preference This would enable the Company to use website communication with Shareholders as the default
postion The Company has, at this time, not made any decision as to whether to move to electroric communication as the default postion Shareholders wal
therefore, for the tme baing continue to recerve paper copies of all Company communications Current regulations do however permit the Compary not

to have to send copres of ts Half Yearly Reports to Shareholders and therefore future Intenm Reports commencing with the 2008 Report due to be published

on 21 August 2008 will no fonger be sent to Shareholders The Half Yearly Report will be published on the Company's website 2t www sigplc co uk

ACQUISITION BY THE COMPANY OF ITS OWN SHARES
Shareholders authortty for the purchase by the Company of 12,312,000 of s own shares exsted at the end of the year The Company has made no purchases
of ts own shares pursuant to this autherty The Company wall seek to renew this authority at the 2008 Annual General Meeting

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
The Companies Act 1985 provisions in respect of substantial share nterests were repealed on 20 January 2007 and with effect from that date, the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the UK Financil Services Authority came into force

At 12 March 2008, the Company had recerved notficaton that holdings exceeding the 3% notfication shreshold were as follows

% of

Ordinary 1ssued

Shares of share

10p each caprtal

FAC Asset Management 9,187,098 681
Schroder PLC 7,473 48| 554
Black Rock Inc 7,030,334 521
Fidelty International Limited 6,334,032 4469
Prudential PLC 4957 804 367
Barclays PLC 4,910,06t 364
Legal & General Group PLC 4,423,743 328

PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS

The Group follows the CBI's prompt payment code and operates and abides by a clearly defined pohicy, which has been agreed with alt major suppleers
As 2 31 December 2007 the Company had no trade payables as t does not trade in fts own nght. The Group's average number of days outstanding
as at 31 December 2007 1n respect of irade payables was 38 {2006 38)

STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS ON THE DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that
e 50 far as they are each aware, there 1 no relevant audit nformaton of which the Company's Auditors are unaware, and

e each Director has taken al steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make fumself aware of any relevant audt information and to establish that
the Company's Audrtors are aware of that nformation

This confirmation ts given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 2347A of the Companies Act 1985
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and the accounts iy accordance with apphcable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare accounis for each financial year The Directors are required by the Intemational Accounting Standards ("1AS")
Regulation to prepare the Group Accounts under intermatonal financal Reporting Standards (*IFRS"} as adopted by the European Umon The Group Accounts
are ako required by law to be properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985 and Artcle 4 of the IAS Regulaton

IAS | requires that IFRS accounts present fairly for each financial year the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows Thes requires the
fathful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and condions i accordance with the definions and recognibon cnitena for assets, habdiues,
income and expenses set owt in the |AS Board's ‘Frameweork for the preparation and presentation of finanoia statements’ In vartually all circumstances, a far
presentation will be achieved by complance with all apphcable IFRS However, Directors are also required to

» properly select and apply accounting policees,
e present information, ncluding accounting policies N 2 manner that provides refevant reliable, comparable and understandable infermaton, and

s provide additional disclosures when compliance with the speaific requirements in IFRS are insufficcent to enable users 1o understand the impact of particutar
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial positon and financial performance

The Directors have elected to prepare the Parent Company accounts in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce
(Unred Kingdom Accounung Standards and apphicabie law) The Parent Company accounts are required by law to give a true and far view of the state
of affars of the Company In prepanng these accounts, the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consstently,

» make judgements and esumates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures drsclosed and explained in the accounts, and
* prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless & 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounung recards that drsckose wath reasonable accuracy at any time the financial postion of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the Parent Company accounts comply with the Comparues Act 1985 They are akso responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and cther imegulantes

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and mtegrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website  Legslaton
in the Untted Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination of accounts may differ from legislaton i other junisdicons

GOING CONCERN

The Directors consider, after making appropriate enquiries at the time of approving the Accounts, that the Company and the Group have adecuate resources
10 continue In operational exstence for the foreseeable future and accordingly, that it 1s 2ppropniate to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of
the Accounts

AUDITORS
In accordarke with Section 384 of the Companies Act 1985 a resolution re-appanting Delortte & Touche LLP as Audttors of the Company for the ensuing year
will be proposed at the Company's forthcoming Annua! General Meeting

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
‘The Notice convening the Annual General Meeting to be hekd at Aston Hall Hotel, Worksop Road Sheffield 526 2EE at noon on Wednesday 14 May 2008,
together with explanatory notes on the resolutions to be praposed and full detals of the deadlines for exercsing voting nghts, Is contained in a crcufar to be
sent to Shareholders with this Report

By order of the Board

RICHARD MONRO
COMPANY SECRETARY
12 MARCH 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

5I1G 15 committed to business integrty bigh ethical values and professionafism in all ts acintes As an essenual part of this commstment the Group supports
the highest standards n corporate governance The Board 15 accountable to the Company's Shareholders for good govermance and this statement and the
Directors Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 60 describe how the pnnaples of good governance set out n the Combined Code on corporate governance
published by the Financial Reporting Councll in June 2006 ( the Code™) are applied within SIG

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

The Company has applied the prnciples set out in Section | of the Code for the penod under revew and has, throughout the year, complied with the provisiens
set out therein with the exception of Code provision A3 2 in relation to the required nurmber of Non-Executve Directors where the Company has not been in
compliance from |2 February 2007 following the appointment of an addtional Executive Director

The Company's Auditars Delottte & Touche LLP are required to review whether the above statemnent reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions
of the Combined Code specfied for its review by the Lisung Rules and to report f it does not reflect such compliance No such report has been made

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2007 and at date of this Report, the Board was made up of eight members comprising the Chairrnan, four Executive Directors and three
Non-Exacutve Directors The Non-Executive Directors are considered by the Board to be independent of management and free of any relationship, which could
materally interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement The Board considers that each of the Non-Executive Cirectors bnngs his own senior fevel
of expenence and expertise Biographical detalls of each of the Directors, which dlustrate therr range of experience, are set out on page 42 The Company s pokicy
relating to the terms of appointment and remuneration of both the Executrve and Non-Executve Directors s detailed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 52 to 60

The dwsion of responsibiiies between the Chairman and Chef Executive is dearty established and 15 understood by the Board The Charman at the ume of his
appomtment met and continues to reet the independence ritena set out the Code

The Senior Independent Director s Mr P H Blackburn

On 12 February 2007 Mr C | Davies was appointed an Executive Director The Board notes the requrement of Code provision A3 2 and confirms that
a4 15 mtended that in the future at least half of the Board (excluding the Chairman) should comprise Non-Executive Directors determined by the Board to
be ndependent There 15 no present intention to appoint an addional Executrve Durector to the Board following the retrement of Mr D Wilharms and
the promotion of Mr C } Dawes to Chuef Executve at the end of June 2008

All Directors are subject to election at the Annual General Meeting immediately following thewr appointment and to re-election every three years
BOARD PROCEDURES
The Board met formally on twelve occasions duning the year and indadual attendance at those and the Board Committee meetngs s set out in the table on page 49

All Board members are supphed with infarmauon in a form and of a quality appropnate to enable them to discharge thew dutes Board and Committee papers
are sent out seven days before meetings take place There is an agreed schedule of matters reserved to the Board for callectrve deaision and these include

@ determining the strategy and control of the Group,

» amendments to the structure and captal of the Company and Group

e approval of financial reporting and controls

» approval of capital and revenue expendture of 2 signficant size,

® acqusttions and disposals above a prescribed level, and

® corporate governance matters and approval of Group pobaes and nsk management strategies

The Board has formally delegated spectfic responsibiliues to Board Comirittees, including the Nominatons Audrt and Remunerabon Committees The Board will
also appoint Committees 1o approve specific processes as deemed necessary For example, during the year, Board Committees were establshed to approve bank
documentation dmdend payrments and the preliminary and intenm announcements

To enable the Board to perform its duties effectvely all Direciors have full access to all relevant information and to the senaces of the Company Secretary whose
responsibility 1t is for ensunng that Board procedures are followed The appontment and removal of the Company Secretary 15 3 matter reserved for the Board
There ts an agreed procedure whereby Directors wishing 1o take ndependent legal adwce in the furtherance of their duties may do so at the Company’s expense
Directors have the nght to ensure that any concerns they raise about the running of the Company or 2 proposed actron will be recorded n the Board ninutes
Further, on resignaton f a Non-Executive Director had any such concerns the Chairman would invite um to prowde a written staternent for arculation 1o

the Board

All Board Committees are prowded with sufficient resources to undertake thewr dutes Approprate trainuing 5 available to all dwectors on appointment and on
an ongoing basis as required

The Terms of Reference for each of the Board Committees are avalable on request from the Company Secretary or on the 5IG websie (www sigple co uk}
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The {ollowing table shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board, Audit Remuneration and Nominations Commuttees during the year to
3| Decemnber 2007

Audt  Remuneraton  Nocunatons
Board Committee Committee Committee
(12 meetings) (4 meetings} {4 mestngs) {6 meetings}

P H Blackburn 12 4 4% 6
M | C Borlengh 12 4 4 [
M | Chrers 12 N/A N/A N/A
C ] Dawes (appointed |2 February 2007) 9 N/A N/A N/A
G W [Dawves 12 N/A N/A N/A
D A Haxby ( 4 4 6
L O Tench 1 N/A N/A 6
D Willams Il IN/A N/A 3
* Chairman

(Where N/A appears n the table the Director kisted 1s not a member of the Committee)
The Charrman also holds meetngs with the Non-Executive Drrectors without the Executive Directors present

The Board arranges to hold at least two Board meetings each year at Group business locations to help all Board members gain a deeper understanding of the
business This also provides Senior Managers from across the Group the opportunity to present to the Board as well as to meet the Directors on more informal
occasions Board members ako attend dmsional managerment conferences whenever possible

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS
During the year, the Board continued 5 ongomg evaluation process to assess 1is performance and that of its Commattees and to dentdy areas in which its
effectiveness, policies and processes might be enhanced

In 2005 an appraisal of the Board, each Board Committee, and the performance of each indmdual Director was carned out using a tallored questionnare
prepared by an independent third party in conjunction with the Chairman and the Company Secretary The purpase of the process was to help to identify any
areas which needed attention, develop and identdy what should be included 1n the Director's future training programme and to suggest any procedures and
ymprovements which meght make the Board operate better In 2006 as part of the process of bulding on the work done in 2005, the Charman held structured
meetings with each Director which focused en identifying the skills structures and compaosmion of the Board that wourld be required to evaluate formulate and
implement both the Group s short and long term strategies The process then sought to identfy whether these attriburtes were in place The Chairman then
coliated the results and circulated them 1o each Board member The Board then met on two separate occasions devoting significant tme to discuss the results
of the evaluaton process and 1o agree what actions should be taken The discussions then focused on how the actions identfied through the process should

be implemented

In December 2007 as part of the ongoing struciured process, the Board comrmmssioned an independent third party to prepare a talfored Board evaluation
questionnaire with the emphasis being targeted at dentfying the future needs of the Board including Board composstion and succession planmuing Each Director
completed their questionnarre during February 2008 and those questionnaires are currently being evaluated by the independent third party who will then prepare
a report for the Charman The Chairman and the independent third party will then present the results of the evaluation to the Board which wall then discuss the

results of the evaluation process and agree what acions should be taken The results of that process will be reported in the Group's Annual Report for the financial

year ending 3| December 2008

Dunng the year a number of the Directors attended traning courses and seminars for subjects and topics in conjunction with those that the Chairman had
identrfied as being areas where traning would increase the knowledge and effectiveness of the Director Further training has been programmed for 2008

The Non-Execurive Directors, chared by the Senior Independent Director meet once a year without the Charman present to assess his performance, taking
nto account the views of the Executrve Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognises the importance of communicating with ts Shareholders, induding its employee Shareholders, te ensure that tts strategy and
performance 1s understood This 15 achieved prinapally through the Annual Report and the Annual General Meeting The Group s annual and intenm results,
as well as all announcements issued to the London Stock Exchange, are published on the Company’s website The Company ssues regular trading updates
to the market and these, together with mterviews with the Chief Executive and more recently the Finance Director and copres of the presentations made to
analysts can also be found on the Company’s websrte [n addiion, a range of other corporate nformation 15 avalable to investors on the Company s website
(www sigplc <o uk)

The Chief Executrve and Finance Director are primanly responsble for direct investor relations Feedback from major Shareholders s reported to the Board by
the Finance Director and the Charman and discussed at its meetings Formal presentations are made to instiutional Shareholders following the announcement

of the Company's annual and intenm resufts Contact 15 also mantained, where approprate, with Shareholders to drscuss overall remuneration plans and policies
The Senior Independent Director 15 avalable to meet with mstriutional Shareholders  requested Although the Non-Executive Directors are not at present asked
to meet the Company's Shareholders, they regularly attend presentations of the annual and intenm results The Board recognises that the Annual General Meeting
15 the principal forum for dialogue with private Sharehotders and all Shareholders are nvited to attend All Dwectors attend the Annual General Meeting and are
avallable to answer any questions that Shareholders may wish to raise The Notice of Meeting s sent to Shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting
The Company prowvides a faciity for Shareholders to vote electromically and the Form of Proxy provides Shareholders with the option of withholding therr vote on
a resolution f they so wish

Shareholders vote on a show of hands, uniess a potl 1s validly called and after each such vote the number of proxy votes recewved for, aganst the resolution
together with the number of abstentions 1s announced The Company Secretary ensures that votes are properly recerved and recorded Detas of the Proxes
lodged on all resotutions are published on the Company's website immediately after the Annual General Meeting (www sigpic co uk)

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee operates under written Terms of Reference which are consistent with current best practice The Committee comprises only
independent Non-Executive Directors The Charman of the Committee attends the Annual General Meeting to respond to any Shareholder questions that
might be raised on the Commitee’s actvibes The Committee s Report 15 set out on pages 52 to 60

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

The Norminations Committee operates under written Terms of Reference, which are consistent with current best practice Its pnnaipal duty is the nomination
of surtable candidates for the approval of the Board to fill Executive and Non-Executive vacanaes on the Board The Nominations Committee comprises the
Charman, Chief Executrve and the three Non-Executive Directors The meetings of the Committee are chaired by the Nen-Executive Chairman

The Committee reviews the structure, size diversty and compositon of the Board and makes recommendations concerning the re-appeintment of ary
MNon-Executve Director at the conclusion of ther specfied term of office and in the Wdentdication and normination of new Directors The Committee retams
external search and selection consultants as appropriate. The Committee also advises the Board on succession planning for Executive Board appointments
although the Board tself 1s responsible for succession generally

!n general terms, when considenng candidates for appointment as Directors of the Company the Nominations Cormmitiee would, in conjunction with the Board
draft a detailed job specficatron and candidate profile In drafting this, consideration would be gven to the existing expernence, knowledge and background of Board
members as well as the strategic and business objectives of the Group Cnce a detaled specfication has been agreed with the Board, the Committee would then
work with an approprate external search and selection agency to identfy candidates of the appropriate calibre and with whomn an instial candidate shortlist could be
agreed The drawing up of this list 15 entirely consistent between external and internal candidates Shortlisted candidates would then be invited to intennew with
members of the Commitee and, f recommended by the Committee, would be invited to meet the entire Board before any decision 1s taken relating to the
appointment This process was followed in identfying the candidate to succeed Mr © Willams as Chief Executve

Followang the appointmert of a new Director, the Charman in conjunction with the Company Secretary 15 responsible for ensunng that a full, formal and tailored
induction to the Company is given

In January 2007 the Committee met to consider the Cheef Executive’s proposal that Mr C | Dawes, Managing Director Europe, should be appointed
an Executve Director The appointment of Mr C | Dawvies followed on from the Board effectiveness process which had conchuded that the growing
importance of the Group's European operations and future development plans was such that these should have direct representation at Board level
After careful consideration the Committee recommended his appointment to the man Board By way of induction a detaled pack and programme
was provided to Mr C | Davies on his appointment

On 10 January 2008 t was announced that Mr C | Davies had been appointed Deputy Chief Executive and that he would succeed Mr D Williams
as Chief Executrve followang Mr Willams' retirement on 30 fune 2008 The process for identifying Mr Willlams successor was conducted by the
Norminations Committee led by the Charman and has been descnbed above

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee operates under writien Terms of Reference, which are conststent with current best practice The Committee comprises only independent
Non-Executve Diredtors The Chairman of the Commttee attends the Annual General Meeting to respond to any Shareholder questions that might be rased on
the Commuttee’s actvties

The Group does not have a dedicated intermal audt function The Board annually reviews the need for such a function In 2006 the Audt Committee
recormmended and the Board accepted that the Group's internat control and risk management systems would be further strengthened by the appointment
of an outsourced internal audit function and Ernst & Young LLP were appointed in April 2006 to prowvide an outsourced internal audit function for the Group

The Committee's Report s set out on pages 61 10 62
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board s responsible for the Group's system of imternal control and for reviewing is effectveness [tis the role of management to implement the Board s
policies on risk and control through the design and operation of approprnate internal control systems

For the whole of the year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annuai Report and Accounts, the Board has had formal procedures in place to
ensure that it 1s 1 a posiion to consider all signdicant aspects of internal control

The Board has conducted a review of the effectveness of the Group’s systern of internal control This review has covered all controls inchuding operationial,
compliance and rsk management procedures, a5 well as financial The review 15 undertaken on a s monthly basis

The formal process followed and reviewed by the Board, to assess the effectveness of the Group's system of internal control accords with the gudance ssued
by the Turnbull Report ‘lnternal Control Gudance for Directors on the Combined Code’ and s part of the ongoing process for entfying, evaluabing and managing
the signfiicant risks faced by the Group This process is summarised as follows

e operating management is charged with the ongoing responsibility for dentfying nsks facing each of the operating units and for puting in place procedures to
miugate manage and monzor nsks,

« operating unis formally review all business nsks and set out the signficant risks 1o the operations, the controls n place and addmional controls, which could
be implemented These proposals are approved by each eperating urit s management and submutted in the form of nsk action plans to Group Executive
management for review arkl approval Any significant matters anising from this review are formally reported to the Board by the Finance Director 1o ensure
that appropnate initiatives are developed and implemented to manage those nsks The Board s adwsed i this process by the Audt Committee,

e the rsk and controb identification ard management process s monitored and pencdically reviewed by Group Executve management, and

» operating units, both trading sites and central funcuons, complete comprehensive Control Self Assessment {“CSA’) questionnaires every sx months These
questionnarres require managers 10 respond to questions about procedures and controls in the unit for which they have responsibiity These are analysed by
iocal and Group management and all potential nsks or control fadure ssues which are raised by the C5A process are classed in terms of escalation levels with
any significant group level ssues bemng reported to the Audt Committee Ernst & Young LLP as part of the process of thew providing an outsourced internal
audit function, report on the adminstration, management and reporting processes which support the CSA process The CSA process has been rolled out
across the UK ireland and The Netherlands and commenced across the rest of the Group in 2008

The key elements of the controls framework withen which the Group operates are
* an organsational structure with dearly defined hnes of responsibiity delegation of authonty and reparting requirements

« an embedded culture of openness of communication between operating dnisional management and the Group Executive management on maiters relating
to nsk and control,

» defined expenditure authorisation procedures,
& operating reviews covering 2!l aspects of each busingss are conducted by Group Executve management at least half yearty, and

» a comprehensive system of financial reporting An annual budget for each operating company & prepared in detall and approved by the Chief Executive
The Board approves the overalt Group's budget and plans Monthly actual results are reported against budget and prior year and the forecast for the year I1s
revised where necessary Any signficant changes and adverse variances are questioned by the Board and remedial acton i taken where appropriate There
5 weekly cash and treasury reporting to the Fnance Director and penodic reporting to the Board on the Group’s tax and treasury postion

The system of mternal control 15 designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of faling to achieve business objectives and can prowde only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against materal misstaternent or loss

The nsk framework as outined above, gives reasonable assurance that the structure of controls in operaton is 2ppropaate ta the Group's stuaton and that there
1 an acceptable leve! of sk throughout the business

The Board confirms that there s an ongaing process for identfying evaluating and managing the signdicart risks faced by the Group, thas this has been in place
for the year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts

RICHARD MONRO
COMPANY SECRETARY
12 MARCH 2008
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

INCLUDING THE STATEMENT OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Commitiee on behall of the Board 1 accordance with the requirements of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report Regulations 2002 and The Listing Rutes The information set out on pages 58 and 59 of this Report represents the auditable disclosures referred 1o m the
Audrtors’ Report on page | | | as specfied by the UK lisung Authortty under Schedule 7A of the Companies Act 1985 Comphance with the Combined Code
55 detated in the Corporate Governance Report on page 48 Shareholders will be ivited to approve the Report at the Arnual General Meeting on |4 May 2008

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has a long established Remuneration Commitee (“the Commitee), which meets at least twice a year It s comprised solely of ndependent

Non-Executive Dvectors The Commatee comprses the following Non-Executve Drredtors Mr PH Blackburn (who chars the Commttee), Mr M ) C Borlengh

and Mr D A Haxby, all of whom are independent within the defintion set out n the Code  They comprised the Commutee for all of 2006, 2007 and up

to the date of this report Biographical detais of the Commitiee members are set out on page 42 The fees pad to Non-Executive Directors are determined !
by the Board The Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any way in connecion with the determunation of thewr own fees

The role of the Committee 15 to determine on behalf of the Board the salary and benefits receved by the Charman and the Executive Directors and for
overseeing the remuneration of other Senior Executves The Commitee's Terms of Reference are set out on the Company's website www sigplc co uk
Its key responsibilties are

o 1o determine the remuneration policy for Executve Directors and such other members of the executive management as iLs designated to consider, I
o to design speciic remuneration packages which include salanes, bonuses, equity incentives, pension nights and benefits,

e to review the Executve Directors’ service contracts

e to ensure that falure 1s not rewarded and that steps are always taken 1o ntigate loss on termination, within contractual obligations
* to review remuneration trends across the Group, and

» 1o approve the terms of and recommend granits under the Group's incentve plans

The Chief Executve Mr D Willams 1s consulted on the remuneration of Executive Directors and attends meetings by invitation but does not partcipate
when his own remuneration s dscussed The Charman of the Board also attends meetings by imvitation but does not participate in any way in connection
with the deterrmination of his own salary The Company Secretary prowdes informanon to the Committee and & in attendance at meetings Dunng the year
the Committee met four tmes and all members of the Committee attended each meeting The Committee akso takes independent professional advice,

on an ad hoc basss, as requred The Committee reviews its own performance annually and considers where improvements can be made

During the year the Committee conducted ts annual review of remuneration to ensure that the overall remuneration structure continues o promote the |
Company's business strategy The Commitiee also rewewed the share scheme performance criteria to ensure s continued approprateness pror to the grant

of Awards under the Long Term Incentrve Plans (“the LTIP7) and options under the Deferred Annual Borws Scheme ("DABS") For the LTIP Awards made in

2007 the Committee deaded that the threshold at which 30% of the Award vests should be ncreased requinng 5% redl annual compound growsh n EPS

over the three year performance penod

In January 2006, the Remuneration Committee appanted PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"), a leading consultancy firm with substantial experuse in
Executive remuneration 1o assist the Committee i1 refiring s strategy on rewarding and compensating fis Senior Executves and in so doing have regard
to market comparabiity and the remuneration poliaes of the Group s peers and competitors PwC adwised the Commuttee duning the 2007 financial year
partcularly n relaton to the continued implementation of the Group's remuneration sirategy and the provision of relevant market information PwC also
prowides the Company with taxation adwvice and consultancy services

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company's policy for 2007 and subsequent years 1s to provide remuneration packages that farly reward the Executve Directors for the contnbution

they make to the business and are competrtive enough to attract, retain and motivate Executve Dwectors ang Serior Managers of the nght calbre The pohcy
15 designed 10 Incentrvse the Directors 1o meet the Company's financial and strategic objectives such that a signdicant proportion of rermuneration 5 performance
refasted The Company's financial and strategic objectives are set out In the Business Review on pages 13 to 15

The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to consider corporate performance of environmental, social and governance sssues when determinung the overall
reward for the Executrve Directors

The bar chart on page 53 explans the relevant impartance of the elements of the remuneration package that are performance-related and those that are not
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POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CONTINUED
RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF FIXED AND YARIABLE ELEMENTS OF PAY

100%
80%
60% DABS
40% LTie
Bonus
20%
Bernefits
0% D WILLLAMS M | CHIVERS G W DAVIES € ] DAVIES Satary

For the purpases of the chart set out above salary, benefits {exduding pension) and bonus at the amounts recerved in 2007 LTIP and DABS awards are included
2t therr face value

In reviewing Executive Directors’ salanes due consideration is given ta the levels of increase granted to other employees within the Group and the Commuttee
reviews and notes the total indnadual remuneration packages of each of the other Servor Executves The Committee ako considers the information from the
Company's comparator group, which comprses 24 companies of broadly simitar market capitabsation to the Company's {excluding finance and real estate
companies) and 20 comparues having broadly similar levels of tumover Basic salanes are reviewed annually or when a change of responsibility occurs

The Committee considers that the targets set for the diffierent elements of performance refated remuneration {including the share opt:on schemes) are appropnate
and demanding in the context of the Company's trading emaronment and the business challenges 1t faces

The Committee believes that the Earnings per Share ("EPS®) condition s appropnate for ts share incentive schemes (¢ LTIP and DABS) as 1t requires substantial
improvements in the underiying financial performance of the Company in order for the options to become exercisable Delomte & Touche LLR in their capacity
as Auditors are required to rewew the calculations as to whether the performance targets for all relevant share schemes have been achieved before any exercise
15 permitted

The man companents of Executrve Directors’ remuneration are gven below

BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

Base salary and benefits are determined on an annual basis by the Committee based upon the recommendations of the Chief Executve and after a review

of the indmdual s performance, experience and market trends The Chief Executive does not make recommendations to the Comrnittee m respect of his own
remuneration The Committee takes nto account published remuneration information on comparable companies and salary policy within the rest of the Group
Benefits comprise a cornpany car, medical and permanent heatth insurance The value of benefits 15 not pensionable

The annual rates of base salary in force dunng the year are shown in the table below

Annual Annual

rata of rate of

salary salary
2007 2008 Increase
Name £ £ %
D Willams 480,000 510 000 625
G W Dawvies 285,000 300 000 526
M} Chwers 258,000 270,000 465
C | Dawes 219,000 365,000* 66 70

* Mr C | Dawes salary was increased 10 £365 000 with effect from | January 2008 following his appaintment as Deputy Chief Executive His satary will be
ncreased to £465,000 per annum on | July 2008 on his appontment as Chief Executive
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

INCLUDING THE STATEMENT OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2007

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CONTINUED

ANNUAL BONUS

The annual performance related bonus prowdes Executive Directors with an incentive to achieve performance targets, which are set at the beginning of a financial
year The performance metncs for the year under review and the following year are shown in the table below

Profit Personat Maqmum

before tax  obyectves % bonus of

Name % of salary of salary 9% of salary
O Willams 2007 90% 10% 100%
2008 90% 10% 100%*

G W Davies 2007 62% 12% 74%
2008 S0% 109% 100%

M ] Chvers 2007 60% 14% 74%
2008 90% 10% 100%

C § Daves 2007 63% 9% 72%
2008 90% 10% 100%*

The pre-determined performance targets and persanal objectives for 2007 were achieved in full by Mr Willams and Mr G W Dawies resulting in the maximum
1009% of base salary bemg payable to Mr Willams and 74% of base salary being payable to Mr Davies Mr C | Davies pre-determined performance targets,
which relate to profit performance of those businesses under his direct contro! 2nd to the SIG Group as a whole, were achieved in full resulting 1in the maamum
amount of 72% of base salary being payable Mr M | Chivers pre-deterrmed performance targets, which relate to proft performance of those businesses under
hus direct control and to the SIG Group as a whole, were substantially achveved resulting in an amount of 67% of base salary being payable

* For the 2008 financial year the Committee has agreed that following the review carried out in 2007 the maximum bonus that can be earned should be 100%
of base salary for each Executive Director The performance targets were increased as a result of this change In the case of Mr D Williams his bonus will be
based on his base salary at | January 2008 up to the date of his intended retrement on 30 june 2008 In the case of Mr C | Dawes i has been agreed that
his borius will be based on s salary as at 1 July 2008 when he becomes Chief Exeautive However, the maximurm bonus will only be pad on the achievement
of very stretching targets and personal obyjectrves

PENSION SCHEMES

All Executrve Directors are members of the Group's contnbutory defined benedit pension scheme, which enables members to retre at age 60 with a maamum
pension after 40 years' pensionable service equivalent to two thirds of final pensionable salary Pensionatle salary s basic saary, excluding bonuses Final pensionable
salary is the average of the highest three consecutive pensionzble salanes in the last ten years before retwement For serace up to 31 July 2002, pensions i payment
are guaranteed to increase by 5% per annum compound Following consultation with the actve membership of the scheme certain changes were made to the
contnbution levels and benefits in order to hmit future labilies and corsequently, for serwce from | August 2002, persiors in payment are guaranteed 1o Increase
by the lower of 5% per annumn or the increase in the Retail Pnce Index On death before retrement, a lump sum equal to four tmes curent salary s pad,
together with a spouse’s pension of 50% of pensionable salary As part of this scheme, all Executve Directors are covered by permanent heahh insurance

In March 2006 the Board agreed that the rules of the Group's contnbutory defined benefit pension scheme should be amended to permit continued accrual
in the Scheme to age 65 All Members will be perrmitted o0 take ther benefits at age 50 without abaterment if they so wsh

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLANS {*LTIP7)

All Executve Directors are eligible to participate in the LTIP Under the LTIP participating Directors and other designated Senor Managers are gramted il cost
share options up to a maxmum of 70% of base salary In 2004 Shareholders approved the adopton of a new LTIF Optiors were granted in each of the five
years ended 31 December 2003 under the old Plan and in 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 under the new Plan As set outon page 59 in the Directors share
options table under the heading *Long Term Incentrve Plan”, none of the Executve Directors have awards which had not vested at 31 Decernber 2007 under
the old Plan Awards under the LTIP are not pensionable Awards under both of the LTIPs are exerciseble between three and ten years from the date of grant
Under the Rules of the LTIP outstanding awards vest on termination for certain reasons, such as death retrement and redundancy or on a change of conirol,
on a time related, pro-rata bases subject to the sausfacion of the relevant performance crteria f, however, the termination of employment 15 for a reason other
than one of those specriied in the Rules an indndual’s full award lapses, unless m exceptional arcumstances the Commuttee deades atherwse There were no
exerases of dscreton by the Commuttee dunng the year
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POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CONTINUED

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES CONTINUED

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLANS ("LTIP") CONTINUED

All LTIP awards are subject to earnings per share performance conditons The performance targets attaching to LTIP Awards that are still subject to performance
are set out below

In the case of the Awards made in 2004, 2005 and 2006 the performance condrtion s based on real (in excess of RPI) annual compound growth in EPS as shawn
below The three year performance peniod for Awards starts at the beginning of the finarcial year in which the Award 1s made There 15 no faclity for retesting the
performance condiuon zfter the end of the three year performance penod

Real annual compound
growth m Group EPS over three years Percentage of Award vestng
Threshold 3% 30%
Maurmum 10% 100%
Between Threshold and Maximum 3% - 10% Pro-rata between 30% and 100%

In the case of the 2007 Award, the performance condition is based on real {in excess of RPI) annual compound growth in EPS as shown below The three year
performance penod for Awards starts at the beginning of the financial year in which the Award s made There 1s no facility for retesting the performance condition
after the end of the three year performance pernied

Real annual compound
growth i Group EPS over three years Percentage of Award vesing
Threshold 5% 30%
Maximum®*® 10% 100%
Between Threshold and Maxsmum 5% - 10% Pro-rata between 30% and 100%

* For 2008 the Remuneraton Committee has decded that the level of Award to be rmade under the LTIP will be increased to §00% of base salary for Mr C | Dawves
a6 a resukt of his appointment as Chief Executive on | July 2008 and 75% of base salary for the Mr M | Chvers and Mr G W Dawvees As a result of his intended
retirement of 30 June 2008 no Award will be made to Mr D Willlams in 2008 For the Awards to be granted in 2008 the Committee has deaded that the
requirement at which 1009% of the Award vests will be increased requinng 2% real annual compound growth in EPS over the three year performance penod

The above performance conditions were chosen because they were believed to be chellenging and nat only take account of the need for long term performance
and commitment but also are an important means of aligning the interests of the employees and Shareholders At the end of the relevant penod the Remuneraton
Committee assesses whether the performance condiions have been satisfied

In 2007 Awards were made under the LTIP to Mr D Willlams with a vahue of 70% of hus base salary and to Mr M | Chwers, Mr C | Davies and Mr G W Daves
with a value of 50% of their base salary as shown in the table on page 59

DEFERRED ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME ("DABS")

In 2004, Shareholders approved the introduction of a DABS Partiapants (including Executve Directors) are invited to wse up to 30% of their annual performance
related cash bonus (after income tax and national insurance) in respect of the preceding financial year to purchase shares in the Company The purchased shares
must be retaned for three years Partcipants purchasing such shares wil be ehgible to receve up to a maximum of one addtional free matching share for every
share purchased, prowiding certain pre-set real (in excess of RP[} annual compound EPS growth targets are met over a three year penod For 2007 the performance
targets for the DABS are shown below

Real annual compound
growth 1 Group EPS over three yeary Percenizge of Award vesyng
Threshold 3% 50%
Maximum 5% 100%
Between Threshold and Maxamum 3% - 5% Pro-rata between 50% and 100%

The above performance conditions were chosen because they were believed to be challenging and not only take account of the need for long term performance
and commitment but also are an inportant means of aligning the interests of employees and Shareholders At the end of the refevant peniod the Remuneration
Commuttee assesses whether the performance condions have been satsfied

Awards made under the DABS are not pensionable and are set out in the table on page 5%

Under the Rules of the DABS outstanding awards vest on termnauon for certain reasons such as death, retrement and redundancy or on a change of control
on a ume related, pro-rata basrs subject 1o the satisfacion of the relevant performance crtena If, however, the termination of employment 1s for a reason other
than one of those specfied in the Rules an indnadual's full award lapses
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

INCLUDING THE STATEMENT OF REMUNERATION POUCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2007

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CONTINUED

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

The Executive Directors are ako efigible to partapate in the Company's Share Incentrve Plan ("SIP7} which commenced in November 2005 and is open to all
UK employees of the Group The Company gives one rmatching share for each share purchased by the employee up to a maomum of four matching shares per
ronth This replaced the Savings Related Share Option Scheme ("SAYE™) for UK employees as a decsion has been taken not to operate both schemes at the
same tme

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors including the Charman, do not have service contracts The Company s palicy 1s that Non-Executive Dhrectors are appointed
for specific terms of three years unless otherwse terminated earber by and at the discretion of etther party upon three months’ written notce Non-Executive
Directors' appontmenits are reviewed at the end of each three-year term  Non-Executive Directors will normally be expected 1o serve two three-year terms
although the Board may invite them to serve for an additonal penod

The Executrve Directors are responsible for recommending to the Board the fees of Non-Executve Directors The basik Non-Executve Director fee 15 calculated
by reference to current market levels and takes accournt of the time commitment and the responsibilibes of the Non-Executve Directors Non-Executrve Directors
do not recerve benefits from the Company and they are not eligible 10 jon the Company’s pension scheme or participate n any bonus or incentive scheme

or any of the Company s share option schemes Any reasonable expenses that they incur in the furtherance of their dutes are reimbursed by the Company

The Charman and Non Executve Directors fees are reviewed in May each year with any increase being payable from | June

The dates of their letters of appontment and annual entilement to fees are set out below

Charrman of Total Total

Servor Remuneratony  annual fees annual fees

Independent Aodt from from

Date of Basc Dwrector Committee | May b May

letter of Date of fee lee fee 2007 2006

appontment  appoantment £ { L i 4

L O Tench 01/03/2003 2840212003 134,000 - - 134,000 130000
P H Blackburn 010772001 1406/2001 42,000 2,000 6,000 50,000 48,000
D A Haxby 010372003 280272003 42,000 - 8,000 50,000 46,000
M} C Borlengh 02/04/2004 08/3/2004 42,000 - - 42,000 40 000

™Mr P H Blackbum Mr M | C Borlenghy, Mr D A. Haxbyand Mr L O Tench, as Non-Executve Directors, did not hold or have granted any share options
duning the year

SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Executive Directors have service contracts for a continuous term to retirement age providing for a rolling twetve months’ notice period in wriing

by etther party

The service contract for Mr D Willams 5 dated 4 December 2006 The Company can terminate his employment forthwith in lieu of a twelve month
notice penod or any unexpired portion thereof by paying to him an amount equal to his basic salary for such penod and an amount in hew of the bonus
which he would have recerved had he remained employed during the notice penod and prowiding tum with all benefits to which he s ertided If the
Company terminates employment without gving notice or making a payment in ieu, any damages to which he may be enttled is to be calculated in
accordance with common law prinaiples, including those relating to mingauon of loss and accelerated recerpt

The servce contracts for Mr M ] Chvers, Mr G W Davies and Mr C | Davies are dated | January 1995 | August 2002 and | 2 September 2002

The Company can discharge any obligation i relation to the unexpired portion of their notice peniod or any notice required to be grven under therr service
contracts by making a payment in lieu thereof subject to the deduction of tax and national insurance If the Company terminates employrment without gving
notice or making a payment in iey, any damages 10 which the Executive may be entiled 15 to be caleulated in accordance with common law pnnaples,
ncluding those relating to mutsgation of loss and accelerated receipt

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

To better align Executve Director interests with those of Shareholders the Company has establshed the principle of requinng Executive Directors to buid up
and mantan a benefical holding of shares in the Company equivalent to a mwimum of one tmes basic salary Under normal arcumstances it s expected that
this should be achieved within five years of 31 December 2004, or within five years of appointment, whichever is the later It 15 anticipated that the satsfaction
of this target will be mainly achieved by the vesting of shares through the Company s share schemes
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows the Company's Total Shareholder Return {"TSR") performance, compared wth the performance of the FT'SE All Share Support
Services Index over the five year period to 31 December 2007 This index has been selected because the Cornpany believes that the constituent companies
comprising the FTSE All Share Support Senvces Index are the most approprate for this companson as they are affected by similar commeraal and economic
factors to SIG

) JANUARY 2003 TO 31 DECEMBER 2007
1 000+
900 1
BOO

— SIG pk
— FTSE All Share Support Servces

2003 ' 2004 2005 2006 2007
TSR (rebased = 100 at | January 2003)
Source Thomson Datastream

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF S1G PLC
The Directors who have held office during the year ended 31 December 2007 had the following mterests in the ordinary shares of the Company

I January

2007 or

31 Dacember date of

2007  apponiment

P H Blackburn 8,000 8,000
M | C Borlengh 5,000 5000
M | Chivers 51L,471* 46,270*
C | Dawes (2pponted 12 February 2007) 23,300 14,112
G W Daves 55,597* 43,598+
B A Haxby N Nd
L O Tench 24,000 20,000
D Williams 113,231*  |0C,190*

* Includes shares purchased under the StG plc Share Incentrve Plan

All shareholdings were unchanged as at |13 March 2008 other than on |5 January 2008 Mr D Wilhams, Mr G W Daves and Mr C ] Dawes acquired
afurther 15 shares and Mr M | Chvers a further |3 shares under the SIG Share Incentive Plan and on |5 February 2008 Mr Willams Mr G W Dawvies
and Mr C | Dawves acquired a further 16 shares and Mr M | Chivers twelve shares under the SIG Share Incentive Plan
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

INCLUDING THE STATEMENT OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Anrwal
performance 2007 2006
Salary related Total Total
and lees bonus Benefits  en emol
£000's £000's 000 s L000°s £000's
Chairman
L O Tench 133 - - 133 125
Executrve
D willams 480 480 [ 966 795
M | Chwers 258 173 20 451 185
G W Dawies 285 211 20 516 450
C | Daves (apponted 12/02/2007) 219 162 I 382 -
Non-Executive
P H Blackbum 49 - - 49 46
™M | C Borlenghi 4| - - 41 39
D A Haxby 49 - - 49 44
Total 1,514 1026 47 2,587 1,684

The base salanes for the Executive Directors as at | January 2008 {ollowing the review are Mr D Williars £510,000, Mr C ) Dawes £365,000, Mr G W Dawvies
£300,000, and Mr M | Chivers £270,000 The increases were in line with the Commuttee’s stated policy of targeting base salaries at medran market rate

There were no expense allowances or compensation for loss of ofice payments

There are no deferred bonuses

The highest pad Director in the year was Mr D Willams

Benefits relate to the estimated vzlue of the provision of a company car and medical insurance premiums

There were no sums pad to third parties In respect of the seraces of any Director

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not iIndude any amounts for the value of options 1o acquire ordinary shares in the Company granted to or held by the

Executive Directors

DIRECTORS' PENSIONS

The following Directors had retrement benefits accruing under the Company's man contnbutory defined benefit scheme in respect of qualifying servces dunng

the year
Transfer
Increase value of Contnbutions
n accrued wxrease n Acorued Transfer Transfer made by
Increase benefits accrued benedits at value at value st Exeasme to Increase n
n acorued netol  benefis net 3t December 31 Decernber | Jarwsary the scheme transler
benefts wnflznon of wiflavon* 2007 2007 2007 n the year value*
£000 s £000s £000s £000s £000s {000 £000's £000s
D Willlams 29 22 333 219 4,430 3632 36 762
M | Chvers 20 15 222 136 2,603 2,095 19 489
C ] Dawves 7 6 74 42 738 579 14 |45
G W Davies 11 9 67 62 733 559 21 153

* after deducting Executve contnbutions

The transfer values disclosad above are calculated in a manner consistent with "Retrement Benefit Schemes — Transfer Values (GN 1 1Y published by the Institute
of Actuanes and the Faculty of Actuanes They do not represent a sum pad or payable to the indmwdual Director, but instead represent a potential hiability of the

pension scheme

Members of the above scheme have the option to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions, nerther such contnbutions nor the resulting benefits are induded

in the above table
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DIRECTORS' SHARE OPTIONS
Mr Blackbumn, Mr Borlenghi, Mr Haxby and Mr Terkh, as Non-Executve Directors, did not hold or have pranted any share options dunng the year

The share options for the other Directors who held ofiice at any tme dunng the year ended 3| December 2007 are set out below

Number of shares Market price &t date of Exerage dites
Date on Market At
which price | January Exerase Date on
scheme when stheme 2007 At expres Earfest which
nterest nterest  or date of 31 December per 10p vestng Date opuon
was awarded was awarded 2ppontment Granted  Exerased  Lapied 2007 share Vesung Exerased date exergsed expres
Deferred Annuat
Bonus Scheme
D willams
- 1900472005 6100p 2,626 - - - 2,626 Nl - - 190472008 - 1BLO42015
- 13/04,2006 866 3p 2026 - — - 2,026 Ni — ~ 13042009 - 12/04/2016
C | Dawvies
{apponted
12/02/2007)
— 130472006 B56 3p 1,447 - - - 1,447 MNil - - 130472009 - 12/04/2016
- 17/04/2007 1,166p - 1.072 - - 1,072 N - - 17/04/2010 - 160042017
Long Term
Incentrve Plan
D Willarns
- 1 1/05/2004 35925 70,809 - (70,809) - - 100p 13150p 1,3720p  11/05/2007 1506/2007 10/05/2014
- 19/04,2005 4i00p 48,770 - - - 48,770 Nil - - 190472008 - 180472015
— 13042006 91 7p 34935 - - - 34,935 NIl - - 13042009 - 12/04/2016
- 1700472007 1,300 Bp 25830 — - 25,830 Nl - - 170472010 - 16042017
M ] Chevers
- FER5/2004 35925p 251289 - {25,289) — - 100p 1,3150p 1,3720p  11/05/2007 1506/2007 10052014
— 190472005 6100p 17,622 - - - 17,622 Nil - - 19/04/2008 - 180412015
- 13/04/2006 91l 7p 13,436 - - - 13,436 MNd - - 130422009 - 120472016
- 170472007 1,300 8p 9917 - - 2917 2] - - 170472010 ~ 160472017
G W Davies
— 1 1Q5/2004 35%25p 28901 - {28,900) - - 100p 13i50p 13720p 110052007 15062007 100572014
- 19/04/2005 6100p 19 262 - - - 19,262 Nit - - 19/04/2008 - 18042015
— 13042006 511 7p 14,808 - - - 14,803 Nil - - 13/04/2009 - 12042016
- 17/04/2007 1,300 Bp 10,955 - - 10,955 Ni - - 170472010 - 160472017
C | Daves
apponted
12/02/2007)
- 110572004 359 25p 13,167 - (13,167) - - 100p 1.3150p 1,3720p  11/0572007 1500672007 10/005/2014
- 15/04,2005 6100p 8,042 - - - 8,042 Nil - - 19/04/2008 - 18/0422015
— 13/04/2006 911 7p 5,765 - - - 5,765 Nil - - 13/04/2009 - 120472016
- 17042007 1,300 Bp - 8,649 - - 8,649 il - - 17042010 - 16/04/2017
Savings Refated
Schemes
M ] Chivers
~ 100572004 360 0p 5450 - - - 5,450 300 Op - - 010772009 - 31/122008
C | Daves
(appownted
12/02/2007)
- 100572004 360 0p 5,450 - - - 5,450 300 0p - - DI072009 - 31122009
G W Daves
- 07/05/2003 205 5p 9,954 - - - 9,954 165 Op - - 01/7/2008 - 3171272008
Total 327,759 56423 (138,166) - 246,016
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

INCLUDING THE STATEMENT OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

DIRECTORS' SHARE OPTIONS CONTINUED
LTIP and DABS awards are subject to real annual compound EPS tasgets over the three year performance period as set out on pages 54 and 55

No pnce has been paid for any awards of share options which were unexpired at ary ume in the financial year
The market price of the shares at 31 December 2007 was 747 5p and the range dunng 2007 was 700 S5p to 1,458 Op

The aggregate of the total theoreucal gains on options exercsed by the Duectors dunng 2007 amounted to £1,881,821 {2006 £1,444 279) This 15 caleulated by
reference to the difference between the closing mid-market pnce of the shares on the date of exercse and the exerase prce of the optons, disregarding whether
such shares were sold or retaned on exerase and 15 stated before tax

A resolution to approve this report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeung
The Board of SIG pic has approved this Directors’ Remuneration Report
On behalf of the Board

el

PETER BLACKBURN —

CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
12 MARCH 2008
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

This report to Shareholders has been prepared by the Audt Committee (“the Committee”) on behalf of the Board in accordance with the requirements
of paragraph C 3 3 of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance and paragraphs 5 | and 5 2 of the guidance on Audt Committees produced by
Sir Robert Smith The Report gives detarfs of the work of the Comrmittee n discharging s responsibilities

MEMBERSHIP
Throughout 2007, the Committee comprised the three independent Non-Executive Directors Mr D A, Haxby was the Charman and Mr P H Blackburn
and Mr M | C Borlenghi were members The Board considers that each Member of the Committee ts indepandent within the defintion set out in the Code

The Chairman of the Committee Mr D A, Haxby 15 a Chartered Accountant (FCA) and 15 conskdered by the Board to have significant recent and relevant financal
experence He was a Partner in Arthur Andersen for 18 years (1977-1995) holding senior management posiions i the UK Practice from 1985 to 1995 Since
then he has served as Audit Committee Chairman of a number of UK listed companies The other members of the Commetee have a wide range of business
experience, which 15 evidenced by their biographical summanes on page 42 The Board makes appointments to the Committee The Company Secretary acts

as Secretary to the Committee

Members of the Commrttee undertake ongoing traimng as required

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Committee operates under Terms of Reference which can be found on the Company's website and which are avatable on apphcation to the Company
Secretary at the regstered office They are reviewed annually by the Committee and changes are recommended to the Board for approval

The main dutes of the Committee set out i its Terms of Reference are

s monttoring the integrity of the Company’s Accounts including its Annual Report and Accounts and Half Yearly Report,
& reviewing the consistency of accounting policies, Including any changes

& keeping under review the effectiveness of the Company's internal control and risk management systerns

& reviewing the Company's arrangements for ts employees to rase concerns, in confidence about possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters

FONVNHIACD IFIVHONHOD

& monrtoring and reviewang the effectveness of the Company’s outsourced internal audit function,
& revewing the annual audit plan and recemng the Auditors” Reports and the Company s response,
& considenng and making recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment re-appointment and removal of the Company's external Audtors,

o overseaing the relationship with the external Auditors, iIncluding (but not imited 1) approving their remuneration assessing annually their independence and
objectvty, taking into account relevant professional and regulatory requirements and the relationshup with the Audrors as a whale, including the provsion of
any non-audit serwces, and

* reporting to the Board identifying any matters on which the Committee considers that action or improvernent s needed and making recommendations as to
the steps to be taken

The Committee has the power 1o engage outside adwisers ff it considers it to be necessary
The Committee reviews its own performance annually and considers where improvements can be made

The Charman of the Committee attends the Annual General Meeting to respond to any Shareholder questions that rmight be rased on the Committee s activibes

MEETINGS

The Committee meets regularly throughout the year and s agenda is linked to events in the Company s financial calendar The agendda s mostly oyclical
afthough each member of the Committee may require reports on matters of interest in addiwion to the regular tems It is planned to meet four tmes a year

In 2007 t met four tmes and all members of the Committee attended each meeting The Finance Director attended alt four of the scheduled meetings and

the external Auditors three and they have direct access to the Committee Chairman The Chairman of the Board and the other Executive Directors attend the
meetings of the Commuttee a1 the invitation of the Comrmittee Charman The external Audttors had a confidential discussion with Members of the Committee
without the Chairman of the Board and the Executve Directors being present on one occasion n 2007 and in March 2008 before the sigring off of the 2007
Annual Report and Accounts Ernst & Young who provide an outsourced internal audnt function for the Group are inwited to all meeungs to present their reports
The Chamman of the Committee also meets with Ernst & Young without the Executive Directors present.

WORK OF THE COMMITTEE
The Committee discharged s obligetions in respec of 2007 as follows

o Annual Report and Accounts and Half Yearly Report - at #ts meetings in August 2007 and March 2008, the Commitiee reviewed the financial reporting
ssues and judgemenis contaned in the Company s Intenm Announcement and ts Annual Report and Accourts respectvely At the March 2008 meeting
the Committee recerved a report from the external Audtters setting out the accounting or judgemental ssues which required s attenuon,

accounting pobaies and standards — at ts November 2007 meeting the Committee reviewed the applicatton of any new accounting pohaies or standards that
would be applicable to the Group's 2007 Annual Report and Accounts, m particular IFRS 7 "Rnancial Instruments Disclosures™ The Committee 1s updated
regularty on actual and pending changes to Accounting Standards,

internal controls and risk management — in November 2007 and March 2008, the Commattee considered detalled reports from the Group Finance Director
on the operation of, and 1ssues ansing from the Group's internal conitrol procedures, together with observations from the external Auddors It also montored
the effectrveness of the Group's risk management process, which considers the key nisks, both financial and non-financal, facing the Group and the effeciveness
of the Group s controls to manage and reduce the impact of those nsks,
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

WORK OF THE COMMITTEE CONTINUED

& n August 2007 the Committee reviewed its Terms of Reference and Non-Audit Services Policy Following the appointment of PwC as the Group's tax advisors
in August 2006 and other preferred supphers having been dentified for due diigence services Delortte & Touche s rofe s now solely that of Group Audttor for
the whole of the SIG Group together with any “auditor permitted” services which the Group considers appropnate

» external Auddors work and relationship — the Committee reviewed the external Auddars’ proposed audtt plan in November 2007, considered s pre year-end
ssues report in December 2007 revewed the fees pad for audit and for non-audn senices 1n March 2008, and assessed the external Audrtors’ independence
and cbjectnty in November 2007 and March 2008,

internal audit function — in April 2006 Ernst & Young LLP were appointed to prowde an outsourced internal audit function for the Group At that tme the
Coramittee agreed a proposed approach and work plan for the remander of 2006 and for 2007 Dunng the year Ernst & Young undertook work on the
Group's Control Self Assessment (“CSA} procedures inchuding the independent vahdaton of CSA reporting at a number of businesses in the UK and Ireland
and a number of specal projects The Committee recerved reports from Ernst & Young at its meetings in March 2007, August 2007, Novermber 2007
December 2007 and March 2008 In March 2008 the Commatee agreed the scope of work of the internal audrt funciion for 2008 and

* “Whstleblowing” policy — n August 2007 the Committee reviewed the *whistieblowing™ policy under which employees may in confidence notfy the Company
of any concerns, inter alia masters svehang financial reporting It also reviewed the procedures for Investigating and resolving any such concems A capy of the
whstlebiowing policy 1s avalable on the Company's website The Committee aiso reviewed the arrangements for the Group s Confidential Hotline which
prowides a facity for employees to bring matters to Management's attention on 3 confidential basis The Hotline 15 pravided by an independent thurd party
The Motline was miroduced for UK employees in November 2007 for dentrfication of matiers they consider refevart A full invesugation s carned out on all
matters rased and a report 1s prepared for feedback to the complanant The Hotline will be extended to employees of all of the Group s Manland European
Operations in Apnit 2008

tNDEPENDENCE OF AUDITORS
The Board 15 aware of the need to mamtan an apprepniate degree of ndependence and objectmily on the part of the Group external auditors Both the Audtt
Committee and the external audrtors, Deloite & Touche LLP have safeguards i place to avoid the Auditors independence and objectnty being compromised

The Group polcy with regard to the prowision of audit and non-audtt servces by the external auditors, which was operated during 2007, 15 based on the pnnaples
that they should only undertake non-audtt services where they are the most appropriate and cost-eflective provider of the service, and where the provision of
non-audit services does not imparr or 15 not percerved to impar the external audiors independence and objectmty It categonses such senaces between

« Audttor permitted services — those serwices which it 1s acceptable for the Audiors 10 provide and the provision of which can be engaged without referral
1o the Commuttee {e g regulatory and other specialist financial reporting accounting adwiscry services)

o Audior excluded sennces — those engagements that the Committee and the Board do not consider appropriate for the Audtors to undertake (e g selection
design or mplementation of major financial systems, provision of internal audit services or risk management assessmant and Montonng services), and

o Audttor authorsed services — those services for winch the specric approval of the Comimuttee 1s required before the Auditors are permitted to prowide the
service (e g complex tax planning and structure adwce, corporate finance and M&A actvity)

The policy defines the types of serwces falling under each category and sets out the crtena to be met and the imernal approvals required prior 10 the commencemerit
of any “Audrtor Authonsed Services’ The Committee regularly reviews an analyss of all senaces prowided by the externad Auddors The policy is reviewed annually
by the Committee and 1s approved by the Board

Detals of the amounts paid to the external Audiors for audit and non-audit services 1n 2007 are set out In Note 4 to the Accounts on page 77

The external auditors report to the Committee each year on the acuons they have taken to comply with professional and regulatory requirements and best
practice designed to ensure thew independence, inchuding the rotation of key members of the external audit team Delotte & Touche have formally confirmed
their independence to the Board in respect of the penod covered by these financial statements Having reviewed and expressed satisfaction with the level of fees,
independence objectrty, expertse, resources and general effectiveness of Delotte & Touche LLP the Commitiee recommends (and the Board agrees) that a
resolubon for the re-appontment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Audtors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcorming Annual General Meeting

On beha¥ of the Board

e S

DAYID HAXBY

CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
12 MARCH 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Before Before
other Other other Other
Items* wems* Totat fems* stems* Total
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 006
Note im im im £m im im
Revenue
Existing operations 2,2386 - 2,2386 1,766 7 - 17667
Acquistions 216 6 - 2166 931 - 931
Continuing operations 1 2,455 2 - 24552 1,859 8 - 1,859 8
Cost of sales 2 (1,796 6) - (1,7966) (1,3525) - {1325
Gross profit 658 6 - 6586 507 3 - 5073
Other operating expenses 2 (199 ) 077) (5164  (3859) & (392 8)
Operating profit
Existing operations 147 5 {172 13¢3 1167 (G 109 8
Acquistions e - 119 47 ~ 47
Continuing operations 159 4 (172) 1422 121 4 69 1145
Finance ncame 3 91 i4 106 60 1 4 74
Finance costs 3 (28 5) - (28 5) (159 2) ~ (19 2)
Profit before tax 4 140 1 (15.8) 1243 108 2 5% 102.7
Income tax expense [ 9 4.7 (373 (32 5) 16 (309)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 982 (rn 871 757 (3% 718
Discontnued operation
Profit on disposal of discontinued operation - - - - |9 )
Profit before tax from discontinued operation - - - is8 - 38
Income tax expense on discontinued operation = - - (rn 0l (10)
= - - 27 20 47
Profit after tax 98 2 (1) 871 784 {19 765
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 973 amn B61 777 (19 758
Minonty interests 09 - 09 Q7 - 07
Earnings per share
From contmuing operations
Basic earnings per share 8 74 8p {8 5p) 66 3p 61 3p (32p) 58 Ip
Diluted earrings per share 8 74 2p (8 4p) 65 8p 60 6p (31p) 57 5p
From centinuing and discontinued eperations
Basic earrungs per share 8 74 8p (85p) 66 3p 63 4p {t 5p) &l 9p
Dituted earnings per share 8 74 2p {8 4p) 65 8p 62 8p (i 6p) 6l 2p

* *Orher iterns” relate 10 the amortsation of acquired intangibles, hedge ineffectveness and the profit on disposal of discontinued operation “Other tems”
have been disclosed separately in order to gve 2n indicaton of the underfying earnings of the Group Further informatian 1s provided within the

Staternent of Significant Accounting Poliaes on page 68

The accompanying Staterment of Significant Accounting Palices and Notes to the Accounts are an integral pan of this Consohdated Income Staternent
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2007 2006
MNote im £m
Profit after tax 87 1 765
Exchange difference on retranstaton of foresgn currency goodwill and intangibles 25 247 09
Exchange difference on retranslation of foreign currency net investments (excluding goodwall and intangibles) 25 188 40
Exchange and far value movements assocated with borrowings and dervative financial instrurments 25 1 2) 37
Tax credt/{charge) on exchange ddference ansing on borrowangs and derwvatrve financial instruments 25 1.0 un
Gains and losses on cash flow hedges 25 52) 18
Transfer to profit and loss on cash flow hedges 25 21 12
Currert and deferred tax on share options 25 ©8) 22
Actuanal gain on defined benefit pension schemes 25 62 i3
Deferred tax movement associated with actuanal gain 25 20) {10
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1017 Bl 7
Aunbutable to
Equity holders of the Company 1008 BIO
Minonty interests 09 07
1017 817

The accompanying Statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 1o the Accounts are an integral part of this Consolidated Staternent of Recognised
Income and Expense
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as ar 31 pecemser 2007

2007 2006
MNote {m im
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 2090 1350
Goodwill Lt 4349 2163
Intangble assets 12 1528 B1S
Deferred tax assets 22 174 64
8141 449 6
Current assets
Inventonies 14 224 6 1519
Trade recevables 15 414 4 3104
Other recenables 15 254 205
Dervative financal instrumenis 15 0s 17
Cash and cash equivalents 892 624
754 1 546 9
Total assets 1,568 2 996 5
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 366 1 2606
Obligations under finance lease contracts 16 26 14
Bank overdrafts 16 19 33
Bank loans 16 1508 508
Prrvate placement notes 16 221 -
Loan notes 16 28 05
Denvatve finanaal nstruments 13 367 ot
Current tax habrties 16 174 214
Prowsions 16 95 120
609 9 3501
Non-current liabibties
Obligatons under finance lease contracts 17 71 14
Bank loans 17 59 47
Private placement notes 17 2518 1930
Loan notes |17 14 -
Derwative financial instruments 7 355 77
Deferred tax labilities 17 43 178
Cther payables 17 28 13
Retirement benefit obligations 17 157 236
Provisions 17 189 142
3834 2937
Total liabilities 9933 6438
Net assets 5749 3527
Capital and reserves
Called up share capstal 24 135 123
Share premium account 25 166 5 196
Capaal redemption reserve 25 03 03
Special reserve 25 21 22
Share option reserve 25 27 18
Hedging and translation reserve 25 97 {46}
Retained profits 23 3588 3000
Attributable to equity holders of the Company 5736 3515
Minority interests 25 13 12
Total equity 25 574.9 3527

The Accounts were approved by the Board of Drectors on 12 March 2008 and signed on its behalf by

Altlliof

DAVID WILLIAMS
DIRECTOR

The accompanying Statement of Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to the Accol
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CONSO LI DATE D CASH FLOW STATEM ENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2007

2007 2006
Note £m m

Net cash flow {rom operating acuvities
Cash mflow from operating actmties 26 1603 132 4
Borrowing costs pad (19.3) {142)
Interest recened 50 24
Income tax paid (39 8) (36 6)
Net cash inflow [rom operating actvities 106 2 840
Cash flows from imvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (60 5) (447)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 41 20
Purchase of businesses i3 (226 B} (o n
Net proceeds from sale of discontinued operation - 253
Net cash used in nvesung acivibies (283 2) {107 5)
Cash flows from financtng activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capral 24 148 | 19
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 25) {1 8)
Repayment of loans (126) (135 1)
New loans 986 2116
Drndends paid to equity holders of the Company 7 284 RN
Payments to minornity Shareholder (0 8) ()
Net cash generated i finanong activives 202.4 542
Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 7 254 307
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 28 591 289
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2.8 {05)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 28 873 591

The accompanying Statement of Signficant Accounuing Policies and Notes to the Accounts are 2n integral part of this Consolidated Cash Flow Staternent
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in this Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out below

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {"IFRST™) as adopted by the European Union
The Accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for dervative financial instruments that are stated at therr far value

The Group has adopted IFRS 7 "Financial mstruments Disclosures” for the first trme in these Accounts This standard relates 1o the disclosures surrounding
financial assets and kabilties, and therefore, the adopten of this standard has no impact on the Consolidated Income Staterment or the Consolidated Balance Sheet
in ether 2007 or 2006

There are a number of new standards and interpretations 1ssued but not yet effective which the Group has not applied in these Accounts These include

® [AS | (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Staternenits”,

e JFRS 8 "Operating Segments”

e IAS 23 "Borrowing Costs”,

e {FRIC Il *IFRS 2 Group Treasury Share Transactions”,

® IFRIC 12 “Serace Concession Arrangements”,

» IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes™ and

» IFRIC 14 “IAS 19 The Limz on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and therr Interaction”

The Directors are currently i the process of assessing the impact of these new accounting standards and interpretations on the Group s Consolidated Accounts
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATICN

The Consoldated Accounts incorporate the Accounts of the Company and each of its subsidiary undertakings after eliminating afl significant inter-company
transachions and balances The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or sold are consolidated for the periods from or to the date on which control passed

Minonty interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are wdentfied separately therein Minonty interests consist of the amount of thase interests at the
date of the onginal business combination and the minortty's share of changes in equity since the date of the combination Losses applicable to the minorty in
excess of the minerity’s interest in the subsidizry's equity are allocated aganst the interest of SIG except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and 1 able to make an addional nvestment to cover the losses

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT DISCLOSURE
In order 1o give an indication of the undertying earmings of the Group, certam tems are presented in the middle columin of the Consolidated Income Staternent
enttled “Other tterns™ These indude

e amortisabion of acquired intangibles,

® hedge neffectiveness, and

& profit on disposat of discontinued operation (USA business sold on 20 November 2006)

In addion, the results of the discontinued USA business prior to its disposal have been disclosed separately below proft after tax from continuing operabons
GOODWILL AND BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

All business combiations are accounted for by applying the purchase method

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of the acquistion over the Group s interest in the far value of ”entifiable assets (including
mtangble assets) and labities of the business acquired

Goadwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill is not amartised but s tested annually for impairment, or more frequently when there
15 an indication that goodwall may be impared For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units ("CGU™)
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination If the recoverable amournt of the CGU 1 less than the carrying amount of the unit the impairment loss
s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unt pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit An imparmert loss recogrused for goodwill s not reversed in a subsequent pernod

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of remaining goodwill relaung to the entity dsposed of 5 tncluded n the determination of any profit or loss
on disposal

In accordance with the transtional arrangements of IFRS | the Group has taken the option to apply [FRS 3 to business combinations from the transttion date only
(1 January 2004) Goodwill ansing on acquistions before the date of transition te IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested
for mparment at that date  Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP pnor to | January 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not induded in determining
any subsequent profit or loss on dispasal

Goodwill recorded in foreign currency s retranslated at each penod end Any movements in the carrying value of goodwil as a result of foreign exchange rate
movements are recognised in the Consoldated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

Negative goodwill ansing on an acquistron 15 recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement
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INTANGIBLES

The Group recogrises intangble assets at cost less accumulated amortisation and impaisment losses The Group recogrises two types of intangible assets acquired
and purchased Acquired intangble assets arse as a result of applying IFRS 3 which requires the separate recogrition of intangible assets from goodwill on all
business combnations from | January 2004 Purchased mntangible assets relate pnmarily to software that 55 separable from any associated hardware

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their useful economic lives as follows

Amortsaton penod
Customer relationships Life of the relationshup
Brands Indefinte
Non-compete contracts Life of the contract
Specfic custorner contracts Life of the contract
Order-books Life of the order-book
Software Useful Ide of software

The Group Is currently amortising custormer relatonships and non-compete contracts on average over 7 4 years and 3 0 years respectively

An indefinte useful fe has been determined for brands on the basis that the brand is expected to be mantaned indefiniely and 15 expected to continue to drive
value for the Group Brands will be reviewed for imparrment on at least an annual basis

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue represents ameunts recevable for goods net of allowances and value added tax Revenue from the sale of goods s recogmised when the goods have
been received by the custormer

BORROWING COSTS
All borrowing costs are recognised in the Conseldated Income Statement in the period in which they are incurred

PENSION COSTS
SIG operates eight defined benefit pension schemes

The Group’s net obligation in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes s calculated separately for each plan by esumating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in both current and prior periods That benefit 1s discounted using an appropriate discount rate to determine
its present value, and the far value of any plan assets 15 deducted

Where the benefits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit refaung to past service by employees i recognised as an expense in the
Consohdated Income Staternent, on a straight line basis, over the average penod until the benefits become vested To the extent that the benefits vest immediatety,
the expense 1s recognised immediately

The full service cost of the pension schernes 15 charged to operating profit The finance cost of kabiities and expected return on assets are included within finance
costs and finance Income respectively in the Consolidated income Statement

The actuarial gan or loss ansing s charged through the Consolidated Statement of Recogrused Income and Expense and 1s made up of the difference between
the expected return on assets and those actually achieved the difference between the actuarial assumptions for habiities and actual experience in the pencd
and any changes in the assumphons used In the valuations

The pension scheme defictt 15 recognised in fult and presented on the face of the Consoldated Balance Sheet The associated deferred tax asset s recognised
within non-current assets n the Consolidated Balance Sheet

For defined contnbution schemes the amount charged 1o the Consolidated Income Statement in respect of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
15 the contributions payable i the year Differerces between contributions payable in the year and contnibutions actually pad are included within erther accruals
or prepayments in the Consoldated Balance Sheet

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
In accordance with the transibonal provsions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all share options granted after 7 Novernber 2002 that remamned unvested s of | January 2005
IFRS 2 has also been applied to all share opuions granted in 2006 and 2007

The Group 1ssues equrty-settled share-based payments only (share options} Share options are measured at fair value at the date of grant based on the Groups
estimate of shares that will eventually vest The farr value determined 15 then expensed in the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight ine basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase 1n equity The farr value of the options 1s measured by use of the Black-Scheles option pricing model

The amount recognised as an expense s adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where forferture 1s only due to share prices
not achieving the threshold for vesting

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with an onginal maturity of three months or less

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integra! part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purposes of the Consoldated Cash Flow Statement
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets are measured infially at farr value and then subsequently ai amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Financial assets (including trade recenvables) are assessed for indicators of impairment on an ongoNg basis Financial assets are imparred where there 15 objective
ewidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recogniion of the financial asset the esumated future cash flows have been impacted
When there s objective ewdence of imparment appropriate allowances are made for estimated irrecoverable amounts based upon expedied future cash flows
discounted by an appropniate interest rate where apphcable The carrying amount of the financial asset 15 reduced by the mparrment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade recewables where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade recenvable s
uncollectible it 15 written off against the allowance account Subsequent recovenes of amounts previousty written off are credited against the aliowance account

If, in 3 subsequent peniod, the amount of the imparment loss decreases and the decrease can be refated objectively to an event occurning after the imparment
was recognised the previously recognised impairment loss 1s reversed through profit or loss $o the extent the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment 5 reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the imparment not been recognised

Other financial assets are clasdied as erther financial assets as at far value through profit or Joss or loans and recevables The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the finzncial asset and 15 determined at the time of inrtial recogniion

When determining the faw value of financial assets, the expected future cash flows are discounted using 2n appropriate interest rate

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial habiities are classified as erther financial habilies at fair value through profit or loss or ather financial habiities

Financial labiies at far value through profit or loss are mmalty measured at far value and subsequently stated at faw value with any resultant gan or loss recognised
In profit or foss The net gain or loss recogrised in profit or loss Incorporates any nterest paid on the financial hability

Other financial labilives (including trade payables) are intialty measured at far value, net of transacuon costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective nterest method

When determining the fair value of financiat liabilitees, the expected future cash flows are discounted using an appropriate interest rate |

FOREIGN CURRENCY !
Transactions denominated i foreign currencies are recorded i the local currency at actual exchange rates at the date of the transaction

At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabiltes denominated in foreign currencies are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date !

Any gan or loss ansing from a change n exchange rates subsequent 1o the date of the transaction is included as an exchange gam or loss in the Consolidated
Income Staterment

For the purpose of consolidation income statements of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the average rate and their balance sheets at the rates
ruling at the balance sheet date

Exchange differences arising on translation of the opening net assets, results of overseas operatons and on foreign currency borrowngs, to the extent that they
hedge the Group's mvestment in such operations, are reported in the Consclidated Statement of Recognised Income: and Bpense

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses denvative financial instruments including interest rate swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swaps to hedge its exposure
to foreign currency exchange and mterest rate risks ansing from operational and financial actvities In accordance with s Treasury Policy the Group does not hold
or 1ssue devative financial instruments for trading purposes However derwvative financial instruments or part thereof, that do not qualffy for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments The fair value of hedging denvatrves 1s classdiied as a non-current asset or a nen-current habilty if the remaimng maturtty of
the hedge relabonship s more than twelve months Dervatives not designated into an effective hedge refatonship are dassfied as a current asset or a current hability

Dervatve finanaal instruments are recognised immedatelfy at cost Subsequent to therr infial recognition, dervative financial instruments are then stated at therr
farr value The farr value of dervative financial mstruments 15 derved from “Mark-to-Market” valuahons obtained from the Group's relatonship banks

Uniess hedge accounting 15 achieved, the gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value recogmsed immediately as hedge nefectiveness and 1s included as part
of finance income or finance costs within the column of the Consolidated Income Statement entitied "Other tems”

Hedge accounting I1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold terminated exerased or no longer qualfies for hedge accounting At that time, |
any cumulatve gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised i equity is retaned in equity untll the forecasted wransaction occurs If a hedged transaction is I
no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity 15 transferred to the Consohdated income Statemert for the penod

Debt and equty nstruments are classfied s erther financial kabikties or as equity n accordance with the substance of the contractual arangement

At the inception of the hedge refatonship the Group documents the relationship between the hedging nstrument and the hedged rtern along with its sk
managernent objectves and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions Furthermore, at the 1nception of the hedge and on an ongong basss, the
Group documents whether the hedging instruments that are used w1 hedging transactions are highly effectrve in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged tems
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CASH FLOW HEDGES

When a demvative financial instrument s designated as a hedge of the vanability in cash flows of a recognrsed asset or habity, or a ghly probable forecasted
transaction the eflective part of any gain or loss on the denvative finanaial instrument 5 recognised directly in the Cornscldated Statement of Recognised Income
and Expense (1e equity) When the forecasted transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial hability the assocated
cumulative gan or loss 15 removed from equity and inchuded in the intial cost or other carrying amount of the non-finarcal asset or habilty If 2 hedge of a
forecasted transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or financial iability, then the associated gains or losses that were previouslty
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense (equity) are reckesified nto the Consolidated Income Statement in the same
pericd or penods dunng whh the asset acquired or kability assumed affects the Consolidated Income Statement

For cash flow hedges, the ineffective portion of any gain or loss 1s recognised immediately as hedge meffectveness and 15 included as part of finance Income
or finance costs within the column of the Consolidated Income Statement entitted “Other tems™ Gars and losses deferred in the hedging and translation reserve
are recognsed immediately n profit or loss when the foreign operation s disposed of

HEDGE OF NET INVESTMENT IN FOREIGN OPERATIONS

The portion of any gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net Investment i a foreign operation that is determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised
in the Consoldated Statement of Recognmsed Income and Expense {ie equity) The neffective portion of any gan or Joss 5 recognised wnmediately as hedge
inefleciveness and s ncluded as part of finance ncome or finance costs within the column of the Consolidated Income Sttement entitled *Other tems”

Gains and losses deferred in the hedging and translation reserve are recognised immediately in profit or loss when the foreign operation 13 dsposed of

FAIR VALUE HEDGES

For an effective hedge of an exposure to changes In the far value, the hedged tem 1s adjusted for changes in fair value attnbutable 1o the nsk being hedged
with the corresponding entry in the Consolidated Income Statenent Gains or losses from remeasunng the derwvatrve financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the Consolidated lncome Staternent

TAXATION

Income tax on the profit or koss for the penods presented comprises both current and deferred tax Income tax s recognsed in the Consohdated Income
Statement except to the extent that # relates to tems recognised directly in equity, in which case 1t s recognised iy the Consoldated Statement of Recegnised
Income and Expense

Current tax 1 the expected tax payable on the taxable mncome for the year, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantrvely enacted by the balance sheet
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s previded using the balance sheet habilty methed, prowding for all temporary differences between the rrying amounts of assets and kabilites
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxaton purposes

In accordance with 1AS 12 the following temporary differences are not provided for

» goodwill not deductible for taxation purposes

« the inibial recognition of assets or habiities that affect nerther accounting nor taxable proft, and

» differences relating to nvestments in subsicianies to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided 15 based on the expected manner of realisation or settiement of the carrying amount of assets and liabiiies, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset s recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits wall be avalable against which the asset can be utlised Deferred
tax assets are reduced to the extent that i s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realsed

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment s shown at onginal cost to the Group less accumulated deprecsation and any provision for impairment

Depreciation 15 prowded at rates calcutated to write of the cost less estimated residual value of property plant and equipment on a straght line basis over their
esumated useful lives as follows

Freehold buldings - 50 years
Leasehold buldings - penod of lease
Plant and machinery (induding motor vehkdes) - 3t 8 years

Freehold land 1s not depreciated

Residual values, which are based on market rates, are reassessed annually
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

INVENTORIES
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost ({including an appropriate proportion of atinbutable overheads, supplier rebates and discounts) and net realisable value

Net realisable value 1s based on estmated normal selling price, less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal Prowision s made for
obsolete, slow mowving or defective tems where appropnate

LEASES AND HIRE PURCHASE AGREEMENTS
The cost of assets held under finance [eases and hire purchase agreements 15 capralsed with an equivalent hability categorsed as appropnate under current
habifibes or non-current liabities The asset 15 depreaated over #is useful ide

Rentals under finance leases and hire purchase agreements are apportioned between finance costs and reduction of the lease obhigation The finance costs are
charged 1n arrvang at the profit before tax Lease charges are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lrabilty

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight lne basis over the lease term
Lease incentrves are recognised on a strarght ine basis over the lease term i the Consolidated Income Statement
PROPERTY PROVISIONS

The Group makes provisions in respect of onerous leasehold preperty contracts and leasehold dilapidation commutrmerts where 1t 15 probabie that a transfer
of economuc benefits will be required to settle a present obligation
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES )
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Determining whether a non-current asset 1s inpaired requires an estmation of the "value n use” and/for the “fair value less costs 1o sell” of the cash-generating
unts (“CGU") which the non-current asset has been allocated The value in use calcutation requires an estmate of the future cash flows expected to anse from
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value The key assumptons for these value 1n use calculations are those regarding discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to seling prces and drrect costs The Directors estimate discount rates using pre tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the tme value of money and the nisks specric to the indradual CGU

Cash flow forecasts are prepared using the following year s operating budget approved by the Directors and 2n appropnate projection of cash flows based upon
ndustry expectations for up to five years After this period the growth rates applied to the cash flow forecasts are no more than 2% and do not exceed the
long term average growth rate for the industry

The carrying amount of non-current assels at 31 Decemnber 2007 was £814 I m (2006 £449 6m) No instances of impairment of non-current assets have been
noted as a result of the Imparment rewews performed in the year

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates esght defined benefit pension schemes All post-employment benefits assocated with these schemes have been accounted for in accordance
with 1AS 19 *Employee Benefits  As detaled within the Staternent of Significant Accounting Polices on page 69, in accordance with IAS 19, all actuarial gains and
losses have been recogmsed immediately through the Consolidated Statement of Recognsed Income and Expense

For all defined benefit pension schemes, pension valuations have been performed using specialist advice obtaned from ndependent qualified actuanes
in performing these valuations, judgements assumplions and estimates have been made These assumptions have been dsciosed within Note 29¢ on
pages 105 to 111G

TAXATION

Accruals for corporation tax contingencies require the Directors to make judgements and estimates as to the Jevel of corporation tax that will be payable based
upon the interpretation of applicable tax legislation on a country by country basts and an assessment of the Ikely outcome of any open tax computations Al such
accruals are included within current habiibes

The amount of deferred tax prowided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and labiities, using tax rates
enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset = recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be Utilsed
Therefore, judgements are required to establish whether deferred tax balances should be recognised

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Company provides share-based payments under five separate schemes

In accordance with IFRS 2, share options are measured at farr value at the date of grant The farr value determined 15 then expensed in the Consolidated income
Statement on a straight ine basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity The far value of the optians 1s measured by use of the
Black-Scholes option pnicing moded

The valuation of these share-based payments requires several judgements to be made in respect of the number of options that are expected to be exercised
Details of the assumptions made 1n respect of each of the five share-based payment schemes are disclosed n Note % on pages 82 to 85

PROVISIONS AND ALLOWANCES
Using information avatiable at the balance sheet date, the Directors make judgerments based on expenence on the fevel of prevision required to satisfy all onerous
lease and dilapidation commitments and the level of allowance to account for potential uncollectible recenables and unsaleable iInventory

SINNODOV
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

I REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
REVENUE
An analysis of the Group s revenue 1s as follows

2007 2006

im m

Continuing operations — sale of goods 2,455 2 1,859 8
Discontinued operation — sale of goods - 652
Total revenue 2,455 2 19250
Finance income 106 74
Total income 2,465 8 19324

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
As at 31 December 2007, the Group s managed and orgarused in two geographies UK and Ireland and Mantand Eurcpe On 20 November 2006, the Group
disposed of its operations in the USA These geographies are the basis on which the Group reports ts primary segment information

Segment information abot these geographies is presented below

2007 1007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 1006 2006
UK and Mainland UK and Mainland  Discontinued
Ireland Europe Eliminations Total Ireland Europe operabon {USA)  Eliminabons Total
im im im £m Lm im im im £m
Revenue
External sales 1,523 8 931 4 - 2,4552 12543 6055 652 - 19250
Inter-segment sales® 03 - (0 3) - 0l - - 1) -
Total revenue 1,524.1 931.4 03) 24552 1,254 4 605 5 652 on 1,925 0
Result
Segment result before amortisation
of acquired intangibles 1213 45.9 - 1672 9% 9 276 38 - 1313
Amortsaton of acquired imtangibles {12 0) (52) - {(172) 63) (04) - - 6 9)
Segment result 1093 407 - 1500 934 272 is - 124 4
Parert Company costs {7 8) &1)
Operating profit 1422 183
Net finance costs — continuing operations {179 {I18)
Profit before tax 1243 106 5
Profit on disposal of discontinued operation - 19
Income tax credt — on profit on disposal of discontinued operation - 0
Income tax expense — continuing OPeratons (372 (309)
Income tax expense — discontinued operation - [URD]
Minority interests {09) ()]
Retained profit 862 758
Attributable to
Continuing operations 862 701
Discontinued cperaucn - 47
862 758

* [rter-segment sales are charged at the prevaiing market rates
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| REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED
GEQGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS CONTINUED

2007 1007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
UK and Mainland UK and Manband
trefand Europs ELminations Total Irelard Europe operabon (USA)  Efrmenations Total
im im Lm im £m im im im £m
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 9027 6623 - 1,565 0 7iB 4 2665 - - 9849
Unallocated assets 32 116
Consolidated total assets 1,568 2 996 5
Liabdries
Segment labilties 3196 169 0 - 488 & 264 4 21¢ - - 3563
Unallocated habiiues 5047 2875
Consolidated total labilities 9933 643 8
Other segment information
Capitat expenditire on
Property, plant and equiprment 449 198 - 647 373 82 04 - 459
Intangble assets 227 593 - 820 289 108 - - %7
Goodwill 443 155 8 - 200 1 365 189 - - 554
Non-cash expenditure
Depreciation 214 89 - 303 183 55 03 - 241
Amortisation of acquired iIntangibles 120 52 - 172 65 04 - - 69

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Business segments are the basis on which the Group presents s secondary segment informaton The Group operates n four different segments of the market
- Insulation, Roofing and External Elerments ("R&EE"), Commeraal Interiors and Speciahist Construction and Safety Producs ("SC&SP7)

The following table provides an analysis of Group sales, assets and capital expenditure by business segment

2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
Tatal
Commercial continung
Insulation RE&EE Intenors SCLSP  operatons
im Lm £m fm £y
Revenue
External sales 2158 640 8 6212 2774 2,455 2
Assets
Segment assets 5420 917 488 4 142.9 1,565 0
Unallocated assets 32
Consohidated total assets 5420 3917 488 4 1429 1,568 2
Other segment information
Caprtat expenditure on
Property plant and equipment 136 95 4.9 57 647
Intangble assets 09 574 151 86 820
Goodwill 54 144 9 367 13.1 200 1
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

I REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED
BUSINESS SEGMENTS CONTINUED

2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 006
Total
Commeraal contnng  Discontnued
Insubation REEE Interiors SCaSP operavons operaton {USA) Total
im £m m &m m £m
Revenue
External sales 7810 437 4 483 6 158 1 | B59 8 652 19250
Assets
Segment assets 3742 249 5 2948 664 9849 - 9849
Unaflocated assets 116 H 6
Consolidated total assets 996 5 996 5
Gther segment Informatton
Caprial expenditure on
Property, plant and equipment 150 90 186 29 455 04 459
Intangible assets 172 58 24 203 397 - 397
Goodwill 12} 173 55 205 55 4 - 554
2 COST OF SALES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
Existing Exsting Drscontnued
operations  Acquisitions Total operabont Acquestions operaton (LISA} Total
£m im £Lm m i £m £m
Cost of sales 1,631 3 1653 1,796 6 12816 709 485 14010
COther operating expenses
- distnbution costs 1980 163 2143 1524 70 36 1630
- selling and marketing costs 1675 3.8 1813 1251 58 32 1341
- administratrve expenses 1115 93 120 8 978 47 61 108 6
4770 394 5164 3753 175 129 4057
The adrmnistrative expenses abave include £17 2m (2006 £6 9m) in respect of amortsation of acquired mntangibles
3 FINANCE INCCME AND FINANCE COSTS
2007 2006
im £m
Finance income
Interest on bank deposits 50 24
Finance income on penston scheme assets 42 6
Rinance income before hedge ineffectiveness 92 60
Far value gans on dervative financal nstruments (hedge ineffectrveness) 14 | 4
Total finance income 106 74
Finance costs
On bank toans, overdrafts and other items 47 72
On private placement notes 187 77
Interest on obhigations under finarce lease contracts 05 0l
Finance charge on pension scheme habidities 46 42
Total finance costs 285 192
Net finance costs 179 I8
Aurnbutable to
Continuing operations 179 h 8
Discontinued cperabion - -
179 118

74 S1G ple Arnaal Reper and Actounts 2007




4 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

2007 2006 We X006
Continuing
operations Contrunng  Drscontnued
and total operapons operation {LSA) Total
im £m im £m
Profit before tax s stated after crediting’
Foreign exchange rate gans® 08 02 - 02
Fair value gains on dervatve financial instruments (hedge ineffectiveness) 14 14 - I 4
Gain on dispesal of property, plant and equipment 2.0 06 - 06
And after charging
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 1,7316 1,294 3 483 13426
Cepreaation of property, plant and equipment
— owned 285 231 03 234
— held under finance leases and hire purchase agreements 8 07 - 07
Amortisation of acquired intangibles included in operaung expenses 172 69 - 69
Operatng lease rentals
- fand and bunldings 396 294 12 306
- plant and madhinery 76 59 03 62
Auditors’ remuneration for audd services 10 08 - 08
Non-audit fees ol 02 - 02
Increase in provision for inventonies 04 34 0l 35
Increase in prowssion for recervables 97 88 03 91
Foreign exchange rate losses® 0l - - -
Stafl costs {Note 5} 3155 2500 61 256 3
* Excludes gains and losses incurred as a result of adopting IAS 39 “Rinancial Instruments Recogniion and Measurement”
A more detaled analysis of Auditors’ remuneration s prowded befow
1007 1006
Deloitte Delortte
and Touche 2nd Touche
£m £m
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company's Audttors for the audit of the Company's Consolidated Accounts ol ol
Fees payable to the Company's Auditars and therr assogates for other services to the Group
— for the auddt of the Company s subsidraries pursuant to legislabon 09 07
Total 10 08
Tax services
— compliance services - 01
— agvisory services - 01
Total — 02
Other serices 0l -
Total 01 -
Grand total [l 10

The report of the Audit Committee on pages 61 and 62 prowdes an explanation of how auditor objectvity and independence Is safeguarded when non-audit

services are provided by the Auditors
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

5. STAFF COSTS
Particutars of employees (induding Directors) are shown below

2007 2006
im {m

Employee costs during the year amounted to
\Wages and salanes 2716 2205
Social secunty cosis 58 278
IFRS 2 share option charge 16 I
Cther penston costs (Note 2%9¢) 65 69
3155 2561

Attributable to

Continuing operations 3155 2500
Discontinued operation - 63
3I55 2563

Of the pension costs noted above, £2 3m (2006 £2 9im) relates to defined benefit schemes and £4 2m (2006 £4 Omj relates to defined contnbution schemes

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group dunng the year was as follows

2007 2006
Number Number
Production 1,911 | 853
Drstrbution 3,998 2.849
Sales 3,983 3,350
Admunistration 1,664 1,326
§1,556 2,378
Attnbutable to
Continuing operations 11,556 9,014
Disconunued operation - 264
11,556 9,378
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of the indradual Director’s emalkuments are gren m the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 58
The employee costs shown above include the following emoluments in respect of Directors of the Company
2007 W06
fm £m
Directors remuneration (exduding IFRS 2 share option charge) L6 19
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6 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Income tax expense comprises

2007 X006
im im
Current tax
UK Corporation tax
— on profits for the year 254 236
— adjustments in respect of previous years €n {14
247 212
Overseas taxaton
- on profits for the year 169 f15
- adjustments in respect of previous years 33 (22)
Total current tax 44 9 315
Deferred taxation
Current year @9 (10
Adjustments in respect of previous years “9) 10
Deferred tax charge in respect of pension schemes 13 04
Change in tax rates 02) —
Total deferred tax an 04
Total iIncome tax expense 372 319
Attributable to
Continuing operations 372 309
Discontinued operation - 1 O
372 319

The total tax charge for the year differs from that resuting from appiyng the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 30% (2006 30%) The differences are

explained n the following reconciliabion

2007 2007 006 2006
£m % £m %
Profit on ordinary actnvities before tax — contnuing operations 1243 1027
Profit on ordinary actviies before tax — discontinued operaton - 38
Profit on dispesal of discontnued operation - 18
1243 108 4
Tax at 30% thereon 373 30 0% 325 30 0%
Factors zfilecting the income tax expense for the year
— permanent ftems 24 19% 20 1 8%
- profit on sale of discontinued operation - - ©7 {0 6%)
- losses not previously recognised in deferred tax - - ©n (0 196)
— adjustments in respect of previous years @3 (1 9%) (26) (2 4%)
- eflect of overseas tax rates - - 08 07%
— change In tax rates ©2) (0 196) - -
Total Income tax expense 72 29 9% e 29 4%
Efiectve 1ax rate
— tax on continuing operations 3712 29.9% 3069 30 0%
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

6 INCOME TAX EXPENSE CONTINUED

The eflective tax charge for the Group s 29 9% (2006 30 0%), which compnises a charge of 31 8% (2006 32 496} in respect of current year profits and

atax credi of | 99% (2006 2 49%) in respect of prior years The following factors that will affect the Group's future total tax charge as a percentage of underlying
profits are

* the mx of profits between the UK (corporate tax rate 30%, 28% from Apnl 2008) and overseas, in particular, France/Germany/Belgum (corporate tax
rates greater than 309} and freland/Poland/The Nethertands/Czech Republic/Slovakua (corporate tax rates less than 30%) If the proportion of profits from
these punsdictions changes, this could result in a higher or lower Group tax charge,

e the impact of permanent disallowables, and
e the agreement of open tax computations with the respective tax authorties

The Group has taken account of the majonty of fis trading losses in s deferred tax balance Although tax losses can be used 10 reduce cash payments of tax,
utrlsation of such losses would result 1n a deferred tax charge in that year which would eliminate any profit and loss benefit

In addrtion to the ameounts charged to the Consolidated Income Statement, the following amounts in relation to taxes have been credted/{charged) directly to
equry and are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense and Note 25

2007 2006
£m im
Deferred tax movement associated with actuanal gain 20) (R
Current and deferred tax on share cptons (0 8) 22
Tax creditf{charge) on exchange dfference amsing on borrowings and derwative financial instruments 120 {1
92 01
7 DIVIDENDS
Amounts recogrused as distnbutions to equity holders of the Company in the year
2007 2006
im £m
Final approved dmdend for the year ended 31 December 2006 of |4 3p per share (2005 |1 5p) 176 140
Intenm dvidend for the year ended 31 Decernber 2007 of 8 Op per share (2006 6 2p) 108 17
284 27
Amounts proposed as distnbutions to equity holders of the Company after the year end
2007 2006
m £m
Propased final divdend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of |18 7p per share {2006 14 3p} 25.2 176

The proposed final dvidend s subject to approval by Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and as such has not been included as a finanaal hiabilty in
these Accounts
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of earnings per share are based on the followang profits and numbers of shares

Bask and dikted
2007 2006 2006 2006
Continuing
operations Continuing  Discontinued
and total operations operation {LISA) Total
£im im m {rn
Profit after tax 871 718 47 765
Mwority interests 09 ©7) - o7
862 714 47 758
Bask and diluted before amortsation
of acquired ntangbles hedge neflectveness
and profit on disposal of dscontnued opersbon
2007 2006 2006 2006
Continuing
cperations Contnung  Dscontinued
and tota! operations operation (LUSA) Total
im £m £m £m
Profit after tax 87t 718 47 765
Minority interests {09 07 - ©7
Armortisation of acquired intangibles 172 69 - 69
Hedge ineffectveness (14 {l 4) - {1 4)
Tax refaung to the amortisation of acquired intangibles and hedge ineffectivenass “n {1 6) - {1 6)
Profit after tax on disposal of discontinued operation - - (20) {2 0)
973 750 27 77
Weighted average number of shares
2007 2006
Number Number
For basic earnings per share 130,090,267 122 560,171
Exercise of share options 982,011 1287923
For diluted earmings per share 131,072,278 123 848,094
2007 2006
Earmings per share
Basic earnings per share — continuing operatons 66 3p 581p
Basic earnings per share — discontnued operation - 38p
Total basi earnings per share 66 3p 51 9p
Diluted earnings per share — continuing operations 65 Bp 575p
Diluted earnings per share — discontnued operation - lgp
Total diuted earmings per share 65 8p 6l 2p
Earnings per share before amortisation of acquired intangibles, hedge ineffectrveness
and profit on disposal of discontimued operation
Basic earnings per share — continumg operations T4 8p 61 3p
Basic earrungs per share — discontinued operatron - 22
Total basic earnings per share 74 8p 63 4p
Dituted earrungs per share — continuing operations 742p 60 6p
Diluted earmings per share — disconunued operation - Zlp
Total diluted earnings per share 74 2p 62 Bp

SIG ple Annual Report and Agcounts 2007 BI

SLNNOOOV



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTINUED

Earnings per share before amortisation of acquired intangibles hedge mneffeciveness and profit on disposal of dscontinued operation 1s dsdosed in order to
present the underlying performance of the Group The followng disclosures reconcile these adjustments to the disclosures made on the face of the Consolidated
Income Staterment

a) Amortisation of acquired intangibles of £17 2m (2006 £6 9m) are included as part of operating expenses within the column of the Consolidated Income
Staternent enttled “Other ems”

b) Hedge ineflectveness of £1 4m (2006 £1 4m) 1s included as finance ncome within the column of the Consolidated Income Staternert entitled “Cther ttems”

<} Both the amortisation of zcquired intangibles and the hedge meffectveness give nise to tax at 3 rate of 30% (2006 30%)

2007 2006

Lm im

Amortsation of acquired intangibles 172 69
Hedge ineflectveness (4 (4
158 55

Income tax at 30% 47 I 6

d) Profit after tax on drsposal of discontinued operatian of £2 Om s disclosed separately on the face of the Consolidated Income Statement in the column entiled
“Cther tems”

9 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group had five share-based payment schemes in existence durng the year ended 31 December 2007 The Group recognised a total charge of £1 6m
(2006 £1 Im)in the year relaing to equity-settled share-based payment transactons ssued after 7 November 2002 with a corresponding ertry 1o the share
opton reserve The weighted average far value of each option granted in the year was £9 59 (2006 £6 67) Details of each of the schemes are provided below

A) SAVE AS YOU EARN ("SAYE") SCHEME

The Company operates a SAYE scheme within the UK which 15 open to all UK employees and s inked to a monthly savngs contract over three and five year
penods Options have been grarted to scheme partiopants at B0% of the prevailing market price The market pnice 15 t2ken approximately one month priar to the
official prant date Simular arrangements have existed since |7 May 2002 in Ireland There are no performance conditions attached to the exercise of these options
These options may be exerased within a fixed six month period three or five years from the date of grant

No SAYE options have been granted in the LK in 2006 or 2007 Instead the Cornpany has issued share options n 2006 and 2007 under a Share Incentive Plan
("SIP) as approved at the 2004 Annual General Meeting (see below) SAYE options were granted in Irefand in 2006 and 2007

SAYE OPTIONS (ISSUED AFTER 7 NOVEMBER 2002)

2007 2006
‘Welghted Waeghted
averaga average
axercise exerase
Optons prce (p) Optons pnee {p)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 902,602 2605 1 470817 2077
Granted during the year 32,045 823 0 37761 7970
Lapsed dunng the year (14,555) 237 % - N/A
Exerased dunng the year (171,76h) 299 0 (605 976) 1658
Outstanding at the end of the year 748,331 276 1 502,602 260 5

Of the above share options outstanding at the end of the year, none are exercisable at 31 December 2007

The SAYE options outstanding at the balance sheet date had a weighted average exercse price of 276 1p (2006 260 5p) and a werghted average remaining
contractual ife of 1 5 years (2006 | 75 years) The weighted average share price on options exerased i the year was | 300p (2006 887p)
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9. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

A) SAVE AS YOU EARN (“SAYE") SCHEME CONTINUED

SAYE OPTIONS (ISSUED AFTER 7 NOVEMBER 2002) CONTINUED

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model in relation to the SAYE options are as follows

Shares granted mn
2005 006 2007
Share price (on date of official grant) 656p 967p 1,028p
(21 Octaber 2005) {10 Novemnber 2006) (26 November 2007)
Exerase price 571p 797p 823p
Expected volatlty 29 8% 13 1% 26 0%
Actual Ife 3 and 5 years 3 and 5 years 3 and 5 years
Rusk free rate 45% 45% 45%
Dmdend 14 Qp 16 8p 20 5p
Expected percentage options exerased versus granted
— 3 years 68% 64% 65%
- 5 years 65% 64% 65%

The expected volatility was determned by calculaung the histoncal volatfity of the Group's share price over the previous three years The expected percentage
of total aptions exercrsed s based on the Directors’ best estmate for effects of behavioural conditons

B) EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (“ESOS™)

Under the exisung ESOS (for which the last options were granted in 2003), Directors and seruor management can be awarded an annual grant of share options
at market pnce, provided that the total amount payable by the indradual to exercise options under the ESOS or any other share option scheme of the Group
(excluding savings related schemes) granted dunng the immediately preceding ten years does not exceed four times base salary, bonus and benefits

Share options under the ESOS are exercsable between three and ten years for the HM Revenue and Customs approved scheme and three and seven years
for the unapproved scheme from the date of grant The award would vest in full f; over a consecutrve three year penad, the growth in the Group s eamings per
share ("EPS) 15 6% tagher than the percentage increase in the Retal Price Index None of the award would vest f the growth in EPS is less than 6% above
the percentage increase in the Retal Pnce Index over the same penod

ESOS (ISSUED AFTER 7 NOVEMBER 2002)

1007 2005
‘Weighted Weighted
averags average
exercise exerase
Options pnce (p) Optons price (p)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 61,562 2055 194 500 2055
Lapsed dunng the year (1.500) 2055 (24,000) 2055
Exerased dunng the year (24,562) 2055 {108,938} 2055
Qutstanding at the end of the year 35,500 205 5 61 562 205 5

No ESOS options were grarted 1n 2005, 2006 or 2007 The options outstanding at the balance sheet date had a weighted average exercise price of 205 Sp
{2006 205 5p) and are all exercsable at both 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 The weighted average share price on options exerased in the year
was 1,290p (2006 929p)

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model in relation to the ESOS optiors are as follows

2003 ESCS

Share price on | | Apnl 2003 (date of oficial grant) 205 5p
Exerase prce 205 5p
Expected volatiity 318%
Actual ife 3 years
Rusk free rate 42%
Dmdend Il ép
Expected perceniage options exerased versus granted 95%

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatlity of the Group's share pnce over the previous three years The expected percentage of total
options exerased s based on the Cirectors best estimate for effects of behavioural condiions
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED )

9 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
C) LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN ("“LTIP")
Under the existing LTIP policy Executves can be awarded an annual grant of mil pad share options up to a maxmum value of 100% of base salary

2003 LTIP CRITERIA

Awards under the 2003 LTIP are exercsable between three and seven years from the date of grant Prowided the indmdual’s performance critena are met the
award vests If, over a consecutive three year penod, the growth n the Group s EPS 15 10% fugher than the percentage increase in the Retal Price Index None
of the award vests  the growth in EPS 1s less than 6% above the percentage ncrease n the Retall Price Irdex over the same period Between these two hmis
the awards vest proportionately The right to exercise options termmnates upen the employee ceasing to hold office with the Group, subject 1o certain exceptons
and the discretion of the Board

if the 6% rinemum growth performance target 1s not met, the performance penod 1s extended by one year and the minimum growth in the Group's EPS, over
a consecutive four year period, Is increased to 8% over the percentage increase in the Retal Price Index over the same period The target for the fill award to
vest1s 13 33% |

2004/2005/2006 AND 2007 LTIP CRITERIA
Awards under the 2004 2005, 2006 and 2007 LT1Ps are exercsable between three and ten years from the date of grant The award vests f the following entena
are met

Pescentage of award vesting
Percentage growth in the Company's EPS over the three year period from the
commencement of the financial year in which the award 1s made exceeds the
percentage growth in the Retail Price Index over the same perod by
— less than 3% per annum compounded None of the award vests
— 3% per annum compounded* 30% of award vests
- between 3% and 10% per annum cormpounded* Award vests proportionately between 30% and 100%
— 10% per annum compounded 100% of award vests

* |n the case of the 2007 LTIPs, the threshold for 30% of the award vesting 15 5% per annum compounded, and the subsequent band for the award vesting
proportionally between 309 and 100% 1s between 5% and 10% per annum compounded

No retesting of the performance critena will occur ‘

LTIP OFTIONS (ISSUED AFTER 7 NOVEMBER 2002} |

2007 2006
‘Waighted Weghted
average average
exerce exeTCEe
Options prica (p) Opuons pxe (p)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 425,716 458 460,179 720
Granted during the year 70,954 - 100,835 -
Lapsed during the year (5.52%) 100 (4,489) 100
Exerased dunng the year {179,34%) 100 {1308B0%) 100
Outstanding at the end of the year 311,78% 032 425716 458

Of the above share options outstanding at the end of the year, 10 038 (2006 4,469) are exercsable at the balance sheet date

The options outstanding at the balance sheet date had a weighted average exercse price of 0 32p (2005 4 5Bp) and a wesghted average remaining contractual Ife
of | I years (2006 | 2 years) The weighted average share prce on oplions exercsed in the year was 1,353p (2006 905p)

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model in relation to the LTIP options are as follows

Shares granted m

2005 2006 2007
Share price (on date of offical grant) 601 p (19 Apri 2005) 898p (13 Apnl 2008) 1,292p (17 April 2007)
Exercise price Op Op op
Expected volaulity 29 8% i3 19% 26 0%
Actual Ide 3 years 3 years 3 years
Rusk free rate 45% 45% 45%
Dmadend 14 0p 16 8p 20 5p
Expected percentage optrons exercsed versus granted 28% 98% 99%

Expected volatity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatity of the Group's share pnce over the previous three years The expected percentage of total
opuions exercsed s based on the Directors’ best estimate for effects of behaviourat consklerations
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9 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

D) DEFERRED ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME {"DABS")

Options were granted under the DABS scheme for the first ume in 2005 The DABS operates by imaung partapants induding Executive Directors to use
up to 50% of ther annual performance related cash bonus (after tax and national insurance) 1n respect of the preceding financial year to purchase shares n
the Company Prowiding certam critena are met, partipants purchasing such shares will be eligible to recerve mil cost matching shares up 1o a maximum of
one per share purchased by the participant The critena are as follows

Percentage of award vestng
Percentage growth in the Company's EPS over the three year period
from the commencernent of the financial year in which the award 1
made exceeds the percentage growth in the Retaill Price [ndex
over the same penod by
— less than 3% per annum compounded None of the award vests
= 3% per annum compounded 50% of award vests
- between 39% and 5% per annum compounded Award vests proportionately between 50% and 100%
- 3% per annum compounded 100% of award vests
DABS (ISSUED AFTER 7 NOVEMBER 2002)
2007 2006
Qptions Optons
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 34,782 17,520
Granted during the year 11,297 17 262
Outstandding at the end of the year 46,079 34,782

None of the above share options outstanding at the end of the year are exerasable at 31 December 2007

All DABS are nit paid options and therefore the options outstanding at the balance sheet date had a weighted average exercise pnce of nilp and a weighted
average remaining contractual Iife of | 2 years (2006 | 8 years)

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model in relation to the DABS options are as follows

Shares pranted n

2005 2006 2007
Share prce (on date of official grant) 631p {19 April 2005) 898p (13 Apnl 2006) 1,292p (17 Apnil 2007}
Exercise price of matching shares Op Op ]
Expected volatiity 29 8% 13 1% 26 0%
Actual Ife 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk free rate 4 5% 45% 45%
Drndend 14 0p 16 8p 205p
Expected percentage ophors exercsed versis granted 100% 100% 100%

Expected volatility was determened by calculatng the historkal volatity of the Group s share pnce over the previous three years The expected percentage of 1otal
options exercised 1s based on the Directors best estimate for effects of behavoural considerations

E)} SHARE INCENTIYE PLAN (“SIP™)

Shares were granted under the SIP scheme for the first tme in 2005 The SIP 5 an HM Revenue and Customs approved scheme and operates by inviing
partipants, including Executive Directors, to purchase shares in the Compary in a tax eflinent manner on a monthly bass For each share purchased by the
employee the Company wall match one free share up to a mawmum of four free shares per month No performance citena s attached to these matching
shares other than to avoid forfetture they must remain wathin the plan for a mirimum of two years In 2007, 54,014 (2006 50,547) matching shares were
granted during the year Given the nature of the scheme, the far value of the matching shares equates 1o the cost of the Company acquinng these shares
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The movement in the year and the preceding year was as follows

Land and buddmngs
Short Plant and
Freehold leasehold mactanery Total
£m £m £m fm
Cost or valuation
At | January 2006 324 121 126 9 1714
Exchange diference 03 1n {12) (16)
Businesses acquired 54 33 53 140
Addtions 102 52 305 459
Disposal of discontinued operation {JSA) - 04 (45) 49
Oisposals {on ©n {132 {134)
At 3| December 2006 47 6 200 143 8 2114
Exchange difference 52 13 65 132
Businesses acquired 204 34 114 352
Addtions 74 85 4818 647
Disposals {1 9 {03} {17 (3%
At 31 December 2007 787 331 198 8 3106
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At | January 2006 83 28 583 6% 4
Charge for the year 07 15 219 24
Exchange difference n on 09 (in
Disposal of discortinued operatian (LISA) - 03) @B7) {40)
Disposals [CHD] {01} (11 8) {120y
At 31 December 2006 B8 38 638 76 4
Charge for the year 12 22 269 303
Exchange difference 13 o7 47 67
Disposals (14 0 {102 {11 8)
At 3| December 2007 99 65 852 101 6
Net book value
At 3| December 2007 68 8 26 6 t13 6 2090
At 31 December 2006 388 162 800 1350

The net book value of plant and machinery includes an amourt of £9 8m (2006 £2 3m) in respedt of assets held under finance lease contracts

Addtions in the year include £7 Om of equipment purchased for the purpose of hinng to custorners
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1. GOODWILL

£m
Cost
AL | January 2006 1850
Exchange dfference {1}
Recogrised on acquistion of businesses 554
Drsposal of discontinued operation {USA) {40
At 31 December 2006 2354
Exchange dfference 190
Recognised on acqusiion of businesses {Note |3) 2001
At 31 December 2007 454 5
Accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2006 204
Exchange dfference 2
Disposal of discontnued operation (USA) [{l}]
Az 31 December 2006 91
Exchange dfference 05
At 3| December 2007 196
Net book value
At 3| December 2007 434 9
At 31 December 2006 2163

Goodwill acquired n a business combination s allocated at the date of acquismon 1o the cash-generating uns {*CGU") that are expected to benefit from that
business combination

The Group tests goodwall annually fer impairment, or more frequently i there are ndications that goodwill might be impared

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for these value In use calcutations are thase regarding
discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to seling prices and direct costs The Drectors’ estirnate discount rates using pre tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific 1o the indmdual CGU

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts using the following year’s operating budget approved by the Directors and an appropriate projection of cash flows based
upon industry expectations for up 1o five years After this penod, the growth rates apphed to the cash flow forecasts are no more than 2% and do not exceed the
long term average growth rate for the industry The discount rates appled 1o all mparment reviews represent pre tax rates and ranged between 11 7% and 13 2%

There have been no nstances of goodwill imparment noted from the annual impayment tests performed in 2007 The carrying amount of goodwill of £434 9m
(2006 £216 3m) has been allocated across mutuple CGUs Indmdual amounts of goodwill allocated to a CGU that are sgndicant in comparison to the overall
carrying amount of goodwill are as follows

2007 2006

m im

UK Insulation 415 348
UK Roofing and External Elements 71 645
UK Speaalist Construction Products 42.1 289
UK Commercaal Intenors 178 -
LS Group 132 132
Ireland 417 348
Poland 83 B3
Larnaére 141 4 -
German Roofing 152 54
Central Europe 103 -
Total 402 6 189 9
Other CGUs 32.3 264
Total goodwill 4349 2163

in addition, the Group has an indefinte Ife Intangible asset (LS Group brand) of £12 6m Further details of rmpairment reviews performed on this asset are
prowded in Note 12
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The ntangible assets presented below relate entirely to acquired intangibles These anse as a result of apphying IFRS 3 wiuch requires the separate recogniion

of acquired intangibles from goodwall As detalded in the Statement of Signdicant Accounting Poliies the Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 retrospearvely

1o acqusmons that took place before | January 2004 Dunng 2006 and 2007 the Group owned purchased mtangible assets with an nsignificant book value
{manly software separable from any associated hardware) and these have not been redassfied from property, plant and equipment on the grounds of materality

Customer Non-compete
relatonships Brands dauses Order books Total
ém {m £m im £m

Cost
At | January 2006 323 126 15 ot 535
Addtions 379 - 1 8 — 337
At 31 December 2006 772 126 33 Ql 932
Exchange difference 60 - 02 - 62
Addtions 793 - 27 - 820
At 3| December 2007 162 5 126 62 01 1814
Amortisation
At | January 2006 39 - 04 01 44
Charge for the year 63 — 06 — 69
At 31 December 2006 102 - 10 01 113
Charge for the year 57 - 15 - 172
Exchange difference Ol - - - ol
At 3| December 2007 260 - 15 ol 286
Net bock value
At 31 December 2007 136 5 126 37 - 1528
At 31 December 2006 670 126 23 - 819

Amortisation of acquired intangibles s included in the Consolidated Income Statement as part of operating expenses and is classified within the muddle columin
entitied “Other tems*

The weighted average amortisation penod for each category of intangible asset 1s disclosed in the Statement of Significant Accounting Policies on page 6%

In the opinion of the Directors, the only intangible asset which has an indefinte useful le 15 the brand atinbutable to the acquisiion of LS Group Limited

The carrying value of the LS brand at the balance sheet date 15 £12 6m An indefinite useful Ife has been determined for the LS brand on the basis that it 1s
expected to be maintained indefinttely and 1s expected to contnue to drive value for the Group The recoverable value of the brand s based upon value in use
calculations  Further information on value in use calculauons 15 provided within Note |1 The Directors have used past expenence in determining each of the
key assumptions n the value in use cakulaton for the LS brand The growth rates assumed are in Ine with industry expedtations and, for penods beyond those
covered by ts management forecasts, do not exceed the long term average growth rate for the smdustry The discount rate applied 1s { | 7%, equivalent to its
pre tax weighted average cost of capital
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13 ACQUISITIONS MADE IN THE YEAR

Dunng 2007 the Group acqurred the following companies

9 of share
Aogueiton name captal azcured Acqusison date Country of incorporation Prnapal acirty
MacGregor & Morr mred 100% 18 Jarwary 2007 Unred Kingdom Distnbution of nsulating matenals and assocated products
Drainex Limited 100% 5 February 2007 United Kingdom  Distribution of roofing materials and associated products
General Fxings Limited 100% & March 2007 United Kingdom Distnbution of specalist constructon products
Meldertse Plafonneerartikelen NV 100% 22 March 2007 The Netherlands Dstnbution of commeraal intenors products
Frankiin (Sussex) Limited 100% 2 Apnil 2007 United Kingdom  Dsstnbution of nsulating matenals and associated products
Milte Dach-und Wandbaustoffe GabH 1 00% 16 Apnil 2007 Germany  Distribution of roofing matenals and associated products
& Vestiche Dachbaustoffe GmbH
BEK Baustoffe sro 100% 27 April 2007 Czech Republic/Slovakia Distnbution of msulating and commeraal interiors products
& BEK Baustoffe Slovaka s ro
Warwickshire Roofing Centre Limnted 100% 3 May 2007 Untted Kingdom  Distribution of roofing matenals and assocated products
Brarugan Intenors Limted 100% 21 May 2007 Republic of lrefand Distnbution of commercial intenors products
TP Conseil 100% 31 May 2007 France Fabricatton and distribution of insulating matenals and
assooated products
Buildspan Limdaed 100% 8 june 2007 Unted Kingdom Drstnbution of specialist construction products
Larmére SAS 100% 29 June 2007 France  Distnbution of roofing matenals and assocated products
Insulation and Machining Services Limited 100% 13 July 2007 Untted Kingdom Fabrication and distnbution of insulating matenals and
assotiated products
C M5 Acoustic Soluions Limited 100% 19 July 2007 United Kingdom Distribution of specialist construction products
Faleo international s ro 100% 3 August 2007 Czech Republic Distnbution of insulatng and commeraal intenors products
Firth Powerfx Limited 100% 3 August 2007 Untted Kingdom Dsstnbution of specialst construction products
Fitzpatnck Doars Ltd 100% 10 August 2007 Unted Kingdom  Mamufacture and distnbution of metal doors and doorsets
Handeksondemerming Jansen BV 100% 30 August 2007 Belgum Distribution of commercial interors products
Fastplas Limreed 100% 4 September 2007 Untted Kingdom  Distribution of roofing matenials and assocrated products
Landsdon Limited 100% 7 September 2007 United Kingdom Distnbution of comnmercial ntenors products
Thomas Smith {Reofing Centres) Limited 100% |2 September 2007 Unded Kingdom  Distnbution of roofing matenals and associated products
MVG Metal-Verinebs-Gesellschaft mbH 100% 19 Septernber 2007 Germany  Distnbution of roofing materials and associated products
Plastic Pipe Supplies Limsted 100% 3 December 2007 United Kingdom  Distribution of reofing matenials and associated products
Dranage Cnline Limited 100% 3 December 2007 Untted Kingdorn  Distribution of roofing materials and associated products
Intenor Zachdd Sp 2o © 100% 29 December 2007 Poland Dstribution of commeraal intenors products
The Group alse acquired the trade and certain assets and habiities of the following companies
Acquesion name Aoquistbon date Country of operation Prnapal actaity
Keydek Limzed 22 February 2007 Untted Kingdom  Dsstnbution of rocfing materals and associated products
Polyshapes Limded 8 June 2007 Untted Kingdom  Distribution of roofing materials and assocated products
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

13 ACQUISITIONS MADE IN THE YEAR CONTINUED
2007 ACQUISITIONS SUMMARY FAIR VALUE TABLE

Larradre Crther agquesions
Book Far vahse Far Book Farr value Far
value adustments value valve  adustments value Total
im £m £m fm £m im im

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 269 03) w6 86 - B& 352
Goodwill 46 3 (46 3) - 68 {6 8) — -

732 {46 6) 266 154 {68) Bé 352
Current assets
Inventones 331 22) 309 246 (14) 232 54 1
Trade and other recevables 449 09 458 46 | (24) 437 895
Cashf{overdrafts) acquired - - - {38) - (38) (38
Total assets 1512 479 103 3 823 (10 6) 717 1750
Lsabilties 147 3 - 147 3 557 10 56 7 204 0
Net assets/{liabiliues) 39 (47 9) (44 0) 266 (k1 6) i50 290
Intangible assets - eustomer refationships 331 462 7%13
Intangible assets — non-compete dauses - 27 17
Deferred tax hability on acquired intangible assets (139) {110} 249
Goodwitl 141 4 587 200 )
Total consideration 116 6 116 2282
Represented by
Contingent consideration - 57 57
Cash 116 6 1027 2193
Loan notes and deferred consideration - 312 12
Total consideration 1166 1116 228 2
The total consideration including assumed debt and net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 15 as follows
Total consideration {as above) 1166 11 é 2282
Add debt acquired 802 106 208
Met overdrzft acquired - 38 38
Total consideration {including assumed debt) 196 8 1260 3228
Acquisitzon cash flows during the year
Cash pad for 2007 acquistions dunng the year 1166 1627 2193
Net overdraft acquired with 2007 acquistions - 38 38
Net cash outflow from 2007 acquistions 1166 106 5 223 |
Contingent/deferred consideraton paxd on prior year acquisitions 37
Net cash outflow from 2007 and prior year acquisiions 2268

All contingent consideration 5 induded within provsions (Note 21)

Due to the proximity of the unming of some of the acquissions dose to the year end, the Directors have made a provisional assessment of the far value of the net
assets acquwed Any further adjustments arsing will be accounted for 1n 2008 The farr value adjustments above relate pnmanty 1o

o the review of the carrying value of all non-current assets to ensure that they accurately reflect therr market value,

» the alignment of valuauon and provisioning methodologies 1o those adopted by the Group and

o an assessment of all provisions and payables to ensure they are accurately reflected in accordance with the Group's policies

Included within goodwill are staff acquired as part of the business and strategk acquisiion synergles which are specifically excluded in the dentdicaton of intangible

assets on acquistion by the refevant accounting standards

The pre-acquistion revenue and operating prafit for Larmre, which was acquired on 29 June 2007, for the sx months ended 29 june 2007 amounted to
£121 3m and £7 Om respectvely The 2007 Conselidated Income Statement indudes the following amounts i respect of Larrére revenue £1 11 5m, cost

of sales £86 4m and operating expenses £19 7m giving an operaung profit of £5 4m

The Directors estmate the pre-acquisiion revenue and operating profit for the other acquistions for the period from | January 2007 to the respective acquistion

dates amounted to £102 1m and £6 Om respectvely The 2007 Consolidated Income Statement includes the following amounts i respect of the other

acquistions revenue £105 |m, cost of sates £78 9m and operating expenses £19 7m gmwng an operaling profit of £6 5m

Revenue and operatng profit for the twelve month period ended 31 December 2007 for all 2007 acquistions amounted to £440m and £24 9m respectvely
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13 ACQUISITIONS MADE IN THE YEAR CONTINUED

Acquistions made in 2007 {made in 2006} had the following impact on the Group's cash flows in 2007 {in 2006) cash inflow from operating actvties
£9 2m (2006 £4 7m), borrowing costs pad £6 Im (2006 £1 7m}, purchase of property, plant and equipment £4 8m (2006 £1 8m), repayment

of loans £l (2006 £10 |m}and ncome tax pad £2 4m (2006 £1 8m)
Since the balance sheet date and up to the date of approval of the Accounts, the Group has acquired eight comparves, being HHI Buidding Products Limited,

Alftnm Plasucs Limited, WK-Bodensysteme GmbH, Central Refractones (Scotland) Limted, Kern Edwards Limited, Tuhwell Tempered Glass Limtted, Tolway Fxangs Limited
and GRM Distribution Limited  Information regarding these eight acquistsens s provided below

Book and
far value
m
MNon-current assets
Property plant and equipment 26
Current assets
Inventones 33
Trade and other recervables 16 4
Cash and cash equnvalents 21
Total assets 24 4
Liabilties 142
Net assets 102
Intangble assets — customer relatonships 70
Deferred tax hability on intangible assets 20n
Goodwill 187
Total consideraton 338
Total consideration represented by
Cash 338
Acquisttion cash flows
Cash pad for acqustions 338
Net cash acquired 21
Met cash outflow from acquistions n7
14 INVENTORIES
2007 2006
im fm
Raw materials and consumables 65 61
Work in progress 09 07
Finished geeds and goods for resale 2172 145 |
224 6 1519
The estimated replacement cost of inventones s not matenally different from the balance sheet value stated above
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2007 006
£m im
Trade recenables 4144 310 4
VAT 22 07
Other recenables 70 94
Prepayrments and accrued income 162 10 4
Other recewables 254 05
Dernatrve financal nstruments [ 17
440.3 3326

The average credit penod on sale of goods and seraces 15 48 days {2006 48 days) No interest 15 charged on recevables An allowance has been made for

estimated rrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods of £25 6m at 31 December 2007 (2006 £15 6m) This allowance has been deterrmined by reference

to past default expenence

Included within the Group's trade recevable balance are debtors with a carmying amounit of £140 7m (2006 £96 2m) which are past due at the reporting
date which the Group has not provided for, as there has not been a signdicant change in credt quality and the Group considers that the amounts are stil
recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances The average age of these recenables s 26 6 days overdue (2006 28 9 days)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUVED
AGEING ANALYSIS OF TRADE RECEIVABLES FOR WHICH NO ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS HAS BEEN MADE

2007 2006
im {m
Neither past due or renegotiated 252 4 209 4
Renegotiated 02 03
Balances overdue winch have no allowance for impaiment
0-30 days 105 1 735
3160 days 265 150
61-50 days 51 35
F1-120 days 20 12
20~ 180 days 13 16
180+ days 07 14
140 7 962
Total irade recervables 3933 305 6
MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS
2007 006
£m fm
Bepinning of year (15 6) (I2 6)
Added on acquistion ®0) 31)
Utilsed 80 92
Charged to the Consoldated Income Statement (L)) o1
Exchange dfferences z3) -
End of year (25 6) (15 6)

In determining the recoverabiity of the trade recenvables, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade recevable from the date credit was
intally granted up to the reporting date and makes an allowance for doubtful debts accordingly The concentration of credit nsk 1s imited due to the customer
base bemng farge and unrelated The Directors therefore beheve that there 1s no further credrt provision required In excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

The aflowance for doubtful debts of £25 6m (2006 £15 6m) relates to rade recenables with a gross balance of £46 7m (2006 £20 4m) The allowance for doubtful
debits represents the diference between the carrying amount of the specfic trade recenable and the present value of the expected recoverable amount

The Directors consxler that the carrying amount of trade and other recenvables approximate to their far value

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
Crads ik refers ta the nisk that 2 counterparty will default on ts contractual obhigations resutuing in financil loss to the Group Trade recevable credit exposure
1s controlled by counterparty fimits that are set, rewewed and approved by operatonal management on a regular basis

Trade recewables consst of a large number of typically small to medium sized customners, spread across a number of diferent market sectors and
geographical areas Ongoing credt evaluation 15 performed on the financial condition of accounts recenable and where appropnate, credit guarantee
insurance caver 15 purchased The Group does not have any sigruficant credit nsk exposure to any single customer

The credt nsk on hquid funds and dervative financial instruments s imeed because the counter-parties are barks wath strong credit ratings assigned by international
credit ratng agencies
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16. CURRENT LIABILITIES

2007 2006
im im

Trade and other payables
“Trade payables 2259 1618
Bills of exchange payable 148 154
VAT 208 16
Socia! secunty and payroll taxes 124 99
Accruals and deferred income 922 659
Trade and other payables 366 | 2606
Obligations under finance lease contracts (Note 23) 26 I 4
Bank overdrafts 19 33
Bank loans 1508 508
Private placement notes 221 -
Loan notes 18 05
Dernative financial mstruments 367 0l
Current tax labilsties 174 21 4
Provisions (Note 21} 95 120
Current labilities 609 9 350 |

£1 4m {2006 £2 5m) of the above bank loans and overdrafts are secured on the assets of subsidiary undertakings The remaining balances are unsecured
The bank overdraft s repayable on demand and attracts a floating interest rate which 2t 31 December 2007 was 5 09% (2006 4 8%)

£46 5m (2006 £9 8m} of the bank loans and loan notes due within one year (after taking into account dervatve financial instruments) are at vanable rates
of interest

£107 ten (2006 £4] 5m) of the bank loans and loan notes due within one year (after taking into account dervative financal instruments) attract an average fixed
interest rate of 4 54% (2006 4 77%)

Trade payables and accruals and deferred income prncipally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credt penod taken
for trade purchases on a like for ke basis excluding the discontinued operation in 2006, 15 38 days (2006 38 days)

The Directors consider that the carryng amount of current hiabiities approximate to their far value

17 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

2007 2006
im £m
Obigations under finance lease contracts {Note 23)

— due after one and withun two years 54 | 4
- due after five years 17 -
Bank loans 59 47
Private placement notes 2518 1930
Loan notes 14 -
Dervative finanaal instruments 355 377
Deferred tax liabilties {Note 22} 441 178
Other payables 28 13
Retirement benefit obligauons (Note 29¢) 15.7 236
Provsions (Note 21) 189 142
3834 2937
2007 006
im £m

The bank loans included above are repayable as follows
- due after one and within two years 09 05
— due after two and within five years 45 38
— due after five years 05 04
59 47

Of the abave bank loans £5 0m (2006 £ 3m) 1s secured on certain of the assets of subsudiary undertakings, and 1s repayable by istalments
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES CONTINUED
Detalls of the prvate placement notes are as follows

2007 2007 2006 2006

fixed fexed

nterest mterest
rate® rate®

im % £m %

Repayable in 2008 2.1 7.1% 124 7 1%
Repayable in 201 | 197 73% 403 7 3%
Repayable in 2013 692 51% 255 59%
Repayable n 2016 1229 6 0% 104 B 60%
Repayable in 2018 200 5 8% — N
27319 6 0% 1930 & 4%

* before applying assoaated dermvatve financal instruments
The Dwectors consider that the carmymg amount of non-current habilties approximate 1o therr farr value
18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Treasury nsk management section of the Business Review on pages 26 and 27 provides an explanauon of the role that dernative financial nstruments have
had during the year in creating or changing the nisks the Group faces n s activities

The Group's finanaial assets consist of trade and other recervables, cash at bank and dermvatrve financial nstruments The followang financial assets form part of the
net debt of the Group

2007 2006

im £m

Cash at bank (including cash deposiis repayable on demand) 892 624
Derwvative financial instruments 05 17
897 64 |

The Directors consider the far value of these financial assets to approximate to their book value The interest recerved on cash deposits 15 at vanable rates
of interest of up 10 6%

2007 INTEREST RATE AND CURRENCY PROFILE
The interest rate and currency profile of the Group’s financial labiries at 31 December 2007, after taking account of nterest rate and currency dervative finanaal
wnstrurments {wiih the exception of the short term currency swaps noted after the tzble) was as follows

Weighted

Effectiva averaga

fixed time for
Floating Fhxed intarest  which rata Amount Amount
Totat rate rata rate is fbced secured unsecured

Cusrency Lm im £m % Years im

Private placement notes Sterling 1729 12,5 160 4 5% 75 - 172.9
Other borrowings Sterling 685 308 377 4 8% 17 04 681
Finance lease contracts Sterling [ - I 52% 17 10 ol
Private placement notes Euro 146 2 441 102.1 6 1% 35 - 146 2
Other barrowings Euro 990 297 691 4 5% 3é 59 931
Fnance lease contracts Eure 84 - 84 58% 30 72 12
Finance lease contracts PLN 02 02 - N/A N/A - 02
Cther borrowings PLN 195 19.5 - N/A N/A - 19.5
Cther borrowings CZK 28 2.7 o1 30% 35 ol 27
Total 5186 1395 379 14 6 504 0

In 2ddition to the currency exposures above, the Group has entered no ten short term currency dervative financial Instruments as follows
® two net Invesiment hedges amountng 1o an asset of £106 6m and a liabiity of €135 Om and CZK270 Om, and

e eight cash flow hedges which hedge the post tax funcuonal currency cash flows of the Group amounting to an asset of £123 Om and a habilty of €151 Sm,
CZK 145 2m and PLN37 3m

All of these denvative financial instruments were entered into on 31 December 2007 at market rates and therefore ther far value s deemed to equate to thew
book value of £ml The expiry date of these dervative financial mstruments 1s within one year

Of the above finarce lease contracts, £8 2m (2006 £| Bm) are secured on the underlying assets

The Dhirectors consider the far value of the Group's floating rate finanaal kabilives to approxamate o the book value shown in the table above The far value of the
Group s private placement notes approximates to the amount in the value of the financil kabilites above £37 7m of the Sterling “Other borrowangs” and £66 Im
of the Euro “Other borrowings” relate 1o debt on which the Group ks taken out interest rate dervative financial instruments to fix the interest rate, and the debt
is already camed at approximately s far value in the table above The remaining fixed rate debt amounts to £12 8m and relates to finance lease contracts and
fixed rate loans The Directors consider the farr value of these remaning fixed rate debts to approximate to the bock values shown above
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

2006 INTEREST RATE AND CURRENCY PROFILE

The interest rate and currency profile of the Group's financal liabilities at 31 Crecember 2006, after taking account of interest rate and currency dervative financial
instruments (with the exception of the short term currency swaps noted after the table) was as follows

Effecte Weghted

fixed average
Floating Foxed nterest  tme for whach Amount Amourt
Total rate rate rate rate s fixed secured wnsecured
Currency im im ém % Years {m {m
Private placement notes Stering 1380 366 8t 4 62% 79 - 1380
Other borrowings Stering 403 04 399 48% 26 - 403
Finance lease contracts Stering 06 - 06 54% [N} 06 -
Private placement notes Euro 934 - 934 6 1% 45 - 934
Cther borrowings Euro 80 22 58 68% 26 38 42
Fnance lease contracts Euro 20 - 20 4 8% 13 10 10
Anance lease contracts PLN 02 - 02 21 3% 18 02 -
Other borrowings PLN 104 104 - N/A N/A - 104
Total 2929 696 223.3 56 2873

!n addition to the currency exposures above, the Group had entered into four short term currency denvative finanaial instruments at 31 December 2006
as follows

® one net Investrnent hedge amounting to an asset of £33 6m and a liabdty of €50 Om, and
s three cash flow hedges which hedge the post tax functional currency cash flows of the Group amounting to an asset of £53 2m and a labity of €79 3m

All of these derwatrve financial instruments were entered into on 29 December 2006 at market rates and therefore thewr farr value s deemed to equate 1o their
book value of £nil The expiry date of these dernative financial instruments was 3| December 2007

The Directors considered the fair value of the Group's floating rate financial liabilties 1o approximate to the book value shown in the table above The far value

of the Group's pnvate placement notes approximates to the amount i the value of the financal kabilities above £40 Om of the Sterling "Other borrowings” related
to debt on whrch the Group had taken out interest rate dervative financial Instruments 1o fix the interest rate, and the debt 15 already carned at approximately its
farr value in the table above The remaining fixed rate debt amounted to £8 5m and related to finance lease contracts and fixed rate loans The Directors
considered the far value of these remaining fixed rate debts to 2pproximate to the book values shown above

In both 2007 and 2006 the interest rate on floating rate financial labities 1s 4inked to UK LIBOR in the case of Sterhng habdives EURIBOR for Euro hiabilites,
WIBOR for Polish Zloty labibtes and PRIBOR for Czech Koruna liabilities

HEDGING RELATIONSHIPS
Included wathun financial assets are dervative financial instruments in designated hedge accounsing relationshups amounting to £0 5m (2006 £1 7m) and loans
and recetvables (including cash and cash equrvalents) of £503 6m (2006 £372 Bm)

Included wathin financil Tabiives are denvative financal instruments in designated hedge accounting refatonships amounting to £72 2m (2006 £37 8m)
and habilties (including trade payables) at amortsed cost of £672 3m {2006 £416 9m)

The Group does not trade in denvative financial mstruments for speculative purposes ‘Where the Group can demonstrate a hedge relationship under the rules

of IAS 32 and IAS 39 movements in the fair values of these derrvative finanaal instruments will be recognised in the Consoldated Statement of Recognsed Income
and Expense Where the Group does not meet these nules, movements in the farr value will be recognised as hedge neflectveness in the Corsolidated Income
Staternent in the column enttled “Cther terns”

In order to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate and exchange rate changes, the Group utilises both currency and interest rate dervatve financial
nstruments The far value of these dervatve financial instruments are calculated by discounting the associated future cash flows to net present values using
appropnate market rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

A) NET INVESTMENT HEDGES

As at 31 December 2007 the Group had entered into five (31 December 2006 four) cross-currency demvative financial mstruments whuch form a net investrment
hedge of the Group's Eurc and Czech Koruna denominated trading assets At 31 December 2007, these five dernvative financial instruments had a fair value lTability
of £15 4m (31 December 2006 £8 6m) Ofthis far value movement, £1 4m has been recogrused directly in the Consolidated Income Statermment {as hedge
ineflectveness) and £5 4m has been recogrised directly in equity va the Consolidated Staternent of Recognised Income and Expense

B) CASH FLOW HEDGES

With regard to cash flow hedges, the effectve portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument  recogrused in equty, and & subsequently removed and
included in the Consolidated Income Staternent wathin *Finance costs™ in the same pencd the hedged tem affects the Consohdated Income Statemment The cash
flow hedges descnbed below are expected to impact both profit and loss and cash flow annually over the ke of the hedging instrument and the related debt as
interest falls due and upon matunty of the debt and related hedging instrument
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

HEDGING RELATIONSHIPS CONTINUED

B) CASH FLOW HEDGES CONTINUED

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had entered into seven (31 December 2006 seven) cross-currency dernvative financal instruments which swap fixed

US Dollar denominated debt hefd in the UK into fixed Sterling denorminated debt In addion, as at 31 December 2007, the Group had entered Into one

(3| December 2006 one) cross-currency interest rate derwvatve financial instrument which swaps fixed US Dollar denominated debt held in the UK mnto
vaniable Stering denominated debt These dervative financial instruments form a cash flow hedge as they fix the functional currency cash flows of the Group

At 3} Decernber 2007, these eight dervauve financial instruments had a far value fablity of £28 2m {31 December 2006 £293m} All of these dervatrve financial
instruments are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the farr value movement has therefore been deferved in equity wia the Consolidated Statement
of Recognised Income and Expense At 31 December 2007, the average maturtty date of the these swaps & 7 O years (2006 8 0 years)

As at 3| December 2007 the Group had entered into nine (31 December 2006 two) interest rate derwvatrve financial instruments which swap vanable rate
Sterkng debt into fixed rate Sterling debt thereby fiung the functional currency cash flows of the Group At 31 Decernber 2007, these nine denvatve financial
nstruments had a fair value hiabiity of £4 2m (31 December 2006 asset of £0 7m) All of these interest rate denvatve financial nstruments are designated and
effective as cash ﬂowhedgsandmefarvahenmmerﬂastherebrebeendefmedmequﬁymﬂwwndated Statement of Recogrmsed Income and Expense
At 31 Degember 2007 the average matunty date of the these swaps 15 4 B years (31 December 2006 2 6 years)

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had entered into eight (31 December 2006 three) cross-currency dervatve financal instrurments which swap

fixed Stering denominated debt into fixed Euro, Polish Zloty and Czech Koruna denominated debt The moverent in far value of these dervatve financial
instruments hedge the post tax cash flows of the Group and thereby fix the funcuonal currency cash flows of the Group and are therefore fully effectve

As thase dervative financal instruments were entered nto on 31 December 2007 at market rates prevaling at that date, the far value of these dervatve
financiat nstruments at 31 December 2007 was £rl At 31 December 2007, the average maturtty date of the these swaps & one year (2006 one year}

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had entered into three {31 December 2006 three) dervative financal instruments which swap fixed Sterling and Euro
denominated debt into floating Sterfing 2nd Euro denominated debt As at 31 December 2007, the fair value hability of these dervative financial instruments was
£1 6m (2006 £0 Sm) Al of these nterest rate dervatve financial snstruments are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the farr value movement
has therefore been deferred i equity via the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

19 MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The maturty profile of the Group's financial habilties at 31 December 2007 was as follows

2007 006

im £m

in one year or less 2169 56 1

In more than one year but not more than two years 48 16

In more than two years but not more than five years 706 980

In more than five years 226 3 137 2

Total 5186 2929

BORROWING FACILITIES

The Group had undrawn committed borrowing faciities at 31 December 2007 as follows

2007 2006

im £m

Expinng n more than one year but not more than two years 0l 500

Expinng in more than two years but not more than five years 955 635

Expinng i more than five years 06 04

Totl 961 1139
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19. MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED

CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS OF THE GROUP'S FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the maturity of the Group’s remaning contractual financral iabiities The tables below have been drawn up based on the

undiscounted contractual maturies of the Group's financial assets and habdiies ncluding nterest that will accrue to those assets and kabiities except where

the Group s entrled and intends to repay the hability before s maturty As the values disclosed include future interest and are undiscounted, the total postion

difers from that ncluded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

2007 ANALYSES
Batance
sheet Less than More than
value | year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
£m im {m £m

Current labliies
Trade payables 2259 2259 - - - 2259
Obhgatons under finance lease contracts 26 26 - - - 26
Bank overdrafts 19 L9 - - - 19
Bank loans 1508 153 4 - - - 153 4
Private placement notes 22| 231 - - - 231
Loan notes 28 29 - - - 29
Derwatve financial instruments ™ 367 595 - - - 595
TJotal 4428 469 3 - - - 469 3
Non-current labiities
Cbhgations under finance lease contracts 71 04 28 29 18 79
Bank loans 59 04 09 42 13 68
Prwvate placement notes 251 8 174 174 879 2553 3780
Loan notes 14 - 14 ol - 15
Derwvative financial instruments ™ 355 68 68 824 440 1400
Total 3017 250 293 1775 3024 5342
Total liabilties 744 5 494 3 293 1775 3024 1,003 5
Other
Dernvative financial instrument assets® @3 (Q5) - - - (05)
Cash and cash equrvalents® (89 2) 892) - - - (89 2)
Dernative financa mstruments ™ - (269} (52 (54 6) 33 6) (120 3)
Total (89 7) {116 6) 52) (54 6) (33 6) (210 0)
Grand total 654 8 3777 241 1229 2688 7935

* Dervatve finanoal instrument assets and cash and cash equivalents have aiso been disclosed in order to present a full analysis of the Group's financial assets

and habiites

~ In agcordance with iFRS 7, for all gross settled denvative financial instruments (1€ £/€ net investment hedges), the pay leg has been disclosed within biabilties
and the recene leg has been included within other
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19 MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED

CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS OF THE GRQUP'S FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED

2006 ANALYSIS
Matunty analyus
Balance
sheet Less than More than
value | year 1-2 years 2.5 years 5 years Total
£m im £m im fm

Current habiliuies
Trade payables 161 8 161 8 - - - 161 8
Obligations under finance lease contracts 14 14 - - - 14
Bank overdrafts 33 33 - - - 33
Bank loans 508 513 - - - 513
Loan notes 05 05 - - - 05
Derwvative financal instruments 01 01 - - - 0l
Total 2179 218 4 — — - 2184
Non-current habilities
Obligations under finance lease contracts | 4 0l I 04 - )
Bark loans 47 03 09 42 04 58
Private placement notes 1930 132 351 740 1657 288 0
Derwative finznaal instruments ™ 377 59 333 689 85 1166
Total 236 8 19.5 704 147 5 174 6 4120
Total habiltles 454 7 237.9 704 147 5 174 & 630 4
Other
Dervatrve finanaal instrument assets® (17) (] - - - (thn
Cash and cash equivalents* (62 4) (62 4) - - - (62 4)
Derwatve financial instruments ™ - (44) (244 (47%) - e n
Total (64 1) {68 5) (24 4) (47 9) - (140 8)
Grand total 390 6 169 4 46 0 996 174 6 489 &

* Dervative financal instrument assets and cash and cash equivalents have also been disclosed in order to present a full analysts of the Group's financial assets

and habilues

“~ In accordance wath IFRS 7, for all gross settled derwvative financal instruments (ie £/€ net investment hedges), the pay leg has been disckosed wathin liabikues

and the receve leg has been included within other

20 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

IFRS 7 requrres the drsclosure of a sensitvity analysis that details the effects on the Group's profit or koss and other equity of reasonably possible fluctuations

1n market rates

This sensiinty analysis has been prepared to flustrate the effect of the following hypothetical vanatons m market rates on the far value of the Group's financial

assets and labibes

® a 19 (100 basis ponts) mcrease or decrease In market interest rates and

& a |0% strengthening or weakening of Steriing against all other currenaes that the Group 1s exposed to
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20 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS CONTINUED
A) INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

The Group s exposed to Sterfing, Euro US Dollar, Polish Zloty and Czech Koruna interest rates

The following tables detail the Group's sensivily to a 100 basis pont change in each respectve interest rate The 100 bass pomts represents the Directors’
assessment of the reasonably pessible change n interest rates The sensitwity analysis of the Group's exposure 10 interest rate nsk at the reporting date has been
determined based on the change taking place at the beginnung of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting penod A postive number indicates

an increase m profit or ioss and other equity

2007 ANALYSIS

GBP EUR ust PLN CZK Total
+ I bass 1bass + | bass | bass + | bass -1bass + |bass -1bass + | basrs 1 basis +lbass -1basis
powt pont powt pout pont pont pont poad pount pomt pomt pont
fm im im m £m m Lm £€m £m £m £m £m
Profit or loss (9 t 90 15 {1 6y® - - ©n 0™ - - ©5) 04
Other equity 71 BOF 29 GO ey 1loe - - - - O 19
Total Shareholders’ equity 52 @ 44 @n (0 110 ©1) 0.1 - - ©7n 23
2006 ANALYSIS
GBP EUR usp PLN Total
+1bass | bass + | bass I bass + Ibass {bass + Ibass - [bass + | bass Ibass
pont post ponit pont pont pownt posit post powt poant
£m im im £m £m m £m im im m
Proftt or loss 28 290 23 (25 - - - - 05) 04
Cther equity 27 (28 16 (7@ (12 12 20 - - (69 77
Totat Sharehclders’ equity 01 01 39 (42) (112) 122 - - 74 81

The movements noted above are described below, being manly atinbutable to

{) floating rate Sterling debt and hedge tnefleciveniess on some of the Group's £/€ net investment hedges

{n) "Mask-to-Market” valuaton changes in the far velue of fully effecuve cash flow hedges

(mHicating rate Euro debt, Eura cash deposits and hedge mefleciveness on some of the Group’s £/€ net investment hedges

{v)changes in value of the Group's Euro denominated assets and liabifities

{v) floating rate Polish Zloty debt
B) FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY

The Group 15 exposed 1o currency rate changes between Sterling and Euros US Dollars Polish Zloty Czech Koruna and Slovak Koruna

The following tables detal the Group s sensitvity to 2 10% change i Sterling aganst the respective foreign currencies The 109 represents Directors’ assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign currency exchange rates The sensimity analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date
has been determined based on the change taking place at the begmming of the financial year and held constant throughcut the reporting period A positive number

indicates an increase n profit or loss and other equity

2007 ANALYSIS
EUR usD PLN CZK SKK Total
+10% 1% +10% -10% +10% 10% +10% -10% + 0% -10% +10% 10%
m im £m £m m Im im im fm £m im fm

Assets and liabilties under the scope of [FRS 7
Profit or loss 18 (1 3P - - 01 1y - - - - 19 (1 4)
Other equty 248 (27 8P (15) | g@ 07 (0B™  (03) 03 — - 237 (26 5)
Total Shareholders’ equrry kmpact 266 {29 1) {1 5) 18 08 09 03 03 - - 256 (279
Total assets and habilities®
Profit or loss (13 1 9 - - 04 O 0 [l ©on 0| (1% 20
Other equity {71) 78" (I 5} | 8@ (14 2204 ¢n 0 g™ 08) 09 (119 135
Total Shareholders’ equity impact (8 4) 97 (1 5) 18 {i 8) 21 [UPS) 09 09) 10 (138) 155
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

20 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS CONTINUED
B) FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY CONTINUED

2006 ANALYSIS
EUR uUsD PLN Total
+10% 10% + 109 -10% +§0% -10% +10% 10%
im £m £m m im £m {m [1,.]

Assets and liabilities under the scope of IFRS 7
Profit or loss 1 4 o8y - - 01 e 15 (09)
Other equity i5 (25" (08) 1 Of 07 o9 34 24)
Total Shareholders’ equity 49 (33) 0 8) 10 08 (I 0} 49 (33)
Total assets and habilities®
Profit or toss ) 2318 (04 050 - - {15 28
Other equity 4h 53 (0 4) 0s™ (1 0) 08  (55) 66
Total Shareholders equity (52) 76 08 10 (1 0) 08 70 94

* Certain assets and habilires such as mventores, non-current assets and provisions do not come under the scope of IFRS 7 Therefore in order to present
a complete analysis of the Group’s exposure to movements in foreign currency exchange rates, the exposure on the Group's total assets and labilties
has been disclosed

The movements noted abave are described below being manly attributable to

{) hedge ineffectiveness on some of the Group’s £/€ net investment hedges and retranslation of Euro interest flows
{n} "Mark-10-Market” valuation changes in the fair value of fully effective cash flow and net investment hedges

(i) retranslation of Euro profit streams and hedge ineffectrveness on some of the Group's £/€ net nvestment hedges

() retranstation of overseas denominated assets and habilties outside the scope of IFRS 7 and "Mark-to-Market* valuation changes in the fair value of fully effective
cash flow and net investment hedges

(v} retranslation of Polish Zloty interest flows
(i) retranslaton of Polish Zioty Czech Koruna and Slovakian Koruna profit streams

(vretranslaton of LS Dollar profit streams and the sale of the US business

21 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
Onerous Leasehold  Contingent Other

leases dilapidations conssderation amounts Total

£m £m fm fm ém

Beginning of year 30 121 92 19 262
Unused amourts reversed in the period (12) - (5 ©1) {28)
Utilsed ©n @4 35) 0 6) ¢
Added on acquisiuon 02 04 &7 13 76
New provsions 07 o9 - 09 25

Exchange difference - 0l - - 0.1
End of year 2.0 131 9% 34 28 4
2007 2006

im £m

Included in current fiabikties 95 120
Included 1n non-current kabilives 189 142
284 262

OMNEROUS LEASES

The Group has prowded for the rental payments due over the remaning tenm of existing operating lease contracts where a peniod of vacancy 1s ongoing

The proviston has been cakulated after taking into account both the penods over whuch properties are Ekely to remain vacant and the likely income from existing
and future sub lease agreements on a contract by contract basis The provision covers potential transfer of econormic beneftt over the full range of current lease
commitments disdosed in Note 25b

LEASEHOLD DILAPIDATIONS

This provision relates to contractual obligations to renstate leasehold properties nto their onginal state of repar The provision 1s calculated with reference to the
expired porion of indivdual lease 2greements where such a dause exists in the lease contract The transfer of economic benefits will be made at the end of the
leases as set out 1n Note 29b
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21. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES CONTINUED
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

Contingent consideration relates to the amounits due to vendors of current and prior year acquissions providing certain future profit targets are met The transfer

of economic benefit 1s expected to be made within two years
OTHER AMOUNTS

Other amounts relate pninapally to clam provisions The transfer of economic benefit 15 expected 1o be made between one and three years

22. DEFERRED TAX
The net deferred tax liability at the end of the year & anafysed as follows

2007 2006
£m im
Deferred tax assets 174 164
Deferred tax habilties (44 3) (17 B)
Net deferred tax hability (26 9) I 4)
The net deferred tax hability 15 made up of the following elements
2007 2006
m &m
Deferred tax analysis
Capntal allowances in excess of depreciation an on
Short term trung differences (24 1) 7%
Losses 09 09
On retrement benefit obligations 34 67
Net deferred tax iabilty (26 9) (14
The movemnent duning the year in the net deferred tax {lability)/asset was as follows
Beginning of year (19 136
On acquisition of subsidianes 29 0) (132)
Creditf{charge) for the year 77 o4
Exchange diference 01 ©n
On retrement benefit obligations Qo) ()]
Deferred tax on share opuons 2.3) 03
End of year (26 9) {1 4)

Gven current trading the Direciors consider that recognition of the deferred tax assets above s appropriate

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differerces associated with undistnbuted earnings of subsdianes with a lower rate of corporation
tax than that suffered in the UK, for which no deferred tax habikties have been recognised was £39 6m (2006 £40 6m) No tability has been recognised in respect
of these differences because the Group 1§ m a postion to control the tmung of the reversal of the temporary differencesand it 15 probable that such differences will

not reverse in the foreseeable future

23 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE CONTRACTS

Murumuam lease Present value of
payments MW lezse payments
2007 2006 2007 2006
im £m £m
Amounts payable under finance lease contracts
— within one year 28 ] 26 I 4
—1n the second to fifth years 60 1S 54 14
— after five years 18 - t7 -
106 30 $7 28
Less future finance charges [k 02
Present value of lease obligatons 97 28

The Group leases some of s motor vehicles, fixtures and equipment under finance lease contracts

The average remainng lease term s 29 years (2006 | 3 years) For the year ended 31 December 2007, the average effective borrowang rate was 5 7%

(2006 4 3%) Interest rates are fixed at the contract date

The carmang amount of the Group's lease obhigatons approxamate to ther farr vatue
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

24. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2007 2006
im im
Authorsed
190,000,000 ordinary shares of | Op each (2006 190,000,000) 190 190
Allotted, called up and fully pald
135,001,198 ordinary shares of 10p each (2006 123,104,025) 13§ 123

On 30 May 2007 SIG placed | 1,363 637 new orcinary shares with insttutional and other investors 10 rasse gross proceeds of £150m (the “Placng?) The shares

were placed at | 320p each, rasing £147 2m after commussions and expenses The Placing proceeds have been used to fund the acquisition of Lamiére and the
increased acquistion spend They also prowde SIG wath finanaial flexibility to tzke advantage of acquisiion opporiunities as they anse and ensure that SIG continues

to drive its organic growth through ongoing mvestment in fis businesses

Total cash consideration receved by the Company {including the Placing) for the | 1,897 173 shares allotted during the year, net of commussions and expenses,

amounted to £148 Im (2006 LI 9m)

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carnes no nght to fixed income

At 31 Decemnber 2007 the following share opuons were outstanding

Number of shares Exercrse dates
Option Date Date
A At - from which on whch
31 December 31 December per 10p opton may opuon
Scheme and date of grant 2006 Granted Exerased Lapsed 2007 share  be exercsed expres
Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme
190412005 17,520 - - - 17,520 000p !9/04/2008 18/04/2015
13042006 17,262 - - - 17,262 000p [3/0472009 12042016
17042007 - 11297 - - 11,297 000p 70042010 16/04/2017
Long Term Incentrve Plan
11/04/2003 4,459 - - - 4,469 1000p 110472006 10/042010
11/05/2004 190,447 - (179,349) (5.529) 5,569 1000p 110572007 10052014
19/04/2005 129,965 - - - 129,965 000p 19/04/2008 18/04/2015
130472006 100 835 - - - 100,835 000p 13/04/2009 12/04/2016
17004/2007 - 70,951 - - 70,951 000p 170472010 16/0472017
1997 Executive Share Option Scheme \
30/05/1997 17,500 - (17 500) - - 30% 50p 30/05/2000 29/05/2007
27/04/1998 10057 - (3,607 - 6,450 212 50p 27/04/2001 26/04/2008
11042000 4,000 - (2.500) - 1,500 2132 50p 11/04/2003 10042009
19/04/2002 24,000 - (1 724) - 22,276 321 00p 190472005 18/0420i0
11/04/2003 61 562 - (24.562) {1,500} 35,500 205 50p | 1/04/2006 10/04/2011
Savings Related Schemes
0400572001 4,027 - - (4.027) - 201 00p 01072004 3171272006
17/05/2002 134,336 - {132533) (388) 1,415 257 00p 010772005 317122007
07/05/2003 467,189 - {1,261} (6,695) 459,133 16500p Q5772006 3171272008
10052004 365,802 - {170500) (7.860) 187,442 300 00p 0140772007 314122009
21 /10,2005 31 B850 - - - 31,850 571 00p 0171172008 310572010
10/1 12006 37761 - - - 17,761 797 00p QIMIAGI0 31072012
26/1172007 - 32045 - - 32,045 833 00p 01012011 310772013
Total 1,618,582 114,293 (533,536) (25,999) 1,173,340
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25 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Caled up Share Capaal Share  Hedgng and
share premuom  sedempbon Speaal oplion translaton Retamned Minortty Total
caprtal account reserve reserve ressrve reserve profts Tol  enarests equay
£m £} im {m £m £m £m £m {m

At 31 December 2005 122 178 03 221 b4 @23y 377 2892 12 250 4
Proft after tax - - - - - - 758 758 o7 765
Dradends - - - - - - @7n @n - U7
New share capdal ssued 01 18 - - - - - 19 - 19
Exchange difference on retranslation
of foreign currency goodwill and intangibles - - - - - % - o9 - ©%)
Exthange dfference on retranslation
of foreign currency net investments
{excluding goodwill and iIntangibles) - - - - - (40 - {40) - 0
Exchange and farr value movements associated
with berrowings and dervatve financal mstruments - - - - - 37 - 37 - 37
Tax charge on exchange difference ansing on
borrowings and demvative finanaiat instruments - - - - - (rn - (an - {rny
Gans and losses on cash flow hadges - - - - - - I 8 18 - |8
Transfer to profit and loss on cash fiow hedges - - - - - - 12 12 - 12
Current and deferred tax on share options - - - - - - 22 22 - 22
Actuanal gam on defined benefit pension schemes - - - - - - 33 33 - 33
Deferred tax movement associated with
actuanal gain - - - - - - [{RY] (1o - (1N
Credtt to share option reserve - ~ - - Pl - - il - Il
Exerase of share options - - - - o7 - 07 - - -
Payment 1o nunonty interest Shareholder - - - - - - - - 07 (07}
At 31 December 2006 123 196 03 221 |8 (4 6) 3000 3515 | 2 3527
Profit after tax - - - - - - 862 862 0% 871
Bradends - - - - - - (28 4) 28 4) - {28 4)
New share captal ssued 12 1469 - - - - - 148 1 - 148 1
Exchange difference on retranslation of foreign
currency goodwill and intangibles - - - - - 247 - 247 - 247
Exchange difference on retranslation
of foreign currency net investments
{excluding goodwill and intangibles}) - - - - - 188 - 188 - 188
Exchange and farr value movements assoaated
with borrowings and dervative financial instruments - - - - - (4! 2) - 412 - 412
Tax credit on exchange difference ansing on
borrowings and dervative financral instrumnents - - - - - 120 - 120 - 120
Gains and losses on cash flow hedges - - - - - - (32) 52 - (52)
Transfer to profit and loss on cash flow hediges - - - - - - 21 21 - 21
Current and deferred tax on share eptions - - - - - - 08 {0 8) - (08)
Actuanzl gain on defined beneft pension schemes - - - - - - 62 62 - 62
Deferred tax movermnent associated with
actuanial gain - - - - - - 20) Z0) - R0
Credtt to share option reserve - - - - 16 - - 16 - I6
Exerase of share opuons - - - - [0 - 07 - - -
Payment to minonty interest Shareholder - - - - - - - - 08 08)
At 31 December 2007 13.5 166 5 03 221 27 97 3se 8 573 6 13 5749

The special reserve anses as a result of a number of transfers from the Group s share prerium reserve up untd | 996 Goodwall ansing on a number of histonc
acquesitons was then written off aganst this special reserve The cumutatve amount of goodwall resuling from acquesiions in earfier years which has been written off
directly agamst reserves, net of goodwill relating to undertakings disposed of, 1s £131 4m (2006 £131 4m)

The share option reserve represents the cumulative share option charge under IFRS 2 less the value of any share options that have been exercsed

The hedging and transtation reserve represents movements in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as a result of movements n exchange rates which are taken directly
to reserves as detaled i the Statement of Signdicant Accounting Policies on pages 68 to 72

SIG plc Annual Report and Accounts 2007 103

SLNNODY




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

26 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2007 2006

Lm Im

Operating profit frorm conunuing operations 142.2 1145
Operatng profit from discontinued operation - 38
Operatng profit 142 2 1183
Depreciation charge 303 241
Amortsation of acquired intangibles 172 69
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 2.0) (0 6)
Share-based payments 16 I
Inerease n Inventories 82) (149
Decreasefincrease) in recenvables ol 44
{Decrease)fincrease In payables {209 19
Cash nflow from operating acivibes 1603 132 4

Included in the decrease (2006 increase) in payables 15 a cash outflow relating to defined benefit pension contnbutions being £3 6m (2006 {0 6m) greater than

the amount charged to operating profit

27 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOYEMENTS IN NET DEBT

2007 006
im im
Increase n cash and cash equwvalents in the year 154 307
Cash flow from increase in debt (87 7) {75 8)
Increase in net debt resutung from cash flows %623) {45 1)
Debt acquired with acqusitons® (24 0) {159)
Non-cash tems ~ @RIN 59
Exchange dfference 22 1) 10
Increase in net debt in the year (200 1) 54 1)
Net debt at beginning of year (228 8) (174 7)
Net debt at end of year (428 9) {228 B)
* Including loan notes issued
~ Non-cash tems relate to the far value movement of debt recogmised in the year which does not give nse to a cash inflow or outllow
28 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT
Delnt
A acqured At
31 December Cashy with Non-cash Exchange 31 December
2006 flows acquistons* tems ™ ddference 1007
{m im £m im m im
Cash and cash equvalents 624 2319 - - 29 8% 2
Overdrafis (33 ] - - ©n {19
59 1 254 - - 28 873
Anancial assets - dervatve financial instruments 17 (7} 05 - - 0s
Debts due within one year {514) 47 2) {B62) @17 {59 2124)
Debts due zfter one year (235 4) (37 1) @3n - (184) 294 &)
Finance lease contracts (28) (N {46) - (0 6) o7
(228 8) (62 3) (940 217 (22 I} (428 9)

* [ncluding loan notes issued

~ Non-cash tems refate to the far value movement of debt recognised in the year which does not give nise to a cash inflow or outflow
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29 GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
A) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

10607 2006
£m £m
Contracted but not provided for 11 77

B) LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group leases a number of its premises under operatng leases which expire between 2008 and 2049

The rentak payable are subject to renegotiaton at vanous dates The total future mirwmum lease rentals under the foregong leases are as follows

2007 2006
im m

Minimurn lease rentals due
— within one year 352 295
— after one year and within five years 1012 87 1
— after five years 1227 101 &
2591 2182

The Group also leases certain tems of plant and machinery whese total future minimum lease rentals under the foregoing leases are as follows

2007 2006
im &m

Mirimum lease rentals due
— within one year 65 41
— after one year and within five years 73 73
— after five years 03 02
141 116

C) PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a nurnber of pension schemes, eight (2006 ) of which prowide defined benefits based on finat pensionable salary Of these schemes,

four (2006 four) have assets held in separate trustee admirustered funds and four (2006 two) are overseas book reserved schemes The Group also operates

a number of defined contnbution schemes all of which are independently managed The defined benefit schernes are heren after referred 1o as the *main scheme®
and "other schemes™ being seven srnaller schermes

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSICN SCHEME VALUATIONS
In accordance with the amendment o IAS 19 which was issued on 16 December 2004 the Group has elected to recognise all actuanal gans and losses in fult
in the period in which they anse in the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

The actuanal valuations of the defined benefits pension schemes are assessed by an independent actuary every three years who recommends the rate
of contribubon payable each year

The four UK defined benefit pension schemes were merged on | January 2008 The last formal actuarial valuation of the SIG plc Retrement Benefits Plan
the main scheme, was conducted at 31 December 2006 and showed that the market value of the scheme s assets were £53 | and ther actuanal value
covered 719 of the benefits accrued to members after allowing for expected future increases in pensicnable salanes

As a result of the merger, valuations of the second and third defined benefit schemes were not carned out at 31 December 2006 Corsequently the last formal
actuanal valuations of the second and third defined benefit schemes were conducted at | January 2004 and showed thatthe market value of the schemes assets
were £7 8m and £1 9m and ther actuanial values covered 94% and 70% respectrvely of the benefits accrued to members after allowing for expected future
increases in pensionable salary The last formal actuarial valuation of the fourth defined benefit scheme was at 6 Aprit 2004 and showed that the market value

of the schemne’s assets was £1 2m and its actuanal value covered 60% of the benefits accrued to members after allowng for expected future increases in
pensionable salanes

The other four schemes are bock reserved schermes whereby the sponsoning company does not hold any separate assets to fund the pension scheme but makes
a reserve in its accounts Therefore, these schernes do not hold separate scheme assets The labilmes of the schemes are met by the sponsonng companies
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

29 GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS CONTINUED

C) PENSION SCHEMES CONTINUED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT CHARGES

The pension charge for the year relating to the main scheme was £1 8m (2006 £2 1m), £0 5m (2006 £0 8m) n relation to other schemes and was £4 2m
(2005 £4 Om) in relation to defned contribution schemes  |n accordance with [AS |9 *Retirement Benefits™, the charge for the defined benefit schermes has

been calculated as the sum of the cost of benefits accruing in the year, the increase in the value of benefits already accrued and the expected retum on assets

The actuanal valuations described above have been updated at 31 December 2007 by a qualified actuary using revised assumphions that are consistent with the
requirements of IAS 19 Investments have been valued for this purpose, at far value

The four UK defined benefit schemes are closed to new members, have an age profile that is reing and therefore under the projected unit method the current
service cost will increase as the members of the schemes approach retrement The four overseas book reserved schemes remain open 16 new members

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET LIABILITY
The balance sheet position in respect of the eight defined benefit schemes can be summansed as follows

2007 2007 2006 2006
im &m £m Im
Defictt in the man scheme qrn (17 0y
Defict n the other defined benefit schemes (46) (6 6)
Pension hability before taxation (s (23 6)
Related deferred tax asset 34 67
Pension hability after taxaton (123) {169)

The actuanal gain of £6 2m (2006 gan £3 3m) for the year, together with the associated deferred tax debr of £2 Om (2006 £1 Omy, has been recognised wn the
Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense The remaining deferred tax debit of £ 3m (2006 0 4m) has been recognised i the Consolidated
Income Staterment The cumulative actuarial gains and losses, gross of deferred tax (from 2004 onwards) recognised in the Consohidated Statermnent of Recogrised
Income and Expense amounted to 2 loss of £1 Im (2006 loss of £7 3m)

Of the above pension lablity before tpaton, £12 1m (2006 £21 2m) relates to wholly or partly funded schemes and £3 6rm (2006 {2 4m) refates to unfunded schemes

The movement in the pension lability before taxation in the year can be summarsed as follows

007 2006
£m m
Pension lability at beginning of year (23 6) (27 0)
Current service Cost (19 23)
Businesses acquwed (10) -
Contnbutions 55 29
Net finance cost 04) ©6)
Actuznal gan 62 33
Exchange dfference (0.5) 0l
Pension hability at end of year {I57) (23 6)
MAIN SCHEME DISCLOSURE
The principal assumptions used for the LAS 19 actuanal valuation of the main scheme were
2007 2006 200%
% % %
Rate of increase in salanes 53 50 48
Rate of fixed increase of pensions in payment 5.3 50 50
Rate of increase LPI pensions in payment 33 30 28
Discount rate 57 51 49
Inflation assurnption 33 30 28

Deferred pensions are revalued to retrement in ling with the scheme’s rules and statutory requirements, with the inflaton assumption used for LPI revatuation
in deferment

For the man pension scheme, the Iife expectancy for a male employee beyond the normal retirement age of 60 s 27 5 years (2006 24 0 years)
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29 GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS CONTINUED
C) PENSION SCHEMES CONTINUED
MAIN SCHEME DISCLOSURE CONTINUED

The farr value of the assets in the main scheme the present value of the liabilties in the main scheme and the expected rate of retum at each balance sheet

date were
2007 2007 2006 2006 2005 2005
% £m % £m % m
Equities 69 375 68 328 67 290
Bonds 46 231 46 201 44 187
Other 41 - 4 - 40 0l
Total far value of assets 60 6 529 478
Present value of scheme habiives awn (69 9) (67 5)
Defictt in the scheme (v (V70 (97N
Related deferred tax asset 3.3 54 65
Pension hability after taxation {7 8) (11 6) {132)

The overall expected rate of return s based upon market condmions at the balance sheet date

Followsng the actuznal valuation of the scheme as at 31 December 2006, in December 2007, a special contnbution of £2 5m was made to the main scheme on
the adwice of the actuary In addiion, a further special contribution of £7 2m was made In January 2008 Future joint (employer and employee) contnibution rates

for the main scheme have been agreed at 23% of pensicnable salanes plus fixed monthly Cornpany contributions of £0 Im

Analysis of the amount charged to operatng profit under IAS 19 in relation to the man scheme

2007 2006
£m £m
Current service cost 15 16
Analyss of the amount charged to finance income and finance charges under 1AS 19 in relation to the main scheme
1007 2006
im im
Finance income = being expected return on pension scherne assets 33 28
Finance costs — beng interest on pension scheme liabiities (36) (33)
Net finance cost (3] ©5)
The actual return on scheme assets was £3 5m {2006 £3 Om)
Analyss of the actuarial gain recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense in respect of the main scheme
2007 2006
Lm £m
Actual return less expected return on assets 02 02
Expenence gans and losses on kabilues &9 -
Changes in assumptions 84 2
Actuanal gain recognised 2.7 23
Movement in defict duning the year in respect of the man scheme
2007 2006
L Im
Deficit in main scheme at beginrung of year (17.0) (197N
Current service ¢ost {15 (I 6)
Contnbutions 50 25
Net finance cost {©3) (05)
Actuanal gain 2.7 23
Deficit in mamn scheme at end of year (1) (170)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

29 GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS CONTINUED
C) PENSION SCHEMES CONTINUED

MAIN SCHEME DISCLOSURE CONTINUED

Movemnents in the present value of the main scheme habitties were as follows

2007 1006
£m £m
Fair value of main scherne habiliies at beginmung of year 699 (67 5)
Current serwce cost (15 {16)
Interest on pension scheme habities (3 6) 3
Expenence gains and losses on liabiliies 9 -
Changes 1n assumpuons 84 21
Cortributions from scheme members s (05)
Benefits pad 13 09
Farr value of main scherne habilties at end of year 77 (69 %)
Movemerys in the fair value of the man scheme assets were as follows
2007 2006
im m
Farr value of man scheme assets at beginrung of year 529 47 8
Expected retum on assets 13 28
Actual return less expected return on assets 02 02
Contributions from sponsonng companies 50 25
Contnbutions from scheme members 05 05
Benefits pard {13 ©9)
Farr value of main scheme assets at end of year 606 529
History of experience of gains and losses
2007 2006 2005
Dfference between the expected and actual return on man scheme assets
Amount (£m) 02 02 40
Percentage of mam scheme assets - — 7%
Expenence gans and losses on man scheme habiiues
Amount (fm) (59) - -
Percentage of the present value of main scheme habilties (8%) - -
Total amount recogrised in the Consobdated Statement of Recogrised Income and Expense
Amount (£m) 27 24 (13)
Percentage of the present value of man scheme labilties 4% 3% (29%}
OTHER SCHEMES DISCLOSURE
The Company also operates a further seven defined benefit pension schemes details of which have been aggregated below and are referred to as
“other schemes”
The prinapal assumptions used for the 1AS |9 actuanal vatuations of the other schemes can be summansed as foflows
2007 2006 2005
% % %
Rate of increase In salanes 53 50 48
Rate of fixed in¢rease of LP1 pensions i payment 33 30 29
Discount rate 57 51 48
Inflation assumption 33 30 29
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29 GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS CONTINVED
C) PENSION SCHEMES CONTINUED
OTHER SCHEMES DISCLOSURE CONTINUED

The far value of the assets, the present value of the liabilities and the expected rate of return at each balance sheet date for the other schemes were

2007 2007 2006 006 2005 2005

% £m % £m % im

Equmes 62 12 65 12 65 121
Bonds 51 49 47 36 44 10
Property 62 01 65 01 65 03
Cash 50 - 45 0l 40 03
Total fair value of assets 162 150 137
Present value of scheme habilives {20 8) 21 6) 2i0
Defict in the schermes “6) (66) {73
Related deferred tax asset 0.1 13 16
Pension lability after taxation {45) {53) 57)

The overall expected rate of return is based upon market condruons at the balance sheet date

Future jowtt contnbution rates (empleyers and employees) for two of the other schemes have been agreed at 31 0% and 34 2% of pensionable salanes
Anntal joint contributions for another scheme for which one active member remains, have been agreed at £0 |m For the four overseas book reserved

schemes, in accordance with the scheme rules, no contnbutions are made

Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit under LAS |9 in relation to the cther schemes

2007 2006
m {m
Currem service cost 04 07
Analysis of the amount charged to finance income and finance charges under LAS 19 in relation 1o the other schemes
2007 2006
im {m
Finance ncome - being expected return on pension scheme assets 09 08
Finance costs — being interest on pension scheme rablites {10) (09}
Net finance cost on on
The actual return on scheme assets was £1 Im (2006 £1 Im)
Analysis of the actuanal gan recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Recogrised Income and Expense in respect of the other schemes
2007 2006
im m
Actual retumn less expecied return on assets 02 03
Expenence gains and kosses on habiibes 15 01
Changes in assumptions 18 05
Actuanal gan recognised 35 09
Movement in defiot duning the year in respect of the other schemes
2007 2006
£m fm
Defict in the other schemes at begnning of year (68 73
Current sensce cost 04) o7
Businesses acquired {10) -
Contnbutions 05 05
Net finance cost ©n ©on
Actuanal gain 35 09
Exchange dfference {05) V3]
Deficit in the other schemes at end of year {4 6) {6 6)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

29 GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS CONTINVED
C) PENSION SCHEMES CONTINUED

OTHER SCHEMES DISCLOSURE CONTINUED

Movements in the present value of the other schemes’ labiltes were as follows

2007 2006
im £m
Far value of the other schemes’ labilities at beginrung of year 21 6) (21 0)
Current service cost ©4) 07}
Interest on pension scheme habiiues (90 ©9)
Expenence gans and losses on liabiliues 15 0t
Changes 1n assumptons 18 05
Contnbutions from scheme members - on
Businesses acquired (1 0) -
Exchange differences (0 5) 0l
Benefits pad 04 04
Far value of the other schemes’ kabilities at end of year (20 8) {21 6)
Movements in the far value of the other schemes’ assets were as follows
2007 2006
£m m
Farr value of the other schemes’ assets at beginning of year 150 137
Expected return on assets 09 08
Actual return less expected return on assets 02 03
Contributions from sponsonng companes 0s 05
Contnbutions {rom scheme members - 01
Benefits pad (0 4) o
Farr value of the other schemes’ assets at end of year 162 150
HISTORY OF EXPERIENCE OF GAINS AND LOSSES
2007 2006 005
Drfference between the expected and actual return on the other schemes” assets
Amourtt {£m) 02 03 14
Percentage of the other schemes assets 1% 2% 10%
Expenence gains and losses on the other schemes labiltes
Amount (£m} |5 01 -
Percentage of the present value of the other schemes' fiabilities 7% 19% -
Total amount recogmsed in the Consolidated Statement of Recognssed Income and Experse
Amount (£m) 35 09 (0 6)
Percentage of the present value of the other schemes’ labilities 17% 4% (3%)

D) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had cutstanding obhgations under customer guarantees, daims, standby letters of credit and discounted bills of up 1o
£8 4m (2006 £8 0m) Of this amours, £7 5m (2006 £7 Om) retated to standby letters of cred, ssued by The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, in respect of the

Group's insurance arrangements

{n addrtion, there s a possible risk that when SIG acquires certain companies that include employee shareholders the capital gain made by these shareholders
could be redlassiied as an income tax labilty As at 31 December 2007, this could give rise to a socsl secunty cost for the Group of up 1o £10m

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are refzted parties, have been eliminated on consohidation and have therefore not been disclosed

REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Directars who are the key management personnel of the Group  prowded in the audrted part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repoert
on pages 52 10 60 In addion the Group recognised a share-based payment charge under IFRS 2 in respect of the Direciors of £0 ém (2006 £0 4m)

31 SUBSIDIARIES
Detalls of the Group's prncipal trading subsidiarses, 2ll of which have been included in the Consolidated Accounts are shown on page 121
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT tome Meveers o sic pic

We have audtted the Group financial statemnents of SIG plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprse the Consolidated Income Statement,
the Consobdated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consoldated Cash Flow Statement, the Statement
of Significant Accounting Pohcies and the refated notes ! to 31 These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounung poliies set out
therein We have ako audited the information in the Directors Remuneration Report that 1s described as havng been audted

We have reported separately on the Parert Company financial statements of SIG plc for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2007

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body n accordance with Section 235 of the Comparies Act 1985 Our audit work has been
undertaken 50 that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required 1o state to them in an Auditors Report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The Drectors’ responsibilies for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Group financal statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRST) as adopted by the European Union are set out i the Staterment of Directors Responsibilives

Ovur responsibility = to audst the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requrements and International Standards on
Audting (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our apinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and far iew whether the Group financial statements have been
property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the (AS Regulation and whether the par of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report descnbed as having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985 We ako report to you whether in
our opimon the information given m the Directors Report 15 consistent wath the Group financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or # information specified
by law regarding Directors remuneration and other transactrons 15 not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Staternent reflects the Company's compliance with the rune provisions of the 2003 Combined Code
specfied for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authortty, and we report f # does not We are not required to consder whether the
Board's staterents on internal control cover all nsks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate govemance procedures
or tts nsk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether it s consistent with the audited
Group financial statements We consider the imphcations for our report f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies
with the Group financial statements Our responsibiities do not extend to any further information outside the Annual Report

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audrt i accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit

includes examnatien on a test basss, of ewdence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remunerabion Report to be audited It also inchudes an assessment of the signiicant estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of
the Group financual statements, and of whether the accounting pofices are appropriate to the Group's crcumstances, consisiently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to prowvide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are iree from
rmateral misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other srregulanty or error In forming cur opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the Group financral statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audted

OPINION
In our opmon

o the Group financal statements give a true and fair view, n accordance wath IFRS as adopted by the European Urion, of the state of the Group's affairs
as at 3| December 2007 and of rs profit for the year then ended,

« the Group financil statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation,
e the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report described as having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985, and

e the information given in the Directors’ Report 15 consistent with the Group finanaal statements
Dot v Torle L

DELOITVE & TOUCHE LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND REGISTERED AUDITORS
LEEDS

12 MARCH 2008
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

UK GAAP IFRS
Cortimuing operations ™

2003 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007

fm £m i im £m £m

Revenue 1,268 5 1,398 2 1,6393 1571 4 1,859 8 2,4552
Underlying® operating profit 63 4 770 102 | 99 | 121 4 159 4
Operatng profit 58 6 76 4 928 89 8 1145 142.2
Fnance income 41 50 86 B6 74 10 6
Finance charges (112) (12 {145 {145) (192 (28 5)

Undertying* profit before tax 56 3 709 943 913 108 2 140 1
Profit before tax 5t 5 702 86 8 838 1027 1243
Profit after tax 347 488 581 560 718 871
Underlying® earnings per share 32 5p 40 3p 527p 50 9p 613p 74 Bp
Earnings per share 28 6p 39 % 47 Op 452p 58 lp 66 3p
Dwwdend per share 12 4p 14 0p 16 Bp 16 8p 20 5p 267p

* Underlying figures are stated before the amortisation of acquired intangibles, the impairment/amortsation of goodwal and hedge ineffectiveness

~ GG sold 1ts USA business on 20 Novernber 2006 Figures stated are from continuing operations (i e exchuding the USA business)

A more detaled five year summary can be found in the investor section of the Company's webste {www sigpic co uk)
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET as ar 31 pecemeer 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments 4 3547 3537
Tangible assets 5 [ ] -
3548 3537
Current assets
Debtors — due within one year [ 1350 59 4
Debtors = due after more than one year [ 4859 266 1
Cash at bank and n hand 22 76
623 1 3331
Creditors arnounts faling due wsthin one year 7 (228 9) (1357)
Net current assets 3942 197 4
Total assets less current Iabilties 7490 551 1
Creditors amounts falling due after one year 8 [cL1N)] (265 7)
Net assets 407.9 2854
Capital and reserves
Called up share capstal 10 135 123
Share premium account 10 i66 5 196
Merger reserve 10 17 7
Caprtal redempbion reserve 10 03 03
Special reserve 10 130 4 1304
Share option reserve 10 27 18
Exchange reserve 10 ©2) 02)
Profit and loss account |10 730 995
Shareholders’ funds {afl equity) 407 9 2854

The Accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2008 and signed on its behalf by

DAYID WILLIAMS
DIRECTOR

The accompanying Statement of Signficant Accounting Palicies and Notes to the Accounts are an integral part of this Company Balance Sheet
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The separate Accourts of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985 They have been prepared under the histonical cost convertion
and In accordance with apphicable Unted Kingdom Accounung Standards ("UK GAAP) and Law

The pnnapal accounting policies are summansed below They have all been apphed consistently throughout the year and the preceding year
The Company has taken the exemption from FRS 29 “Financial Instrumertts Disclosures” provided for a Parent Company s single entity financial statemments

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The accounting policy for share-based payments mirrors that of the Group as detaled on page 69

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The accounting policy for financal instruments murrors that of the Group as detaled on pages 70 and 71

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The accounting policy for financial assets and habilties murrors that of the Group as detaled on page 70

INVESTMENTS
Fixed asset mvestments in subsidianes are shown at cost less provision for impairment

FOREIGN CURRENCY
Transactions denorminated in foreign currencies are recorded in the local currency at actual exchange rates as of the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and habilities denomnated in foresgn currenaies at the year end are reported at the rates of exchange prevasing at the year end

Any gain or loss ansing from a change 1n exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction 15 induded as an exchange gain or loss in the
Proft and Loss Account

SINNODDY
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

| PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act +985 the Company has elected not 1o present its own Profit and Loss Account for the year SIG pic reported

a profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 of £3 0m (2006 £9 9m)

The Audtors’ remunerabon for audt services to the Company was £0 |m (2006 £0 Im)

2 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company had five share-based payment schemes in existence dunng the year ended 31 Decernber 2007 The Company recognised a total charge

of £0 6m (2006 £0 3m) in the year relating to equity-setifed share-based payment transactions ssued after 7 November 2002 Share based paymert charges

of £ Om (2006 £0 Bm) were transferred to subsidiary undertakings of the Company The total amount transferred to the share option reserve in the year

amounted to £ 6m (2006 £| Im} Detals of the valuations of each of the five share-based payment schemes can be found 1n Nate 9 to the Group Accounts

on pages 82 to 85

3 STAFF COSTS
Particulars of employees (indluding Directors) are shown below

2007 2006
£m m
Employee costs duning the year amounted to
Wages and salanes 17 16
Socal secunty costs os 04
FRS 20 share option charge 06 03
Persion costs 05 04
5.3 37
The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company during the year was as follows
2007 2006
Number Number
Administration 37 23
4 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Fixed asset investments compnse investments in subsidiary undertakings, as follows
2007 2006
im £m
Cost
Beginning of year 3538 284 |
Addiions 1o 850
Disposals - (153)
End of year 354 8 3538
Provisions at the beginning and end of year [C2)] on
Net book value, beginning of year 3537 2840
Net book value, end of year 547 3537

On 10 August 2007, the Company acquired 100% of the shares in Fazpatnck Doors Limited for £1 0m

On 6 December 2006 the Company acquired a further 850,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each at parina subsidiary compary, SIG Trading Limded for £85 Om

On 20 November 2006, the Company disposed of s USA business The total imvestment dsposed of amounted to £15 3m

Details of the Company’s prncipal trading subsidianes are shown on page 121
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5 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
The movement in the year was as follows

Freehold
1and and Plamt and
buddings machmery Total
£m (m im
Cost
Beginrung of year 0l 02 03
Addtions - 01 01
End of year 01 0.1 04
Depreciation
Beginnung of year 01 02 03
Charge for year - - -
End of year 0l 02 03
Net book value, beginning of year - - -
Net bock value, end of year - 0l gl
& DEBTORS
2007 2006
Lm im
Amourts owed by subsidiary undertakings 6105 3177
Corporation tax recoverable 68 25
Deferred tax assets (Note 9) 26 31
Dernvative financial instrurments - 17
Prepayments and accrued income 10 05
6209 3255
Of the total amount owed to the Comnpany by subsidiary undertakings, £485 9m (2006 £266 |m) 15 due after more than one year
7 CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2007 006
im £m
Bank loans 1501 498
Prrvate placemertt rotes 21 -
Amounts owed to subsidiary underntakings 17 758
Derwvative finangial instrurnerits 367 0l
Accruals and deferred income 183 100
2289 1357
All the Company s bank loans and overdrafis are unsecured
8 CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
2007 2006
im £m
Private placemnent notes 2518 1930
Derrvative financal mstruments 55 377
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 538 350
3411 2657
Details of the private placement notes are as follows
2007 2007 2006 2006
fixed fixed
interest nierest
ate* rate®
{m % im %
Repayable w1 2008 21 7% 224 71%
Repayable n 201 | 327 7 3% 403 73%
Repayable in 2013 692 51% 255 59%
Repayable in 2016 1229 6 0% 1048 6 0%
Repayable in 2018 200 58% - N/A
739 6 0% 1930 6 4%

* Before apphying associated denvative financial snstruments

With the exception of the dervative financral asset of £0 Sm, all Group denvative financial instruments dsclosed in Note 18 on pages 94 to 96 have been entered
into by the Company and therefore disclosures have not been repeated within this note
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

9% DEFERRED TAX

2007 2006
im £m
Deferred tax assets 2.6 3
The deferred tax assets above comprise of short term timing differences
The movernent duning the year in the deferred tax asset was as follows
Beginning of year 31 34
Effect of rate change ©2) -
Charge for the year (03) 03)
End of year 2.6 3t
Grven the current profitabilty of the Company, the Directors consider that recognition of the deferred tax asset above s appropniate
10 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
2007 2006
fm im
Called up share capstal 135 123
Share premirm account 166 5 196
Merger reserve 2.7 217
Capital redemption reserve 0.3 03
Special reserve 1304 130 4
Share gption reserve 27 I 8
Exchange reserve 02) {02
Profit and loss account 73.0 995
Total reserves 407 ¢ 285 4
The movement in reserves during the year was as follows
Cafled up Share Share
share prermum opbon Retamed
capial account reserve profits
£m im £m im
Beginning of year 1213 196 18 955
Proceeds on allotments 12 1469 - -
Creda to share option reserve - - I 6 -
Exeraise of share options - - €7 07
Faw value movement on cash flow hedges - - - (18
Profit for the penod - - - 30
Dmdends - - - (28 4)
End of year 135 166 5 27 730

There was no movement in the merger reserve, capial redemption reserve speaal reserve and exchange reserve in the peried
Detais of the Company s share caprtal can be found in Note 24 of the Group Accounts on page 102
11 GUARANTEES AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

A) GUARANTEES
The Cormnpany has cross-guaranteed overdrafts of subsidiary undertakings amouriing to £14 Im (2006 £1 1 7m)

B) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at the balance sheet date, the Company had owtstanding obligations under standby letters of credt of up to £7 5m (2006 £7 Om) These standby letters
of credtt, ssued by The Royal Bank of Scotland pic, are in respect of the Group's insurance arrangements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT ro 1He Memaers of si6 pLc

We have audited the Parent Company financial statements of SIG plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprse the Balance Sheet, the Staternent
of Significant Accounting Policies and the related notes | to 11 These Parent Company financizl statementts have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of SIG plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 and on the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Repart that is descnibed as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the Compary’s members, as a body, i accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audt work has been
undertaken so that we rmight state to the Company s members those matters we are requwed to state to them in an Audtors’ Report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we o not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body,
for our audit work for this report, or for the opiruons we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Drrectors’ responsibiities for prepanng the Annual Report the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Parent Companty financial statemments in accordance
with 2pphicable law and Unrted Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generalty Accepted Accounting Pracuice) are set out in the Statement of
Crrectors’ Responsibiliies

Our responsibity 1s to audit the Parent Company financal statements in accordance with relevant lega! and regulatory requrements and Internatonal Standards
on Audrting (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as 1o whether the Parent Cornpany financial stalements give a true and fair wew and whether the Parent Company financial
staternents have been properly prepared n accordance with the Comparues Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opruon the Directors Report
15 congistent with the Parent Company financial statements

In addition we report to you f 1n our cpiruon, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, f we have not receved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or f information specfied by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contamed i the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether i 1s consistent with the audited
Parent Company financial statements We consider the implcations for our report f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
mconsistencies with the Parent Company financial statements Our responsibiliies do not extend to any further information outside the Annual Report

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) ssued by the Audiung Pracuices Board An audit includes
examinaton on a test basis of ewdence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Parent Company financal statements [t also includes an assessment

of the signdicant estmates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the Parent Company financsal statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate 10 the Company's arcumstances, consistently apphed and adequately disdlosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the informaton and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Parent Company financiat staterments are free from matenial msstatement whether caused by fraud or other
wrregulanty or error In forming our opimicn we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of informatior in the Parent Company financial statements

OPINION
in our opinion

a the Paremt Company finanaal statemenits give a true and far view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice, of the state
of the Company's affairs as at 3| December 2007,

e the Parent Company financial have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

» the information given in the Directors Report is consistent with the Parent Company financial statements

Detontbe « Ton e (g

DELQITTE & TOUCHE LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND REGISTERED AUDITORS
LEEDS

12 MARCH 2008
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PRINCIPAL ADDRESSES

SIG PLC
CORPORATE OFFICE
Signet House

17 Europa View

Sheffield S% FXH

UNITED KINGDOM

SIG TRADING LIMITED, TRADING AS
51G INSULATIONS

Hillsborough Works

Langsett Road

Sheffield S6 2LW

CPD DISTRIBUTION
Signet House

17 Europa View
Sheffield 59 1XH

MILLER PATTISON LIMITED
Unit 3 Park Square

Thernclife Park

Chapeltown

Sheffield 535 2PH

IRELAND

SIG BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
Mounit Tallant Ave

Terenure

Dubkn 6W

Ireland

MAINLAND EUROPE

WEGO SYSTEMBAUSTOFFE GMBH
Maybachstrasse 14

D-63456 Hanau-Steinheim

Germany

MELLE DACHBAUSTOFFE GMBH
An der unteren Sose 36

37520 Osterode

Germany

OUEST ISOL / LITT DIFFUSION
Zone Industnelle B P15

27460 Alzay

France
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Hisborough Waorks
Langsett Road

Shefiield $6 2LW

SIG ROOFING SUPPLIES
Harding Way

St Ives

Cambndge PE7 4Y)

KOMFORT WORKSPACE
Whittle Way

Crawley

\West Sussex RH 0 2RwW

LS GROUP LIMITED
Milnay Road
Langley Ml
Notungharn NG 16 4AZ

INSULATION DISTRIBUTORS LIMITED
Untt 15

Parkowest Industnal Estate

Nanger Road

Dublin 12

freland

LARIVIERE SAS
36 bis rue Deladge
BP 40446

49004 Angers
France

WKT POLSKASPZ 0O
ul Wadowicka BW/14
30415 Krakow

Poland

WODAN SP ZO O
ul Bartycka 26

00-7 16 Warszawa
Poland

SPECIALIST CONSTRUCTION
PRODUCTS

5 Fernhurst Road

Fshponds Tradng Estate

Bnstol BS5 7FG

LANDSDON
Arrow Valley
Claybrook Drive
Reddtch B9B OFY

51G NEDERLAND B V
Bedmjfsweg |5

5061 JX Csterwyk

The Netherfands

BEK BAUSTOFFECZ SR O
CZ - 669 02 Znojmo

Dobsicka 3520/39

Czech Republic

BEK BAUSTOFFE S{tOVAKIAS RO
SK -~ 83003 Bratislava

Odborarska 52

Slovakia




PRINCIPAL TRADING SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 December 2007 the Company's pnncipal
trading subsidianes, all of which are wholly owned
except where stated were a3 follows

Reofing and Specialist Construction
Insulation External Elements Commercial Interiors and Safety Products

United Kingdom

SIG Trading Limuted @ ® ® ®
Miller Pattison Limrted [ ]

LS Group Limited ®

Ireland
SIG Building Products Limited
Insulation Distributors Limited

Germany
WeGo Systembaustoffe GmbH ® ®
Melle Dachbaustoffe GmbH L]

France

Ouest Isol SA 'Y ®
LITT Diffusion SAS ]

Lanvidre SAS [ ]

Benelux
SIG Nederland B v
SIG Belgium Haldings NV

Poland

WKT Polska Sp zo o @ @ ®
Wodan 5p zoo o 9

Czech Republic
BEK Baustoffe CZsro [ ] 9

Slovakia
BEK Baustoffe Slovakia s ro ® [ ]

All of the above ¢companees are regstered in the country referred to above, with the exception of SIG Trading Limited, Miller Pattson Limited and LS Group Limrted
that are registered in England and Wales

5IG European Investments Limited and S1G European Holdings Lemited together hold the benefical ownership of SIG Building Products Limated,
WeGo Systembaustoffle GmbH Melle Dachbaustoffe GrbH, Soété de I'Ouest des Produrts Isolants SA , LITT Diffusion SAS Larmvére SAS,
SIG Nederfand B V, SIG Belgium Hokdings N V, WKT Polska Sp zo o, Wodan Sp zo o, BEK Baustoffe CZ s ro and BEK Baustoffe Siovakiasro

The Group owns BO% of the ordinary share capital of Insulation Distnbutors Limited, wa $IG Trading Limited

The Group owns 93 5% of the ordinary share capital of LS Group Limited This comparty owrs the entire share capatal of Leaderflush + Shapland bimited,
via Leaderflush + Shapland Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE OFFICE REGISTERED OFFICE

Srgnet House Hitsheorough Works
7 Europa View Langsett Road
Sheflield 5% 1XH Shefield 56 2AW

et +44 (0) 114 285 6300
fax +44 (0) |14 285 5385
e-mall info@sgple co uk
web  www sigplcco uk




